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BOC
BOC Aviation
Limited
BOC Bank of China Consumer Finance Co., Ltd.
BOC BOC Financial Technology Co., Ltd.
BOCIM Bank of China Investment Management Co., Ltd.

BOC Fullerton Community Bank Co., Ltd.

BOCG Bank of China Group Insurance Company Limited
BOCG Bank of China Group Investment Limited
BOCHK BOCHK

Bank of China (Hong
Kong) Limited

BOCHK

BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited
BOC- BOC-Samsung Life Ins. Co., Ltd.
BOC BOC Wealth Management Co., Ltd.
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)
2022 2022
( (
2023 ) ) 2021 2020 2019
466,545 459,266 460,678 425,142 415,918 390,050
157,593 127,195 158,461 180,575 151,729 159,960
624,138 586,461 619,139 605,717 567,647 550,010

(222,933)  (199,506)  (231,196)  (226,355)  (202,411)  (198,269)
(106,562)  (103,959)  (103,993)  (104,220)  (119,016)  (102,153)

294,643 282,996 283,950 275,142 246,220 249,588
295,608 283,641 284,595 276,620 246,378 250,645
246,371 236,725 237,504 227,339 205,096 201,891
231,904 226,522 227,439 216,559 192,870 187,405

N.A. 68,298 68,298 65,060 57,994 56,228

32,432,166 28,893,548 28,913,857 26,722,408 24,402,659 22,769,744
19,961,779 17,552,761 17,554,322 15,712,574 14,216,477 13,068,785

(485,298)  (437,241)  (437,241)  (390,541)  (368,619)  (325,923)
7,158,717 6,435,244 6,445,743 6,164,671 5,591,117 5,514,062
29,675,351 26,330,247 26,346,286 24,371,855 22,239,822 20,793,048
22,907,050 20,201,825 20,201,825 18,142,887 16,879,171 15,817,548

2,629,510 2,423,973 2,427,589 2,225,153 2,038,419 1,851,701

294,388 294,388 294,388 294,388 294,388 294,388
0.74 0.72 0.73 0.70 0.61 0.61
0.2364 0.232 0.232 0.221 0.197 0.191
7.58 6.98 6.99 6.47 5.98 5.61
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0.80 0.85 0.85 0.89 0.87 0.92
10.12 10.77 10.81 11.28 10.61 11.45
10 1.59 1.75 1.76 1.75 1.85 1.89
11 25.25 21.69 25.59 29.81 26.73 29.08
12 28.50 28.92 27.88 28.17 26.73 28.00
13
Tier
2,161,825 1,991,342 1,991,342 1,843,886 1,704,778 1,596,378
Tier
408,447 381,648 381,648 329,845 287,843 210,057
Tier 727,136 573,481 573,481 525,108 458,434 394,843
Tier
11.63 11.84 11.84 11.30 11.28 11.30
Tier
13.83 14.11 14.11 13.32 13.19 12.79
17.74 17.52 17.52 16.53 16.22 15.59
14 1.27 1.32 1.32 1.33 1.46 1.37
15 1.27 1.32 1.32 1.33 1.46 1.37
16 191.66 188.73 188.73 187.05 177.84 182.86
17 0.57 0.56 0.56 0.66 0.76 0.80
18 2.44 2.50 2.50 2.49 2.60 2.50
/
7.0827 6.9646 6.9646 6.3757 6.5249 6.9762
/
7.8592 7.4229 7.4229 7.2197 8.0250 7.8155
/
0.9062 0.8933 0.8933 0.8176 0.8416 0.8958
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@ 1ASB 17
(IFRS 17 ) 2023 IFRS 17 2022
2022 1 1

@ « D ¢ )

®
*

®

(©)
Q) *

(©) -+ x 100 +

©® *

x 100 CSRC
2010 CSRC  [2010 ]

(10) + x 100

(1) + x 100

12) [2016 ] 35

(13) Y.J.H.L[2012 ]

(14) + x 100

(15) + x 100

(16) + x 100

an + x 100

(18) + x 100
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2024
2023
GDP 5.2
4.6
0.2
237.6
9.5

7.0827

SSE

75
TFAI
5 7,900
M2 292.3
10.6
2,974.93
1.7

14

TRSCG

AFRE
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2023 9.9 417.3
10.1 383.1 2.4 3.2
3.2 1.59
205.1 15.1
14
TLAC
2023 30.0 220.0
Tier 80.0 Tier
450.0
150.0
RWA 2023
0.22 17.74 14
Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional)
2023
2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 2021

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
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Tier
2,161,825 1,991,342 1,843,886 1,811,259 1,667,405 1,563,789
Tier
2,570,272 2,372,990 2,173,731 2,210,766 2,036,912 1,883,294
3,297,408 2,946,471 2,698,839 2,928,122 2,590,185 2,391,365
18,591,278 16,818,275 16,323,713 16,526,513 14,659,455 14,142,899
Tier
11.63% 11.84% 11.30% 10.96% 11.37% 11.06%
Tier 13.83% 14.11% 13.32% 13.38% 13.89% 13.32%
17.74% 17.52% 16.53% 17.72% 17.67% 16.91%
VI. 2023 BOC BOC Capital
Adequacy Ratio Report of 2023
Administrative Measures for the Leverage Ratio of
Commercial Banks (Revised) Capital Rules for Commercial
Banks (Provisional) 2023

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
Tier 2,570,272 2,372,990
34,785,923 31,001,982
7.39% 7.65%
2024
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ESG
55.32
CRO
ESG
MOF
2023 2022
2023
2022 Corporate Social

Responsibility Report of Bank of China for 2022 (Environmental, Social and Governance)
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ESG
2023 2022
TCFD Green Finance (TCFD) Report of Bank of China for 2022
1+1+N
13
2023
2023 Guiding Opinions on Further Advancing the

Development of Institutions in Pilot Zones for Green Finance Reform and Innovation of Bank of China
(2023)

2023
ESG
45
2023 Industry Guidelines on Credit Granting of Bank of China Limited (2023)
2023 Plan for the Management of Industrial
Asset Portfolios of Bank of China Limited (2023)
ESG
ESG
ESG
TCFD
NGFS
Management

Policy on Environmental (Climate), Social, and Governance Risks Associated with Customers of Bank
of China 14

CRO CRO
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Policy on Comprehensive Risk Management of
Bank of China Limited

90

(
2023 Corporate Social

Responsibility Report of Bank of China for 2023 (Environmental, Social and Governance

ESG

ESG
ESG

ESG

ESG

ESG

ESG

ESG
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BOC Green+
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PCAF GHG
Global GHG Accounting and Reporting Standard for the Financial Industry PBOC

Guide on the Carbon Accounting Technology

for Financial Institutions (Trial version)

2023 10
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TE8E [ RER D90 %
2023
GHG
2023 2019 2.18 GHG
4.49 I
2023 28
2022 Environmental Information Disclosure Report for 2022
Carbon Neutrality Plan and Three-Year Action
Plan BOCHK
BOCHK
2023 2022 2021
MWh 2,764,254 2,688,308 2,754,463
tC02e 1,594,093 1,537,546 1,534,060
tC02e 84,740 74,899 79,309
tCo02e 1,509,353 1,462,647 1,454,751
tC02e 4,052 - -
tC02e 2,414 - -
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chain, one policy and one batch

2023
43.17 107

268.9

14
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one
10

1,758.543
43.21
3.54

2023

Guiding Opinions of Bank of China Limited on Supporting Agriculture-based Country

Development and Realising Agricultural and Rural Modernisation in the 14th Five-Year Plan Period,

the Work Priorities of Bank of China in Supporting Key Counties for Rural Revitalisation in

2023

2,656.079

376.521

2023
562
101
32,000
65

1,013
20
134 2023
28.53

44 .64

2023
50

80.57 7.47

215
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Management Measures for Examination of Consumer Protection of Bank of China Limited

2023 92. %
90.5 96.4 27 6,000 100
56.140
75,000
BOC
2023 67 124
7,784 25

2023
Corporate Social Responsibility Report of Bank of China for 2023

(Environmental, Social and Governance)

Management Measures
for Petition Work of Bank of China Limited
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Code of Conduct for Employees Detailed Rules
for Employee Conduct

Labour Law of the People

” s Republic of China Labour Contract Law of People ”s Republic of
China Provisions on the Prohibition of Child Labour
2024 Management

Measures of Bank of China Limited for Employee Recruitment (Version 2024)

2022 Measures for Handling of Employee Violations of Bank of China Limited (Version
2022) 2022 Measures for Management
Accountability of Bank of China Limited (Version 2022)
Measures on Prudent Remuneration Management of
Bank of China Limited

Implementation Measures for Clawing Back Performance Bonus of Bank of China Limited

14
Talent Development Programme for the 14th Five-Year Plan Period of Bank of China
Limited 2023 Management

Measures of Bank of China Limited for Employee Education and Training
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2023 My Stories about Building a Clean Bank

Awareness Education Reader

Supplier Code
of Ethics of Bank of China Limited
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2023 253.205 21.528
1.27 0.05
485.298 48.057
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191.66 2.93
207.297 4.893
1.23 0.17 290.238
54.584 1.46 0.11
()
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
) ()
19,364,544 97.27% 17,038,462 97.33%
290,238 1.46% 235,654 1.35%
67,246 0.34% 104,331 0.60%
105,261 0.53% 60,569 0.35%
80,698 0.40% 66,777 0.37%
19,907,987 100.00% 17,505,793 100.00%
253,205 1.27% 231,677 1.32%
16,399,066 97.40% 14,112,677 97.32%
230,521 1.37% 185,702 1.28%
39,969 0.24% 85,155 0.59%
96,171 0.57% 53,216 0.37%
71,157 0.42% 64,033 0.44%
16,836,884 100.00% 14,500,783 100.00%
207,297 1.23% 202,404 1.40%
2023 2022 2021
1.20 1.03 0.81
26.41 20.63 27.85
47.40 31.80 66.11
33.09 10.43 22.76
)
2022

65/590



EDINETOOOO
0000000000 O(E05981)

oOoOooodn
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
% %

2,755,264 13.84% 41,312 1.50% 1,974,498 11.28% 33,486 1.70%

2,329,950 11.70% 33,565 1.44% 1,808,808 10.33% 34,275 1.89%

1,976,166 9.93% 8,780 0.44% 1,744,422 9.96% 10,959 0.63%
874,747 4.39% 48,172 5.51% 773,828 4.42% 55,966 7.23%

1,046,809 5.26% 12,794 1.22% 738,758 4.22% 13,119 1.78%
660,091 3.32% 161 0.02% 659,443 3.77% 20 0.00%
455,276 2.29% 4,973 1.09% 361,108 2.06% 1,947 0.54%
397,588 2.00% 4,295 1.08% 328,921 1.88% 2,838 0.86%
217,551 1.09% 3,080 1.42% 167,351 0.96% 4,802 2.87%
221,595 1.11% 4,260 1.92% 206,004 1.18% 3,539 1.72%
73,193 0.37% 1,559 2.13% 55,443 0.31% 1,375 2.48%

11,008,230 55.30% 162,951 1.48% 8,818,584 50.37% 162,326 1.84%

5,828,654 29.27% 44,346 0.76% 5,682,199 32.46% 40,078 0.71%

« )
« ) « )
3,071,103 15.43% 45,908 1.49% 3,006,566 17.17% 29,273 0.97%
19,907,987 100.00% 253,205 1.27% 17,507,349  100.00% 231,677 1.32%
2023 12 31
2,329.950 521.142 28.81
1,976.166 231.744
13.28 1,046.809
308.051 41.70
455.276 94.168 26.08
IFRS
12 ECL 2023 12 31
19,265.099 96.79 386.045
1.94 253.168 1.27
2023 12 31 253.205 21.528
1.27 0.05
207.297

4.893
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1.23 0.17
45.908
16.635 1.49
0.52
2023 2022 2021
231,677 208,792 207,273
96,844 86,831 86,583
(75,316) (63,946) (85,064)
253,205 231,677 208,792
202,404 193,030 189,985
66,760 68,527 77,098
(61,867) (59,153) (74,053)
207,297 202,404 193,030
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
16,672,058 200,330 14,311,147 195,658 12,727,437 170,103
3,235,929 52,875 3,194,646 36,019 2,947,557 38,689
19,907,987 253,205 17,505,793 231,677 15,674,994 208,792
16,482,189 200,330 14,204,573 195,658 12,623,061 170,102
354,695 6,967 296,210 6,746 330,198 22,928
16,836,884 207,297 14,500,783 202,404 12,953,259 193,030
ECL
1 VI.
2023 106.114 13.321
0.57 0.01
89.681 4.825
0.57 0.05
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2023 2022 2021
12 31 12 31 12 31
10 2.0 2.2 2.3
10
50 13.0 12.7 12.8
@ +
Q) 10 10 +
V.17 VI.
2023 12 31 10
A 66,113 0.33%
B 60,257 0.30%
c 47,526 0.24%
D 38,533 0.19%
E 38,424 0.19%
F 37,344 0.19%
G 36,900 0.19%
H 36,126 0.18%
I 35,701 0.18%
J 33,157 0.17%
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VI.
IRRBB
IRRBB
25
25
2023 12 31 2022 12 31

25

@m (1,016) 477 219 (3,294) (561) 557 28
25

477 1,016 77) (219) 3,294 561 (557) (28)
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2023 12 31

2023 2022 2021
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12 31 12 31 12 31
25 55.0 49.0 49.6
25 70.2 72.6 69.9
82.7 82.9 82.5
2023 12 31
VI.
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2,382,312 2,218,871
(9,249,233) (9,450,803)
(741,082) (659,277)
(731,795) (712,141)
(803,353) (627,361)
2,979,417 3,415,321
8,920,549 8,378,691
2,756,815 2,563,301
)
IT
IT IT IT
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2023
100

Basic Standard for Enterprise Internal Control
complete

coverage, checks and balances, prudence and correspondence

Guidelines for Internal Control of Commercial Banks
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AML

LDC

219.9007
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2023
2023
14

2023

246.371 9.646 4.07

231.904 5.382 2.38
ROA  0.80 ROE  10.12
2023 2022 ()
466,545 459,266 7,279 1.58%
157,593 127,195 30,398 23.90%
78,865 74,890 3,975 5.31%
624,138 586,461 37,677 6.42%
(222,933) (199,506) (23,427) 11.74%
(106,562) (103,959) (2,603) 2.50%
294,643 282,996 11,647 4.12%
295,608 283,641 11,967 4.22%
(49,237) (46,916) (2,321) 4.95%
246,371 236,725 9,646 4.07%
231,904 226,522 5,382 2.38%
2023
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2023 12 31 2023 30 2023 30 2023 31
153,206 151,225 153,490 166,217
57,046 54,763 62,432 57,663
) 330,287 (149,123) 146,523 488,759
2023 466.545 7.279
1.58 1,048.851 168.003
19.07 582.306 160.724 38.12
2023 750.601 97.946
15.01
192.293 27.690 16.82
105.957
42.367 66.63
2023 450.851 138.928
44.54
85.678
20.300 31.05
45.777 1.496 3.38
2023 1.59 16 Bps
LPR

74.14

75/590



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

Ogoooood
@
@
2023 2022
) )

18,924,693 750,601 3.97% 16,748,644 652,655 3.90% 84,866 13,080 97,946

6,083,691 192,293 3.16% 5,576,816 164,603 2.95% 14,953 12,737 27,690

4,258,069 105,957 2.49% 3,878,780 63,590 1.64% 6,220 36,147 42,367

29,266,453 1,048,851 3.58% 26,204,240 880,848 3.36% 106,039 61,964 168,003

21,551,296 450,851 2.09% 18,854,117 311,923 1.65% 44,503 94,425 138,928

3,644,179 85,678 2.35% 3,831,831 65,378 1.71% (3,209) 23,509 20,300

1,496,091 45,7771 3.06% 1,440,787 44,281 3.07% 1,698 (202) 1,496

26,691,566 582,306 2.18% 24,126,735 421,582 1.75% 42,992 117,732 160,724

466,545 459,266 63,047 (55,768) 7,279

1.59% 1.75% (16) Bps
(@)
@
@
(€))

2023 2022
9,195,316 3.48% 7,492,173 3.86% 1,703,143 (38) Bps
5,705,867 4.43% 5,554,541 4.84% 151,326 (41) Bps
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589,967 1.41% 445,560 1.80% 144,407 (39) Bps
15,491,150 3.75% 13,492,274 4.20% 1,998,876 (45) Bps
11,484,415 4.0% 10,045,168 4.59% 1,439,247 (50) Bps
4,006,735 2.78% 3,447,106 3.05% 559,629 (27) Bps
4,435,053 1.06% 3,978,931 0.92% 456,122 14 Bps
3,462,415 2.60% 2,871,172 2.77% 591,243 (17) Bps
2,807,327 0.23% 2,570,715 0.30% 236,612 (7) Bps
5,300,099 2.68% 4,220,928 2.93% 1,079,171 (25) Bps
698,105 2.88% 738,426 3.11% (40,321) (23) Bps
16,702,999 1.83% 14,380,172 1.88% 2,322,827 (5) Bps
50,364 4.42% 52,880 1.88% (2,516) 254Bps
54,006 1.90% 70,372 0.27% (16, 366) 163Bps
48,277 4.27% 38,048 1.19% 10,229 308Bps

23,276 0.02% 27,024 0.02% (3,748)
18,647 1.71% 15,829 0.40% 2,818 131Bps
1,818 2.04% 3,146 1.68% (1,328) 36Bps
146,024 2.36% 154,419 0.50% (8,395) 186Bps

)
2023 157.593 30.398
23.90 25.25
78.865 3.975 5.31
12.64

2023 2022 ()
21,134 22,319 (1,185) (5.31%)
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13,585 12,256 1,329 10.84%
16,672 15,994 678 4.24%
11,412 11,368 44 0.39%%

8,051 5,651 2,400 42.47%
5,751 5,788 37) (0.64%)

8,581 6,844 1,737 25.38%

7,183 6,882 301 4.37%

92,369 87,102 5,267 6.05%
(13,504) (12,212) (1,292) 10.58%
78,865 74,890 3,975 5.31%
17,834 17,702 132 0.75%
10,652 10,078 574 5.70%
14,850 14,370 480 3.34%
4,982 5,400 (418) (7.74%)

6,920 4,780 2,140 44.7T%
5,310 5,520 (210) (3.80%)

7,841 6,194 1,647 26.50%
4,254 5,435 (1,181) (21.73%)

72,643 69,479 3,164 4550
(9,791) (10,400) 609 (5.86%)
62,852 59,079 3,773 6.39%

78.728 26.423 50.52
v V. Vv

2023 2022 ()
28,723 7,221 21,502 297.77%
806 2,083 @,277) (61.31%)
49,199 43,001 6,198 14.41%
78,728 52,305 26,423 50.52%

2023 222.933

23.427 11.74
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177.503 8.190 4.84
28.50 0.42
V.
V.
2023 2022
107,872 101,004 6,868 6.80%
44,778 44,730 48 0.11%
24,853 23,579 1,274 5. 40%
13,939 9,090 4,849 53.34%
9,020 7,814 1,206 15.43%
6,994 (3,279) 10,273 N.A.
6,098 6,072 26 0.43%
9,379 10,496 1,117) (10.64%)
222,933 199,506 23,427 11.74%
2023 106.562 2.603
2.50 106.114 13.321
14.36
V. V.17 VI.
2023 49.237 2.321
4.95 16.66
V.10
2023 32,432.166
3,538.618 12.25
29,675.351 3,345.104 12.70
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
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19,476,871 60.05% 17,116,005 59.24%
7,158,717 22.07% 6,435,244 22.27%
2,941,140 9.07% 2,313,859 8.01%
1,735,172 5.35% 1,924,454 6.66%
1,120,266 3.46% 1,103,986 3.82%
32,432,166 100.00% 28,893,548 100.00%
22,907,050 77.19% 20,201,825 76.72%
3,955,659 13.33% 3,622,516 13.76%
1,838,622 6.20% 1,565,840 5.95%

974,020 3.28% 940,066 3.57%
29,675,351 100.00% 26,330,247 100.00%

)
2023 12 31 19,961.779
2,409.018 13.72
16,703.660 2,360.690 16.46
460.011 0.861 0.19
V.17
2023 12 31 485.298
48.057 58.968
30.551
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2021 12 31

10,655,067 53.38% 8,523,463 48.56% 7,161,416 45.58%
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353,163 1.77% 295,121 1.68% 329,463 2.10%

¢ ) (

) «c )

2,289,792 11.47% 2,280,239 12.99% 2,090,365 13.30%
13,298,022 66.62% 11,098,823 63.23% 9,581,244 60.98%
5,827,122 29.19% 5,681,110 32.36% 5,461,645 34.76%
1,532 0.01% 1,089 0.01% 735 0.00%

¢ ) (

) «c )
781,311 3.91% 724,771 4.13% 631,370 4.02%
6,609,965 33.11% 6,406,970 36.50% 6,093,750 38.78%
53,792 0.27% 46,968 0.27% 37,580 0.24%
19,961,779 100.00% 17,552,761 100.00% 15,712,574 100.00%
)
2021
2023 12 31 7,158.717
723.473 11.24 5,441.777
435.599 8.70 242.413
37.223 18.14
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
) )
550,421 7.69% 613,105 9.53%
3,248,113 45.37% 2,500,216 38.85%
3,360,183 46.94% 3,321,923 51.62%
7,158,717 100.00% 6,435,244 100.00%
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
) )
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3,764,329 52.58% 3,382,240 52.56%
167,171 2.34% 168,182 2.61%
714,013 9.98% 609,586 9.47%
396,789 5.54% 411,511 6.40%
199,070 2.78% 247,677 3.85%
152,433 2.13% 152,433 2.37%
5,393,805 75.35% 4,971,629 77.26%
820,426 11.46% 684,529 10.64%
202,019 2.82% 124,638 1.94%
267,218 3.73% 204,373 3.17%
138,133 1.93% 130,322 2.02%
1,427,796 19.94% 1,143,862 17.77%
337,116 4.71% 319,753 4.97%
7,158,717 100.00% 6,435,244 100.00%
)
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
) )
5,441,777 76.2% 5,006,178 77.79%
1,023,152 14.29% 832,757 12.94%
372,320 5.20% 295,346 4.59%
321,468 4.49% 300,963 4.68%
10
2019 22,947 3.48% 2029-01-08
2019 21,328 3.65% 2029-05-21
2022 15,620 2.82% 2027-06-17
2023 15,573 2.87% 2028-02-06
2018 15,269 4.88% 2028-02-09
2019 14,461 3.74% 2029-07-12
2022 13,435 2.50% 2027-08-24
2019 13,325 3.75% 2029-01-25

82/590



EDINETOOOO

DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

oOoOooodn

2018 12,710 4.98% 2025-01-12
2019 12,642 3.86% 2029-05-20
)
2023 12 31
22,907.050 2,705.225
13.39 18,282.470
2,403.036 15.13 652.940
32.317 5.21
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
) )
5,639,238 24.62% 5,370,057 26.58%
5,592,463 24.41% 4,462,328 22.09%
298,621 1.30% 328,602 1.63%
11,530,322 50.33% 10,160,987 50.30%
3,782,330 16.51% 3,757,373 18.60%
6,662,417 29.09% 5,384,034 26.65%
235,724 1.03% 255,289 1.26%
10,680,471 46.63% 9,396,696 46.51%
310,212 1.35% 290,082 1.44%
386,045 1.69% 354,060 1.75%
22,907,050 100.00% 20,201,825 100.00%
4,848,957 25.56% 4,614,933 27.88%
4,274,946 22.53% 3,246,549 19.62%
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273,167 1.44% 299,839 1.81%
9,397,070 49.53% 8,161,321 49.31%
3,203,911 16.8% 3,097,561 18.72%
5,813,425 30.64% 4,713,810 28.48%
210,940 1.11% 246,813 1.49%
9,228,276 48.64% 8,058,184 48.69%
348,871 1.83% 331,027 2.00%
18,974,217 100.00% 16,550,532 100.00%

2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
) ) )
8,734,967 38.13% 7,532,878 37.29% 6,949,089 38.30%
662,103 2.89% 628,443 3.11% 746,501 4.12%
2,133,252 9.31% 1,999,666 9.90% 1,899,896 10.47%
11,530,322 50.33% 10,160,987 50.30% 9,595,486 52.89%
8,926,078 38.97% 7,752,565 38.38% 6,635,794 36.58%
302,198 1.32% 305,619 1.51% 293,935 1.62%
1,452,195 6.34% 1,338,512 6.62% 1,157,382 6.38%
10,680,471 46.63% 9,396,696 46.51% 8,087,111 44 58%
310,212 1.35% 290,082 1.44% 160,419 0.88%
386,045 1.69% 354,060 1.75% 299,871 1.65%
22,907,050 100.00% 20,201,825 100.00% 18,142,887 100.00%

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
) )
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18,282,470 79.81% 15,879,434 78.60%
2,131,110 9.30% 2,028,393 10.04%
1,457,624 6.44% 1,360,104 6.73%
1,017,846 4._.45% 933,894 4.63%
2023 2,756.815 193.514
7.55
(1) 2023 246.371
231.904
@) 30.0
(€)) 2022 68.298
O 5.162 10.058
V.16
V.41

2023
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2023 12 31 2,516.725
425.259
2023 21.855
816.446
539.428 527.704
119.862 66.815
(G « )
)
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
393,064 401,927 48,903 38,658 22,451 18,385 2,127 296 466,545 459,266
101,000 84,584 55,864  38,174842 7,333 7,009 (6.604) (3,240) 157,503 127,195
62,852 59,079 13,096 13,385 5,223 4,278 (2,306) (1,852) 78,865 74,890
(176,593) (166,352) (40, 466) (27,679) (8,849) (8,043) 2,975 2,568 (222,933) (199,506)
(88,124) (89,949) (11,086) (11,360) (7.352) (2,650) (106,562) (103,959)
229,858 230,637 53,669 38,679 13,583 14,701 (1,502) (376) 295,608 283,641
26,470,195 23,377,029 5,228,040 4,949,867 2,372,795 2,347,203  (1,638,864)  (1,780,551) 32,432,166 28,893,548
24,246,297 21,329,365 4,777,839 4,509,283 2,288,051 2,271,615  (1,636,836)  (1,780,016) 29,675,351 26,330,247
2023 12 31 26,470.195
3,093.166 13.23 77.69 2023
229.858 0.779 0.34
77.3
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)
2023 5,228.040
278.173 5.62 15.34
2023 53.669 14.990
38.75 18.06
2023 2,372.795
25.592 1.09 6.97 2023
13.583 1.118 7.60
4.57
2023 2022
) )
577,573 92.54% 558,593 95.25%
254,758 40.82% 223,359 38.09%
272,236 43.62% 244,950 41.77%
50,579 8.10% 90,284 15.39%
28,236 4.52% 11,963 2.04%
18,329 2.94% 15,905 2.71%
624,138 100.00% 586,461 100.00%
V.44
1 i

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
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18,126 12,333 5,793
336,184 398,100 (61,916)
112,434 112,582 (148)
101,803 102,423 (620)
718,776 587,256 131,520
3,215,983 2,473,380 742,603
32,130 26,836 5,294
146,750 152,033 (5.283)
(135,973) (135,838) (135)
(3.798) (3,798)
(47,657) (36,701) (10,956)
(2,118) (2,080) (38)
(54,264) (53,868) (396)

Regulatory Guidelines on Valuation of Financial Instruments in Commercial
Banks Guidelines on Market Risk Management in

Commercial Banks CAS IFRS BIS

Valuation Policy of Financial Instrument Fair Values of Bank of China Limited

VI.

IFRS CAS

2023 14
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SMEs

2023
68,000 68,000
610.0

)
NFRA

BOC-
BOC +

2023 Global Finance

Asiamoney Financial Times China Securities Journal
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[ ]
UoP
ESG
2023
3,106.7 56.34
)
€Y
) NFRA
° 2023 2.4 30.0
the Belt and Road
341.658
29.760
2023 100.0
NAFMI I
° BOC
10
2023
BOCHK
ETF
BOC 17
51.371
BOCIM
ESG
ESG 3.214
CITIC ESG

BOC 109 272.2
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BOCL 24.011
43.79
BOC
BoCl 11
4.215
BOCI 30.175
BOC
33.539 42 .54
BOC- 4.247
2023
PRB
TCFD
PRB
the Belt and Road GIP
SMI
28
COoP28
14
100

100
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20
310
Initiative and Guide on Green

Actions of Bank of China

ESG
[
BOC BOC E-
2,800 2023
1,758.543
43.17
3.54
)
2023
[2023 ] 42
[ ]
2023 270.0
47,000

32.44
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99
CIIE
10
BOC
2023
240,000
2023
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819 13.31
2023 8,776 2023
17.46 54.88
2023 CBN
BOC E-
BOC e-
40
6.0
2023 56

14 30

12
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BAMBOO
SIM
2023
481.780 7.399
1.56
2023 2022
)
206,356 42.83% 190,147 40.08%
244,640 50.78% 227,269 47.91%
31,925 6.63% 59,721 12.59%
(1,141) (0.24%) (2,756) (0.58%)
481,780 100.00% 474,381 100.00%
2023 206.356
16.209 8.52

2023 12 31
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8,734.736 1,202.022 15.96
93.482 3.248
3.60
2023 12 31
10,600.051 2,124.380 25.06
49.823 7.449 17.58

30.94
74.35 28.05
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14 102

ESG
Bank of China Work Plan to

Support New Industrialisation

25
Bank of China Action Plan to Support Private Enterprises to ““Go
Global~~

2023 AVIC

Bank of China Linkage

Plan of Benefiting and Empowering Small and Micro Enterprises

1,200
112 1,464
CIPS
626

QFI
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CIBM

CIFTIS
CIFIT

BOC

BOC
2023
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AllB NDB

CIBM

3.4
CIIE
CICPE

90

BOC
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Outstanding Participating Institution of Digital Supply Chain

Financial Service Platform Award

Outstanding Comprehensive Business

Institution Best RMB Bank Best Supply Chain
Finance Bank Best Cash Management Bank
2023 2.66 28.53
260.0 15,000
BOC
BOC BOC E- BOC
people.cn 2023 Excellent Cases of Inclusive Finance
Innovation Model Award Typical Cases of Inclusive Finance in China
(2023)
2023 19
CIIE
CIFTIS CIFIT -
BOC E-
2023 126 50,000
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54.0
2023 2098 8600
412.37
9,923 9,000
18,200
2023 12 31
39.643 23.29
0.2249 5.77
85.788 9.46
2023
244 .640 17.371

CBN 2023
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10,000
396 4300 23.29
224.9 5.77
857 8,800 9.46
209.886
4.1237
992.390
18,200
2023
525 3.80
7.64

10
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2023 13

BOC
43

2023
14.29
8,162
1,109

China Fund Yinghua Awards Best Fund Sales
Bank for Mutual Funds in 25 Years (Major State-Owned Banks)
Capital Securities Cup 4th Golden Bull Award for Banking Wealth Management Golden
Bull Award for Agent Sales of Wealth Management Products

2023 5,827.122
146.012 2.57

2023 600.0
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BOC
24
72.95
ESOP GBIC
191
2023
173,700 2.69
2023 Best Mega Private Bank in China

Best Mega Private Bank in China

Best Mega Private Bank in China

China Best Mega Private Bank in China
15 100
21
WeChat
2023
39
2023

33.9121
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Best Mega Private Bank in China

Best Mega Private Bank in

169

JegoTrip

25

121.9701



2023 676.5517
4.50 4.22
8.38 2023
1,393.235

82

R
19 CIIE
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551.366
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40
Best RMB Foreign Exchange Market
Maker 2023 Leading
Institution in the Bond Market Northbound Top Market Maker
2023
Outstanding Pioneer Institution in Collateral Business
MSME
ABS M&A

104/590



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn

ABS
M&A
M&A
5.0
2023
4.854
Primary Market Innovation Award (Underwriter)
BOC BOCIM BOCI
BOC BOC BOCI

2023
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239.7 1.72 2023
FOF
75.0
30
2023 17.37 5.19
2023 22
134 189 10.585 109.298
15.379 2023 481
1.77
205.29 2023 72.962
79.520

Inclusive Finance Case (for Banks and

Insurance Companies) Jinrongjie.com 2023 Excellent Case of Financial Services for Rural

Revitalisation 2023 Model Case of

Financial Services for Farmers by Village Banks
Outstanding Lead Sponsor among Village Banks

Excellent Practice Case of Financial Services for Rural Revitalisation (2022-

2023)
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552.134 434.702
2023
19.21
2023
2023 BOC
Bank of China Europe S.A.
BOC
BOC
316.0
13

EU

2023

5.89

44
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6.28 0.88
8.084
64 534
2023 BOC
BOCHK
1,000
List of

Practical Cooperation Deliverables of the Third Belt and Road Forum for International

Cooperation

580.0
28
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ESG

108/590



EDINETOOOO
0000000000 O(E05981)
ooooodn

PTO
2023 Best Project Financing Deal in Southeast Asia
LNG LNG

ACWA Power Bash Dzhankeldy 2 500MW
B BASF Verbund 40

M&A
M&A

M&A

2023 LNG

PF1 2023 Americas Deal of the Year

2023 30 7.00

2023 44,700
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2023

Zhuo Jun Card
BOCHK Card Co., Ltd.

Zhuo Jun Card

2023 Zhuo Jun Card
5x 24 24
2023 32.875
2.562
G3 3.379
810.0

2023 Best QDIl Custodian Bank
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2023 33 15
CIPS CIPS

Action Plan
on Supporting Foreign Economic and Trade Enterprises to Expand Cross-border RMB Use

Cross-border RMB Service Plan for Central Asia

White Paper on RMB Internationalisation

15
2023 12.81 23.28
938.11 26.55
40
2023
56 14
BOC
BOC 6.0
2023 BOC
30 12
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BOCHK
BOCHK
BOCHK
2023 BOCHK 52.864
3,868.783 323.429 34.857
BOCHK BOCHK
BOCHK
ESG BOCHK ETF
BOCHK BOCHK
BOCHK
BOCHK
BOCHK 2030
BOCHK Climate-related Financial Disclosures Report
BOCHK BOCHK
BOCHK
2023
BOCHK
BOCHK
1PO
BOCHK
FPS
BOCHK
BOCHK
BOCHK
BoC BoC

BoC
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BOCHK BOCHK
BOCHK
BOCHK
BOCHK
BOCHK
BOCHK
BOCHK
BOCHK
FPS
CIPS Bank
of China (Thai) Public Company Limited BOCHK
CIPS BOCHK
BOCHK BOCHK
BOCHK
BOCHK

Bank of China (Thai) Public Company Limited Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad BOCHK

e
BOCHK iGTB

Bank of China (Thai) Public Company Limited Bank of China
(Malaysia) Berhad iGTB E BOCHK
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BOCHK BOCHK
BOCHK
BOCHK
BOCHK
BOCHK

BOCHK Bank of the Year in Hong Kong Strongest
Bank in Hong Kong and Asia Pacific Second Strongest Bank in the World Best Retail Bank in
Hong Kong Digital Transformation of the Year
Hong Kong Mobile Banking & Payment Initiative of the Year Hong Kong SME Bank of
the Year Hong Kong Best Chinese Bank for the Greater Bay Area 2023

Best Renminbi Bank Best ESG

Impact Hong Kong SAR

BOCHK BOCHK

2023
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BOCI
BOCI 2023 12 31 BOCI
3.539 68.969 22.326 2023
BOCI 1.400
BOCI
BOCI HKEX 14 1PO
14.3 BOCI 4.215
ESG
ESG
2023 1.701
BOCI ESOP 40
140,000 200 120 ESOP
BOCI
BOCI
BOCI BOCI-Prudential Asset Management Limited MPF
BOCI
16
BOCHK ETF BOCHK BOCI
BOCI Best Bond Advisor - Global (China) IFR China Bond
House of the Year
Commodity Dealer of the Year, Asia BOCI
Research Team Leaders Table (All China) 10
BOCI-Prudential Asset Management Limited 2023
Best Fund over 3 Years Bond Asia Pacific (Local Currency)
BOCI
BOCI 2023 12 31 BOCI
2.778
BOCI
BOCI
BOCI
IPO 2023 BOCI
IPO AA+
BOCI
BOCI

BOCI
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BOCI
Best Bond Underwriting Investment Bank
Underwriting Team
for Comprehensive Wealth Management institution in China
Management Securities Company

Wealth Management Team
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Best Local Investment Bank
Best A-share Bond
Junding Award
Model Asset
Golden Bull Growth
Junding Award for

Investment Advisory Teams in China BOCI 4
Junding Award for Top 20 Securities Business Outlets in China 20
BOCI BOCI Futures Comprehensive
Award for Excellent Members
Boct Bocl
BOCIM
BOCIM 2023 12 31
BOCIM 100 6.299 5.229
2023 BOCIM 702
BOCIM
BOCIM
BOCIM
BOC MSCI China A50 BOC CSI 1000 BOC CSI 500 13
BOCAM CSRC QFII
BOCIM
2023 12 31 BOCIM AuM 574.813
484.628 285.802
BOCIM Golden Bull Award Golden Fund Award
Star Funds Award
BOCIM
BOC
BOC
BOC
2023 12 31 BOC 10.000 17.269
16.614 2023 BOC
1.628
BOC

BOC
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BOC
BOC
BOC
22 30
BOC
2023 12 31 1,631.063
BOCG
BOCG 2023 12 31
BOCG 3.749 9.654
4.625 2023 BOCG 2.140
277
BOCG
BOCG
BOCG
BOCG
BOCG
IFRS 17 ESG BOCG
BOC
BOC 2023 12 31 BOC
3.538 187.069 6.099
BOC 1,127
BOC BOC

BOC BOCHK
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BOC
BOC
BOC
Live Young Rewards
90,000 70
BOC
BOC 2023 12 31
BOC 4.535 12.076 5.321
2023 BOC 6.042 205
BOC
173 81.7
347.6 BOC
BOC
BOC
2023 35 1.59
3.7
BOC A-
BOC people.cn 20th People s Inventive Award
Inventive Service Award people.cn 2023 Excellent Cases of Inclusive Finance
Benefitting the People Award 2023
Excellent Corporate ESG Green Finance Case 21 21
2023 Excellent Property Insurance Company
(D)
2014 A- 2023
BOC-
BOC- 2023 12 31
BOC- 2.467 86.811 954
2023 BOC-
27.639 2.044
BOC-

BOC-
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BOC-
BOC
2 BOC BOC

BOC-

5.964
2023 BOC-
65 9.258
BOC- Excellent Life
Insurance Company BOC- 2023 Annual

Customer Service Ranking 2023 Excellent

Corporate ESG Green Finance Case 2023 Excellent Corporate ESG Rural Revitalisation Case

Gold Reputation Awards Annual Life Insurance Coverage
Product Annual Critical Illness Insurance Coverage Product
BOCG
BOCG BOCG
2023 12 31 BOCG 34.052
137.135 75.153 2023 BOCG
535
14 BOCG
BOCG
M&A
BOCG
NAFMII
BOC
BOC
2023 12 31 BOC 14.500
87.917 23.133 2023 BOC
2.711
BOC

BOC
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BOC
1.158
2023 BOC
BOC
2023 12 31 57
BOC
142
BOC
2023 20
( )
BoC
BOCL
BOCL
57.344
BOCL
81.95
BOCL
BOCL

Financial Leasing Taking Off Award

Strategies
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ooooooo
10
2023 12 31
234 .476 21.633
BOC
2023 12 31 BOC
24.170 5.748
764
BOC
65
2023 BOC
45 91
BOC
2023 12 31 4.6
2023 12 31 BOCL 10.800
11.915 BOCL 704
023 BOCL 88.569
43.79 BOCL
2023 China

Leading Enterprise in Supporting Major
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BOC
BOC
12 31 BOC
9.040 2023
537
BOC
2023 12 31 71.948
62.49 10.25
BOC
BOC
600
BOC
BOC
BOC
IFRS
BOC
BOC
China FinTech 50 List
BOC 2023

Integrated Business and Financial Service Provider
IFRS 17 Innovation China 2023

Financial Innovation Awards
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2023
1.514 74.299
BOC
BOC
16.42
2023 12 31 BOC
1.405 851
17
IDC IDC
TMMi
Best
BOC
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2023 e 374.62 10.31

28

10

19

160
2023 816

8.621 8.27
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2023 54.88 17.46
274.62 87.76
CBN 2023 Mobile Banking
with Best User Experience 19 2023 Most
Trusted Mobile Banking by Customers Best Digital Risk Control
Glory Award Most

Popular Award

2023
10,299 652
534

2023 IT 4.74
14,541 10,299 3.86
2023 22.397
3.60

26,500

SoC
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BOC

16

26

PBOC

loT
1,800

BOC
4,122

AML

28
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2023 12 31
534

38

372

9,888

11,485

10,299

V.20 21
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(€H)
(2023 12 31 )
) W
204,387,791,241 @
1,197,865,300 &
@
(2) A 210,765,514,846 H 83,622,276,395
3) 730,000,000 270,000,000 197,865,300
A
1.00 294,387,791, 241 ;
100.00 1,197,865,300
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www..chinabond.com.cn

2019 27
20
27 20
20
20
4.50 3.07
1.43
2010
@
@
2019 27
27
360
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www .chinabond.com.cn

2019
29 20

29 20

20

20

4.35 2.94
1.41

2010

@

@

2019 29
2019 29

360
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©

@

(b)

NFRA

7.0168

3.6

2010

2021
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30

NFRA

i 1.00
ii

3.31 0.88658
H 2.94
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@
(b)
©
i
ii
¢))
®
A
2019 12 31 - 210,765,514,846 - 210,765,514,846
2020 12 31 - 210,765,514,846 - 210,765,514,846
2021 12 31 - 210,765,514,846 - 210,765,514,846
2022 12 31 - 210,765,514,846 - 210,765,514,846
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2023 12 31 - | 210,765,514,846 - | 210,765,514,846
H

2019 12 31 - 83,622,276,395 - 83,622,276,395
2020 12 31 - 83,622,276,395 - 83,622,276,395
2021 12 31 - 83,622,276,395 - 83,622,276,395
2022 12 31 - 83,622,276,395 - 83,622,276,395
2023 12 31 - 83,622,276,395 - 83,622,276,395
2018 12 31 - 399,400,000 - 39,940,000, 000
2019 10 23 (399,400, 000) 0| (39,940,000,000) 0
2019 12 31 - 0 - 0
2018 12 31 - 320,000,000 - 32,000,000,000
2019 12 31 - 320,000,000 - 32,000,000, 000
2020 11 23 (320,000, 000) 0| (32,000,000,000) 0
2020 12 31 - 0 - 0
2018 12 31 280,000,000 28,000,000,000
2019 12 31 280,000,000 28,000,000,000
2020 12 31 280,000,000 28,000,000,000
2021 15 (280,000, 000) 0| (28,000,000,000) 0
2021 12 31 - 0 - 0
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2019 24 730,000,000 730,000,000 73,000,000,000 73,000,000,000
2019 12 31 - 730,000,000 - 73,000,000,000
2020 12 31 - 730,000,000 - 73,000,000,000
2021 12 31 - 730,000,000 - 73,000,000,000
2022 12 31 - 730,000,000 - 73,000,000,000
2023 12 31 - 730,000,000 - 73,000,000,000
2019 26 270,000,000 270,000,000 27,000,000,000 27,000,000,000
2019 12 31 - 270,000,000 - 27,000,000,000
2020 12 31 - 270,000,000 - 27,000,000,000
2021 12 31 - 270,000,000 - 27,000,000,000
2022 12 31 - 270,000,000 - 27,000,000,000
2023 12 31 - 270,000,000 - 27,000,000,000
2020 197,865,300 197,865,300 19,786,530,000 19,786,530,000
2020 12 31 - 197,865,300 - 19,786,530,000
2021 12 31 - 197,865,300 - 19,786,530,000
2022 12 31 - 197,865,300 - 19,786,530,000
2023 12 31 - 197,865,300 - 19,786,530,000
4
2023 12 31 604,343 A 435,870 H
168,473
2023 12 31 75 77
®)
336 2023 12 31
A H
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188,791,906,533 A 89.57 64.13
1,810,024,500 A 0.86 0.61
190,601,931,033 A 90.43 64.74
10001 4,740,662, 257 H 5.67 1.61
63,935,000 (S) H 0.08 0.02
50
(€Y
H  4,740,662,257 63,935,000
63,935,000 H 29,025,000
@ O
®) 2023 12 31 SFO
336
2023 12 31
2023 12 31 10
1 - 200,000,000 16.70%
10286
2 197,865,300 16.52%
240
3 136,065,000 11.36%
4 105,000,000 8.77%
5 70,000,000 5.84%
005L CTO001
6 JSITC 54,540,000 4 _55%
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7 38,000,000 3.17%
8 34,300,000 2.86%
9 30,000,000 2.50%
717
9 30,000,000 2.50%
@ 2023 12 31
100 197,865,300
0 10
10
102
10
H
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2023

30

2023

2024

2023

10
50
2023
A
2022
A

30
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10 2.364

2024 17 H
10 2.32
2023
68.298

2023
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2023

2022 10 28

2023
101.5 3.60
2023 28
3.285
4.50 2023 27 1.1745
4.35 2023 29

2024
101.5 3.60
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2023
Best Practice Case for Board of Directors of Listed Companies
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2023

11 28

18

12 27

19

69
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14

)

28 28 30 30 10
21
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(GE Haijiao)

. 11 13
(LIU Jin)
i 11 13
(LIN Jingzhen)
(ZHANG Yong)
. 13 13
(ZHANG Jiangang)
. 13 13
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12
1 3
5,305 103 300 5,708
(150) 150
766 766
1,348 (¢2)) 1,326
10 @ 8
6,513 995 300 7,808
2022
12
1 3
5,771 4 500 6,275
(40) 40
58 58
(434) 1 (200) (633)
8 8
5,305 103 300 5,708
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12 31

.43.4

BOC

2023 12 31
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)
12 31
2023 2022
38,304 35,769
1,241 2,717
(150) (281)
965 645
(835) (850)
25 304
39,550 38,304
)
12 31
2023 2022
12,196 11,889
5,762 5,484
3,902 4,227
1,828 1,800
1,809 1,731
1,781 1,558
1,517 1,471
1,446 1,531
1,035 1,002
853 842
7,421 6,769
39,550 38,304
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20
( )
2023 12 31
128,609 76,543 166,450 371,602
332 5,405 6,751 12,488
.22) 213 213
.21) 2,946 534 3,736 7,216
(2,161) (6,984) (10,002) (19,147)
499 138 2,740 3,377
12 31 130,438 75,636 169,675 375,749
(49,222) (61,115) (25,909) (136,246)
(4,200) (6,545) (5,562) (16,307)
1,786 6,731 2,175 10,692
( .22) 24 24
(164) (123) (459) (746)
12 31 (51,776) (61,052) (29,755) (142,583)
727) (7,853) (8,580)
® (62) (63)
8 2,720 2,728
4 (120) (116)
12 31 (716) (5,315) (6,031)
78,660 15,428 132,688 226,776

12 31 77,946 14,584 134,605 227,135
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12 31

12 31

12 31

2023 12 31

2023 12 31
12 31 4,783
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( )
2022 12 31

124,989 73,497 146,901 345,387

136 6,115 7,250 13,501

.22) 406 406
.21) 2,690 520 9,054 12,264
(1,613) (4,188) (10,046) (15,847)

2,001 599 13,291 15,891

128,609 76,543 166,450 371,602

(45,518) (58,364) (20,022) (123,904)

(4,056) (6,290) (5,289) (15,635)

887 4,030 1,367 6,284

.22) 11 11
(546) (491) (1,965) (3,002)

(49,222) (61,115) (25,909) (136,246)

(740) (1,617) (2,357)

(5,944) (5,944)

16 25 4

®) 317) (320)

727) (7,853) (8,580)

78,731 15,133 125,262 219,126

78,660 15,428 132,688 226,776

BOC
134,605 2022 12 31 132,688
BOC 689 2022
( 32 )
2023 12 31
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12 31

12 31

12 31

50
10
10

50
10
10

50

50

20)
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( )
12 31
2023 2022
4,232 4,155
8,911 9,029
13,143 13,184
6,664 6,208
50,721 52,509
7,418 6,759
64,803 65,476
77,946 78,660
( )
12 31
2023 2022

19,840 27,192
8,043 6,663
(7,216) (12,264)
(284) (3.320)
171 1,569
20,554 19,840
@27 @27)

19
(208) @27)
19,613 26,965
20,346 19,613
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22

12 31

BOC

2023 12 31
10,089

2023 12 31

50
10 50

50
10 50
10

.20

BOC

BOCHK
9,829
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( )
12 31
2023 2022
23,311 19,554
200 2,995
@37) (417)
@73) (58)
(632) )
335 1,244
22,704 23,311
BOCHK
BOCG
BOCG
2022 12 31 10,768 9,764
( )
12 31
2023 2022

3,019 3,103
7,001 7,441
10,020 10,544
4,378 4,429
7,153 7,633
1,153 705
12,684 12,767
22,704 23,311
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23
( )
12 31
2023 2022
@ 83,359 48,252
@ 44,674 49,383
® 18,958 19,709
® 20,702 19,036
® 5,713 5,770
3,556 3,425
® 3,152 2,153
™ 2,685 2,651
1,240 749
36,871 30,264
220,910 181,392
(€]
( )
12 31
2023 2022
87,984 52,916
(4,625) (4,664)
83,359 48,252
( )
12 31
2023 2022
1 82,220 @372 39,407 (195)
13 1,206 (431) 4,877 (1,371)
3 4,468 (3.822) 8,632 (3,098)
87,984 (4,625) 52,916 (4,664)

@




®

12 31

12 31

11
12 31
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( )
12 31
2023 2022

38,826 397 39,223 36,447 232 36,679
5,874 101 5,975 6,952 193 7,145
(5,895) (30) (5,925) (5,118) (31) (5.149)
241 1 242 545 3 548
39,046 469 39,515 38,826 397 39,223
(19,320) (194)  (19,514)  (16,265) (93)  (16,358)
(6,407) (132) (6,539) (6,669) (130) (6,799)
5,532 29 5,561 3,804 31 3,835
(65) (65) (190) Q@) (192)
(20,260) (297)  (20,557)  (19,320) (194)  (19,514)
19,506 203 19,709 20,182 139 20,321
18,786 172 18,958 19,506 203 19,709
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12 31

12 31

12 31

11
12 31

2023 12 31

31

EDINETOOOO
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( )
12 31
2023 2022

47,888 40,377

8,136 7,013

(1,151) (135)

132 633

55,005 47,888

(28,842) (23,447)

(6,209) (5.,072)

853 119

(€])) (442)

(34,292) (28,842)
(10)

@ ®

@

(11) (10)

19,036 16,930

20,702 19,036

5,163
4,034 2023 12
8,677 2022 12 31 7,546
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®
C D
50
10 50
10
©
2023 12 31
)
2023 12 31
2023 12 31
Q)
11
12 31
2006 BOC

828
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ooooooo
( )
12 31
2023 2022
54 56
5,090 5,128
569 586
5,713 5,770
3,152 (2022 12 31 : 2,153
(2022 12 31 :886 )
644 2022 232
( )
12 31
2023 2022
2,651 2,481
34 170
2,685 2,651
241 1,705
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( )

2023 2023

11 12 31

/

436,756 106,213 (59,611) 1,550 484,908
485 (99) 4 390
437,241 106,114 (59,611) 1,554 485,298
9,887 934 (124) 10,697
5,708 2,002 8 7,808
15,595 3,026 (116) 18,505
55,753 (2.578) (4,438) 286 49,023
508,589 106,562 (64,049) 1,724 552,826
( )

2022 2022

11 12 31

/
390,090 92,769 (50,863) 4,760 436,756
451 24 10 485
390,541 92,793 (50,863) 4,770 437,241
9,678 154 55 9,887
6,275 (575) 8 5,708
15,953 (421) 63 15,595
43,760 11,587 (434) 840 55,753
450,254 103,959 (51,297) 5,673 508,589
( )
12 31
2023 2022

419,953 409,250

1,552,016 1,506,452

208,620 248,486

56,632 69,920

2,237,221 2,234,108

247/590
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8,141

6,215

2,245,362

2,240,323




26
27
BOCHK
)
C )
BOCHK
28
¢ ) « ) « )
¢ ) C ) C )
o
€))
Q)
®
29
2023 2022 12 31

EDINETOOOO
0000000000 O(E05981)

ooooooo
( )
12 31
2023 2022
1,226,588 909,223
8,732 6,635
1,235,320 915,858
« ) (
( )
12 31
2023 2022
136,070 306,835
1,450 10,350
317,463 138,142
17,081 9,614
472,064 464,941
2,913 1,394
474,977 466,335
( )
12 31
2023 2022
86,693 137,894
.41.2
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30
( )
12 31
2023 2022
5,639,238 5,370,057
3,782,330 3,757,373
9,421,568 9,127,430
5,592,463 4,462,328
6,662,417 5,384,034
12,254,880 9,846,362
W
208,621 328,602
235,724 255,289
534,345 583,891
310,212 290,082
@ 81,830 92,375
22,602,835 19,940,140
304,215 261,685
® 22,907,050 20,201,825
(€H)
2023 12 31 47,657
(2022 12 31 36,701 ) 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 2022
)
2023 12 31 25 30
0.15%  7.92% 2022 12 31  0.15%  7.92%
®) 2023 12 31 585,801

2022 12 31 471,382
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31
( )
12 31
2023 2022

Tier2
2014 Tier2 ® 2014 11 13 2024 11 13 5.00% 21,231 20,862
2018 Tier2

@ 2018 9 3 2028 9 5 4.86% 39,984
2018 Tier2

® 2018 10 9 2028 10 11 4.84% 39,987
2019 Tier2

01 2019 9 20 2029 9 24 3.98% 29,990 29,990
2019 Tier2

02 2019 9 20 2034 9 24 4.34% 9,996 9,996
2019 Tier2

® 2019 11 20 2029 11 22 4.01% 29,993 29,992
2020 Tier2

01" 2020 9 17 2030 9 21 4.20% 59,975 59,975
2020 Tier2

02® 2020 9 17 2035 9 21 4.47% 14,994 14,994
2021 Tier2

01® 2021 3 17 2031 3 19 4.15% 14,995 14,995
2021 Tier2

02419 2021 3 17 2036 3 19 4.38% 9,996 9,996
2021 Tier2

01D 2021 11 12 2031 11 16 3.60% 39,989 39,989
2021 Tier2

022 2021 11 12 2036 11 16 3.80% 9,997 9,997
2022 Tier2

a3 2022 1 20 2032 1 24 3.25% 29,993 29,992
2022 Tier2

01 2022 10 24 2032 10 26 3.02% 44,993 44,993
2022 Tier2

0219 2022 10 24 2037 10 26 3.34% 14,998 14,998
2023 Tier2

01¢® 2023 3 20 2033 3 22 3.49% 39,995
2023 Tier2

021" 2023 3 20 2038 3 22 3.61% 19,998
2023 Tier2

01® 2023 9 19 2033 9 21 3.25% 29,995
2023 Tier2

0219 2023 9 19 2038 9 21 3.37% 29,995
2023 Tier2

0149 2023 10 19 2033 10 23 3.43% 44,993
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2023 Tier2
02(21)

2023 Tier2
01(22)

2023 Tier2
02

24
(25)

(26)

@n

2023 10 19

2023 12 1

2023 12 1

2038 10 23

2033 12 5

2038 12 5

252/590

3.53%

3.30%

3.37%
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24,996

14,998

14,998
551,108 410,740
192,057 195,391
221,829 190,939
30,382 33,614
444,268 419,944
794,294 699,468
1,789,670 1,530,152
2,118 2,080
1,791,788 1,532,232
10,658 8,703
1,802,446 1,540,935




@

&)

®

*

®

©)

)

©)

C))

(10)

an

12)

13)

14)

(15)

(16)

an

(18)

2014 11 13

2018 9 3
4.86%

2018 10 9
4.84%

2019 9 20

3.98%

2019 9 20
4.34%

2019 11 20
4.01%

2020 9 17
4.20%

2020 9 17
4.47%

2021 3 17
4.15%

2021 3 17
4.38%

2021 11 12
3.60%

2021 11 12
3.80%

2022 1 20
3.25%

2022 10 24
3.02%

2022 10 24
3.34%

2023 3 20
3.49%

2023 3 20
3.61%

2023 9 19
3.25%

3,000

40,000

40,000

30,000

10,000

30,000

60,000

15,000

15,000

10,000

40,000

10,000

30,000

45,000

15,000

40,000

20,000

30,000

Tier2

Tier2

Tier2

Tier2

Tier2

Tier2

Tier2

Tier2

Tier2

Tier2

Tier2

Tier2

Tier2

Tier2

Tier2

Tier2

Tier2

Tier2
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5.00

10
2023 9 5

10
2023 10 11

10

15

10

10

15

10

15

10

15

10

10

15

10

15

10



(19) 2023 9 19 30,000 Tier2
3.37%
(20) 2023 10 19 45,000 Tier2
3.43%
21 2023 10 19 25,000 Tier2
3.53%
(22) 2023 12 1 15,000 Tier2
3.30%
(23) 2023 12 1 15,000 Tier2
3.37%
24) Tier2
(25) 2014 2023
( ) ( ) ( ) 2024 2033
(26)
2023 12 31 2,118
31 2,080 ) 2023 2022 12 31
2023 2022
(27) 2023 2022 12 31
32
BOC
.20
2023 12 31 2 5
2022 12 31 4.02% 6.03%
2023 2022 12 31

254/590
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15

10

15

10

15

(2022 12

6.26% 6.47%
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33
( )
12 31
2023 2022
51,180 50,192
6,476 6,965
647 554
269 325
731 921
59,303 58,957
34
2023 12 31 2003 12 31
1,589 2022 12 31 1,713 87 2022 12 31 129
( )
12 31
2023 2022
11 1,842 2,095
48 54
41 (9%9)
(73) (213)
12 31 1,676 1,842
12 31
2023 2022
2.50% 2.75%
2.25% 2.50%
3.0% 3.0%
3.0% 3.0%
8.0% 8.0%
60 60
50 55 50 55
(China Life Insurance Mortality Table)(
)
2023 2022 12 31
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35

10

25%

12
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2005 11



36
36.1
36.2
2023 12 31
(2022 12 31

199,915

EDINETOOOO
0000000000 O(E05981)

OooooOodd

( )

12 31

2023 2022
C ) « )
296,050 75,156 278,548 71,139
(55,920) (7,397) (53,467) (6,804)
240,130 67,759 225,081 64,335
C )

( )

12 31

2023 2022
C ) « D
319,479 79,510 306,972 76,005
37,502 9,359 32,054 7,992
125,953 31,396 106,246 26,171
13,009 2,780 21,919 4,868
73,198 16,387 52,382 11,906
569,141 139,432 519,573 126,942
(126,838) (31,581) (137,985) (34,253)
(47,421) (11,652) (24,777) (6,194)
(46,905) (5,820) (46,251) (5,378)
(10,933) (2,104) (10,369) (1,955)
(96,914) (20,516) (75,110) (14,827)
(329,011) (71,673) (294,492) (62,607)
240,130 67,759 225,081 64,335
214,236
.19.2

257/590



36.3

.10

12 31

36.4
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( )
12 31
2023 2022
64,335 44,693
10,599 13,288
(7,012) 6,343
(163) 11
67,759 64,335
( )
12 31
2023 2022
3,505 7,629
7,897 2,455
1,367 1,754
(2,170) 1,450
10,599 13,288
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37
( )
12 31
2023 2022
257,625 222,939
63,547 67,875
) 52,117 46,657
@ 18,797 19,621
® 31,778 32,844
6,865 6,579
81,431 89,339
512,158 485,854
(€]
( )
2023 2023
11 12 31
38,842 76,250 (70,253) 44,839
- 4,871 (4,870) i}
1,358 4,388 (4,269) 1,477
257 6,914 (6,922) 249
12 4,114 (4,116) 10
7 245 (246) 6
2 98 @7 3
3 119 (118) 4
51 5,451 (5,441) 61
5,374 1,911 (2,315) 4,970
25 21 3L 15
726 5,437 (5,680) 483
M 46,657 109,819 (104, 359) 52,117
(
2022 2022
11 12 31
31,051 72,158 (64,367) 38,842
- 5,017 (5,017) 3
1,525 3,600 (3,857) 1,358
230 6,420 (6,393) 257
10 3,829 (3.827) 12
6 216 (215) 7
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O]

(i) 2023
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2 86 (86) 2

3 109 (109) 3

30 5,117 (5,096) 51
6,126 1,152 (1,904) 5,374
23 25 (23) 25

679 4,908 (4,861) 726
39,685 102,727 (95,755) 46,657

2022 12 31
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®

12 31

@

)/

@
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( )
12 31
2023 2022
6,585 6,257
10,297 10,740
7,656 8,507
24,538 25,504
18,797 19,621
( )
12 31
2023 2022
30,917 31,602
859 1,242
31,776 32,844
12 31
2023 2022
32,844 26,343
(808) 6,199
G374) (63)
114 365
31,776 32,844
2023 2022 12 31



38
38.1
A 1 1.00
H 1 1.00
A H
38.2
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12 31
2023 2022
210,765,514,846 210,765,514,846
83,622,276,395 83,622,276,395
294,387,791,241 294,387,791,241
( )
12 31
2023 2022
133,632 133,634
2,104 2,125
135,736 135,759
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OOooOoOoOoo
38.3
2023
( )
2023 1 1 « ) 2023 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
( y ® 730.0 73,000 730.0 73,000
( y @ 270.0 27,000 270.0 27,000
( )y ® 197.9 19,787 197.9 19,787
1,197.9 119,787 1,197.9 119,787
2019
( y @ 40,000 40,000
2020
( ) ® 40,000 40,000
2020
( ) ) 30,000 30,000
2020
( y P 20,000 20,000
2021
( y ® 50,000 50,000
2021
( y ® 20,000 20,000
2022
( yO 30,000 30,000
2022
( D 20,000 20,000
2023
( y 42 30,000 30,000
250,000 30,000 280,000
369,787 30,000 399,787
2023 12 31 110 (202 12 31
108 )
(1) 2019 6 24 73,000
100 730
5 4,500 5
2024 6 27 CBIRC
@ 2019 8 26 27,000
100 270 5

4.35% 5

263/590



®
100 1
2,820
12.15%
CBIRC
CBIRC
Q)
2019 1 29
4.50% 5
®
2020 4 30
3.40% 5
©
2020 11 17
4.55% 5
Q)
2020 12 14
4.706 5
®
2021 5 19
4.08% 5
©))
2021 11 29
3.64% 5
10)
2022 4 12
3.65% 5
an
2022 4 28
3.65% 5

2024 8

2020 3 4

97,865,300

2025

2019

2020

2020

2020

2021

2021

2022

2022

29

3.60%(

3 4

11 13

12 10

11 25
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CBIRC
Q 7.0168 )
2023 12 31
Tierl
40,000
100 5
40,000
100 5
30,000
100 5
20,000
100 5
50,000
100 5
20,000
100 5
30,000
100 5
20,000
100 5
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(12 2023 6 14 30,000
2023 6 16 100 5
3.27% 5
5
CBIRC
CBIRC
Tierl
Tierl
( )
12 31
2023 2022
2,629,510 2,423,973
2,230,005 2,054,468
399,505 369,505
127,305 139,328
120,712 112,076
6,593 27,252
39
39.1
10%
50%
25%
2024 3 28 2023 12 31 10% 20,824
2022 20,494
C ) C ) C )
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39.2
MOF [2012] 20
1.5%
5
2024 3 28 2023 12 31 2023
12 31 40,468 2022 32,264
BOC BOCHK

2023 2022 12 31 BOCHK 4,939
4,186
39.3
2022 12 31 68,298 2023 6 30
2023 12 31 2023 12 31 2023 12 31

0 2.364 2022 0 2.32 69,593
2023 4 28 3 4 2
2023 6 27 3 3,285 2023 8 29
4 1,174.5 2024 3 4 2
101.5 2023 12 31
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2023 1 29 2019

2023 4 12 2022

2023 4 28 2022

2023 5 4 2020

2023 5 19 2021

2023 11 17 2020

2023 11 29 2021

2023 12 14 2020

40

BOC

BOC

41

41.1

2023 12 31

41.2
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1,800
1,095
730
1,360
2,040
1,365
728
940
( )
12 31
2023 2022
91,000 103,926
12,400 13,195
12,776 12,254
11,129 9,953
127,305 139,328
2023 12 31
859 (2022 12 31 1,242
( )
12 31
2023 2022
1,450,062 1,084,236
638 281
1,450,700 1,084,517
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41.3
2023 12 31
23,498 (2022 12 31 130,147 ) 2023 12 31
665 2022
12 31 761
41.4
@
(
12 31
2023 2022
90,133 82,420
4,198 2,124
4,414 3,455
65 264
552 504
99,362 88,767
) Banco Maltiplo S/A
2023 12 31 Banco Multiplo S/A ccB
CCB 564 817
CCB Brazil Financial Holding Investimentos e Participacdes Ltda. ccB
540 ( 764 )
2024 1 31
V.50
41.5
BOC
(
12 31
2023 2022
1 14,406 13,648
1 2 14,347 14,327
2 3 13,940 13,565
3 4 13,217 12,816
4 5 12,865 12,060
5 45,727 51,028
114,502 117,444

268/590



EDINETOOOO
0000000000 O(E05981)

OOooOoOoOoo
41.6
MOF
MOF
2023 12 31 42,677
2022 12 31 45,563 3 5
41.7
( )
12 31
2023 2022
)
492,790 394,771
2,952,967 2,430,689
1,027,823 1,067,259
@
33,692 48,176
1,164,180 1,140,893
649,385 574,425
107,952 90,646
51,083 56,048
61,279 79,362
253,054 275,670
® 6,794,205 6,157,939
(@)
2023 12 31 475,271
2022 12 31 380,483
)
(©))
( )
12 31
2023 2022
1,355,511 1,325,999
41.8
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
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42
3
( )
12 31
2023 2022
483,116 640,003
1,257,651 758,494
528,317 504,145
247,641 188,824
2,516,725 2,001,466
43
43.1CIC 2007 9 29 1,550,000 cIc
ciIc
cIc
43.2
@
828,209
64.13%
64.13%
911000007109329615
@
( )
12 31
2023 2022
25,257 20,783
12,000 14,000
(14,842) (8,001)

888 881
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©)
( )
12 31
2023 2022
138,515 173,096
214,458 211,275
566,220 522,111
9,354 10,347
82,169 80,993
(595,608) (356,333)
(157,657) (201,668)
(10,537) (10,118)
39,725 50,353
24,686 17,249
(16,782) (9,568)
0.00%-10.82% 0.00%-10.07%
-0.18%-23.00% -0.49%-23.00%
0.00%-6.83% 0.00%-5.98%
0.90%-6.82% 0.15%-6.00%
0.00%-6.45% -0.50%-5.47%
-0.25%-8.33% -0.51%-4.80%
43.3
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( )
12 31
2023 2022
18,158 21,342
(19,772) (24,557)
27,497 27,450
673 717
(395) (490)
() )
45,000
91110102MAOLW7X36U 25.70  25.70 47,458 3,073 2,653
BOC
(
2,778
913100007366503646 33.42  33.42 @ @ 0
20,000
91210800121119657C  8.86 (1) @ @ @
88,500
91310000MALFL7AXXR  9.04 (1) 23,662 332 130
100
91110000717827478Q 20.00  20.00 9,910 1,122 1,39%
2,400
91310000MALH3FMI5L  75.00 @ 2,386 @
1,568
91510500711880825C 16.44 @ @ @ @
0.0025
80.00 @ 1,831 62 (110)
11,150
91110102MA7LE7UA7T  8.97  8.97 11,552 1,902 315
1" 0.00002
50.00 50.00 578 107 56
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2023 12 31
(2022 12 31 :577.44

43.6

2023 2022 12 31

@

(1) 2023 12 31

43.7

43.8
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OooooOodd
393.65
232.65 (2022 12 31 :200.44 )
2023 2022 12 31
( )
12 31
2023 2022
13 15
1 1
14 16
2023
2023 12 31
(2022 12 31 11 )
( )
12 31
2023 2022
54,648 38,874
289,431 318,632
(177,043) (255,912)
(83,253) (56,167)
7,768 4,090
(5,531) (2,452)
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Q)] Q)]
o
BOCHK 2001 34,806 100.00  100.00
Bocl ® 1998 3,539 100.00  100.00
BOCG 1992 3,749 100.00  100.00
BOCG 1093 34,052 100.00  100.00
BOC 2022 13,000 100.00  100.00
BOCUK 2007 250 100.00  100.00
BOC 2005 4,535 100.00  100.00
BOC 2017 14,500 100.00  100.00
2019 10,000 100.00  100.00
2020 10,800 92.59  92.59
BOCHK @ 2001 52,864 66.06  66.06
BocHK® 1964 43,043 66.06  100.00
1980 565 66.06  100.00
® 1997 200 77.60  100.00
BOC @ 1993 1,158 70.00  70.00
(@)
(2) BOCHK BOC
®) 66.06% 100% BOCHK
66% 34%
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2023 12 31
( )
C ) C ) C )
BOCHK

836,222 108,745 55,653 164,398 104,565 (56,334) 1,048,851
(443,158) (68,628) (46,867) (115,495) (82,114) 58,461 (582,306)
393,064 40,117 8,786 48,903 22,451 2,127 466,545
72,643 11,031 6,241 17,272 7,760 (5,306) 92,369
9,791) (2,802) (1,374) (4,176) (2,537) 3,000 (13,504)
62,852 8,229 4,867 13,096 5,223 (2,306) 78,865
13,256 15,469 590 16,059 1,705 2,297) 28,723
697 (1,323) 1,329 6 103 - 806
24,195 1,687 25,016 26,703 302 (2,001) 49,199
494,064 64,179 40,588 104,767 29,784 4,477) 624,138
(176,59) (20,053) (20,413) (40,466) (8,849) 2,075 (222,933)
(88,124) (5,706) (5,380) (11,086) (7,352) - (106,562)
229,347 38,420 14,795 53,215 13,583 (1,502) 294,643
511 (198) 652 454 - - 965
229,858 38,222 15,447 53,669 13,583 (1,502) 295,608
(49,237)
246,371
26,447,373 3,474,132 1,737,180 5,211,312 2,372,795 (1,638,864) 32,392,616
22,822 1,196 15,532 16,728 - - 39,550
26,470,195 3,475,328 1,752,712 5,228,040 2,372,795 (1,638,864) 32,432,166
115,120 27,191 180,959 208,150 8,659 (4,878) 327,051
24,246,297 3,205,141 1,572,698 4,777,839 2,288,051 (1,636,836) 29,675,351
2,721 (1,604) 11,550 9,946 (14,794) 2,127 -
1,030 (130) 1,478 1,348 72 (2,306) -
15,462 1,626 12,643 14,269 268 - 29,999
21,707 1,774 6,929 8,703 830 (824) 30,416
5,788,568 304,618 171,952 476,570 677,167 (148,100) 6,794,205
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2022 12 31

( )
C ) C ) C )
BOCHK

776,811 52,711 29,787 82,498 44,366 (22,827) 880,848
(374,884) (21,311) (22,529) (43,840) (25,981) 23,123 (421,582)
401,927 31,400 7,258 38,658 18,385 296 459,266
69,479 10,707 5,695 16,402 6,503 (5,282) 87,102
(10,400) (2,297) (720) (3,017) (2,225) 3,430 (12,212)
59,079 8,410 4,975 13,385 4,278 (1,852) 74,890
1,840 2,887 (98) 2,789 2,604 12) 7,221
4,971 (3,327) 448 (2.879) ©) - 2,083
18,694 1,844 23,703 25,547 136 (1,376) 43,001
486,511 41,214 36,286 77,500 25,394 (2,944) 586,461
(166,352) (8,892) (18,787) (27,679) (8,043) 2,568 (199,506)
(89,949) (2,026) (9,334) (11,360) (2,650) - (103,959)
230,210 30,296 8,165 38,461 14,701 (376) 282,996
427 (260) 478 218 - - 645
230,637 30,036 8,643 38,679 14,701 (376) 283,641
(46,916)
236,725
23,354,353 3,245,020 1,689,219 4,934,239 2,347,203  (1,780,551) 28,855,244
22,676 378 15,250 15,628 - - 38,304
23,377,029 3,245,398 1,704,469 4,049,867 2,347,203  (1,780,551) 28,893,548
116,769 27,865 175,520 203,385 8,973 (4,815) 324,312
21,329,365 2,978,906 1,530,377 4,509,283 2,271,615  (1,780,016) 26,330,247
341 (291) 3,875 3,584 (3.,925) - -
561 212 1,007 1,219 72 (1,852) -
14,662 1,709 11,908 13,617 235 - 28,514
20,373 1,718 6,657 8,375 820 (700) 28,868
5,228,480 311,866 162,902 474,768 622,064 (167,373) 6,157,939
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2023 12 31 2023 12 31

( )

513,691 423,935 268,446 3,329 3,928 8,853 (173,331) 1,048,851

(299,150)  (195,092)  (250,162) (283) (196)  (10,799) 173,376 (582,306)

« ) 214,541 228,843 18,284 3,046 3,732 (1,946) 45 466,545

36,894 36,895 12,634 6,123 - 2,133 (2,310) 92,369

(1,228) (9,420) (@,607) (1,398) o (204) 354 (13,504)
«C )

35,666 27,475 11,027 4,725 o 1,929 (1,956) 78,865

« ) 2,644 673 22,266 (643) 3,276 471 36 28,723

1,174 11 (1,578) 3 1,205 ©) - 806

733 15,234 580 142 12,751 24,415 (4,656) 49,199

254,758 272,236 50,579 7,273 20,963 24,860 (6,531) 624,138

(78,070) (96,866) (20,897) (2,935) (17,029)  (12,617) 5,481 (222,933)

(70,970) (34,445) (623) (148) [ (133) (242)  (106,562)

105,718 140,925 29,059 4,190 3,933 12,110 (1,292) 294,643

« ) - - - 370 - 686 oD 965

105,718 140,925 29,059 4,560 3,933 12,79 (1,383) 295,608

(49,237)

246,371

13,771,018 6,603,661 11,025,328 78,200 278,635 751,818  (116,044) 32,392,616

- - - 7,289 281 32,151 @ 39,550

13,771,018 6,603,661 11,025,328 85,489 278,916 783,969  (116,215) 32,432,166

14,413,638 10,988,012 3,748,905 43,352 263,308 331,087 (112,951) 29,675,351

«C ) 25,649 145,230 (170,685) 918 11 (1,123) - -
« )

311 1,359 111 (346) - 521 (1,956) -

4,593 5,157 243 207 165 19,634 - 29,999

10,414 10,923 3,152 437 59 6,629 (1,198) 30,416

5,338,334 1,455,871 - - - - - 6,794,205
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2022 12 31 2022 12 31

( )

394,698 359,806 211,865 1,799 3,279 5,730  (96,329) 880,848

(206,495)  (152,654)  (150,065) (158) (119) (8,410) 96,319 (421,582)

« ) 188,203 207,152 61,800 1,641 3,160 (2,680) (10) 459,266

31,592 34,854 13,807 6,919 - 1,885 (1,955) 87,102

(1,449) (7,979) (1,401) @,717) @ (140) 475 (12,212)
« D

30,143 26,875 12,406 5,202 ) 1,745 (1,480) 74,890

« ) 2,688 964 15,016 (253)  (10,225) (961) ®) 7,221

1,490 49 135 4 397 8 - 2,083

835 9,910 927 281 11,757 22,808 (3.607) 43,001

223,359 244,950 90,284 6,875 5,088 21,010 (5,105) 586,461

(73,694) (89,497) (21,877) (2,671)  (5,382)  (11,006) 4,621 (199,506)

(64,651) (32,074) 685 (954) 7 (6,512) (460)  (103,959)

85,014 123,379 69,092 3,250 (287) 3,492 (944) 282,996

/C ) - - - 321 @ 359 (34) 645

85,014 123,379 69,092 3,571 (288) 3,851 (978) 283,641

(46,916)

236,725

11,734,117 6,391,485 9,819,400 83,439 244,501 676,302  (94,000) 28,855,244

- - - 7,011 1 31,424 (132) 38,304

11,734,117 6,391,485 9,819,400 90,450 244,502 707,726 (94,132) 28,893,548

12,620,363 9,683,712 3,506,365 51,422 229,733 331,585  (92,933) 26,330,247

«C ) 17,027 77,970 (94,050) 276 5 (1,228) - -
C )

390 1,080 74 447) 2) 405 (1,480) -

4,383 4,910 239 198 260 18,524 - 28,514

9,458 10,887 2,726 405 45 6,345 (998) 28,868

4,779,988 1,377,951 - - - - - 6,157,939
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( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
71,811 70,922 1,354 1,325
2023 12 31 405 (2022 12
2023 12 31
20,780 (2022 12 31 21,005 )
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46.1
2023 12 31 1,631,063 (2022 12 31
1,760,322 ) 778,109
(2022 12 31 661,931 )
2023 12 31
6,873 (2022 7,705 )
2023 12 31
(2022 9,300 )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 12 31 4,854 (2022 669 )
.45
( )
2023 12 31
83,527 83,527 83,527
2,347 1,581 18,989 22,917 22,917
41,937 83,658 125,595 125,595
2022 12 31
81,478 81,478 81,478
2,090 1,470 13,005 16,565 16,565
6,126 37,962 73,165 117,253 117,253
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46.2
47
( )
2023 12 31
123,059 (4,167) 118,892 (82,485) (20,129) 16,278
23,172 23,172 (23,172)
14,217 (10,588) 3,629 3,629
160,448 (14,755) 145,693 (105,657) (20,129) 19,907
2022 12 31
132,040 (7,995) 124,045 (87,055) (18,802) 18,188
18,738 18,738 (18,738)
10,152 (8,238) 1,914 ©) 1,909
160,930 (16,233) 144,697 (105,798) (18,802) 20,097
( )
2023 12 31
112,585 (4,167) 108,418 (82,499) (10,280) 15,639
40,321 40,321 (40,321)
13,560 (10,588) 2,972 2,972
166,466 (14,755) 151,711 (122,820) (10,280) 18,611
2022 12 31
112,823 (7,995) 104,828 (87,117) (5,160) 12,551
28,368 28,368 (28,368)
9,435 (8,238) 1,197 ) 1,192
150,626 (16,233) 134,393 (115,490) (5,160) 13,743
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( )
12 31
2023 2022
547,648 766,789
2,553,233 2,088,795
1,417,564 1,378,212
10,156 10,003
89,304 119,533
97,714 100,785
17,393,207 15,122,657
5,591,540 5,011,055
181,584 282,247
2,298,286 1,668,889
3,111,670 3,059,919
150,947 150,947
9,026 9,189
202,005 202,065
69,827 71,067
4,896 6,362
2,754 2,740
72,886 67,841
120,157 93,676
28,332,864 25,201,716
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( )
12 31
2023 2022
2,302,639 2,368,070
1,116,808 819,529
10,228 10,409
382,890 432,764
430
98,744 95,777
20,127,975 17,606,623
1,699,689 1,432,493
53,880 52,966
1,676 1,842
53 298
188,102 206,245
25,982,684 23,027,446
294,388 294,388
399,505 369,505
119,550 119,550
279,955 249,955
132,345 132,331
31,315 9,658
249,808 228,944
365,416 324,911
877,403 814,533
2,350,180 2,174,270
28,332,864 25,201,716

2024 3 28
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48.
( )
2023 1 1 294,388 119,550 249,955 132,331 9,658 228,944 324,911 814,533 2,174,270
21,248 208,242 229,490
20,865 (20,865)
40,505 (40,505)
(83,594)  (83,594)
30,000 ® 29,998
5 ®)
16 404 () (403) 16
2023 12 31 294,388 119,550 279,955 132,345 31,315 249,808 365,416 877,403 2,350,180
2022 1 1 294,388 119,550 199,955 132,331 20,116 208,319 292,549 741,063 2,008,271
(10,459) 204,937 194,478
20,625 (20,625)
32,362 (32,362)
(78,479)  (78,479)
50,000 (11) 49,989
1 @
11 11
2022 12 31 204,388 119,550 249,955 132,331 9,658 228,944 324,911 814,533 2,174,270
49
2023 12 31
50
2019 1
2019 1
NFRA 2019 1
40,000
2024 1 31 CCB V 41.4
CCB 68.34 31.66
CcB
Tier2
2024 1 30 10 Tier2 30,000 15 Tier2
30,000 2024 2 1 2024 2 1
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2023 12 31
GDP
PD LGD
2023 12 31
30%
2023 12 31
2023-2025 GDP 5.0%
2023 12 31 10%

10% 5%
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( )
12 31
2023 2022
501,284 750,357
2,941,140 2,313,859
1,233,888 1,174,097
203,176 196,497
146,750 152,033
19,476,871 17,116,005
347,708 412,413
3,217,563 2,474,849
3,360,183 3,321,923
93,855 70,082
31,522,418 27,982,115
1,197,872 1,189,069
5,596,333 4,968,870
6,794,205 6,157,939
38,316,623 34,140,054
2023
50.83% 2022 12 31 50.13%

17.99% 2022 12 31 18.10%
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(

(

)

)

(
12 31
2023 2022
) )
16,836,884 84.57% 14,500,783 82.83%
2,011,421 10.11% 1,936,288 11.07%
1,059,682 5.32% 1,068,722 6.10%
19,907,987 100.00% 17,505,793 100.00%
12 31
2023 2022
*) (%)
2,405,566 14.29% 2,038,727 14.07%
642,274 3.81% 583,632 4.02%
6,862,383 40.76% 5,905,293 40.72%
4,740,324 28.15% 4,087,906 28.19%
2,186,337 12.99% 1,885,225 13.00%
16,836,884 100.00% 14,500,783 100.00%
( )
2023 12 31
C )
C )
C )
1,716,122 77,798 107,258 1,901,178
9,292,108 1,222,007 882,729 11,396,844
5,828,654 711,616 69,695 6,609,965
16,836,884 2,011,421 1,059,682 19,907,987
2022 12 31
«
«
« )
1,318,237 81,885 113,743 1,513,865
7,500,347 1,198,699 885,912 9,584,958
5,682,199 655,704 69,067 6,406,970
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14,500,783 1,936,288 1,068,722 17,505,793
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( )
12 31
2023 2022
® (%)
3,237,900 16.26% 2,476,528 14.15%
2,638,582 13.25% 2,177,432 12.44%
2,139,206 10.75% 1,898,333 10.84%
1,468,347 7.38% 1,359,650 T7.77%
1,293,581 6.50% 952,035 5.44%
904,582 4.54% 851,117 4.86%
469,720 2.36% 370,531 2.12%
449,451 2.26% 369,618 2.11%
305,992 1.54% 283,411 1.62%
235,130 1.18% 218,706 1.25%
155,531 0.78% 141,462 0.80%
13,298,022 66.80% 11,098,823 63.40%
4,786,255 24..04% 4,916,707 28.09%
563,994 2.83% 520,390 2.97%
1,259,716 6.33% 969,873 5.54%
6,609,965 33.20% 6,406,970 36.60%
19,907,987 100.00% 17,505,793 100.00%
12 31
2023 2022
%) ()
2,755,264 16.36% 1,974,498 13.62%
2,329,950 13.84% 1,808,808 12.47%
1,976,166 11.74% 1,744,422 12.03%
874,747 5.20% 773,828 5.34%
1,046,809 6.22% 738,758 5.09%
660,091 3.92% 659,443 4.55%
455,276 2.70% 361,108 2.49%
397,588 2.36% 328,921 2.27%
217,551 1.29% 167,351 1.15%
221,595 1.32% 206,004 1.42%
73,193 0.43% 55,443 0.38%
11,008,230 65.38% 8,818,584 60.81%
4,168,263 24.76% 4,338,946 29.93%
551,366 3.27% 508,755 3.51%
1,109,025 6.59% 834,498 5.75%
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5,828,654 34.62% 5,682,199 39.19%

16,836,884 100.00% 14,500,783 100.00%
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)
( )
12 31
2023 2022
) Q)
7,243,277 36.38% 5,827,221 33.29%
2,547,618 12.80% 2,161,254 12.34%
7,910,628 39.74% 7,609,114 43.47%
2,206,464 11.08% 1,908,204 10.90%
19,907,987 100.00% 17,505,793 100.00%
12 31
2023 2022
) )
5,938,299 35.27% 4,501,283 31.04%
2,140,243 12.71% 1,773,328 12.23%
6,932,717 41.18% 6,680,248 46.07%
1,825,625 10.84% 1,545,924 10.66%
16,836,884 100.00% 14,500,783 100.00%
@
()
( )
12 31
2023 2022
) ) Q) Q)
207,297 81.87% 1.23% 202,404 87.36% 1.40%
¢ ) « )
«C ) 30,985 12.24% 1.54% 15,572 6.73% 0.80%
14,923 5.89% 1.41% 13,701 5.91% 1.28%
253,205 100.00% 1.27% 231,677 100.00% 1.32%
12 31
2023 2022
Q) D) Q) Q)
35,240 17.00% 1.46% 37,895 18.72% 1.86%
14,134 6.82% 2.20% 13,239 6.54% 2.27%
61,761 29.79% 0.90% 55,168 27.26% 0.93%
63,779 30.77% 1.35% 72,733 35.93% 1.78%
32,383 15.62% 1.48% 23,369 11.55% 1.24%
207,297 100.00% 1.23% 202,404 100.00% 1.40%
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(

(

)

)

(
12 31
2023 2022
) ) (%) D)
206,760 81.66% 1.55% 190,190 82.09% 1.71%
46,445 18.34% 0.70% 41,487 17.91% 0.65%
253,205 100.00% 1.27% 231,677 100.00% 1.32%
12 31
2023 2022
Q) ) () ()
162,951 78.61% 1.48% 162,326 80.20% 1.84%
44,346 21.39% 0.76% 40,078 19.80% 0.71%
207,297 100.00% 1.23% 202,404 100.00% 1.40%
(
12 31
2023 2022
) %) () ()
41,312 16.32% 1.50% 33,486 14.45% 1.70%
33,565 13.26% 1.44% 34,275 14.79% 1.89%
8,780 3.47% 0.44% 10,959 4.73% 0.63%
48,172 19.02% 5.51% 55,966 24.16% 7.23%
12,794 5.05% 1.22% 13,119 5.66% 1.78%
161 0.06% 0.02% 20 0.01% 0.00%
4,973 1.96% 1.09% 1,947 0.84% 0.54%
4,295 1.70% 1.08% 2,838 1.22% 0.86%
3,080 1.22% 1.42% 4,802 2.07% 2.87%
4,260 1.68% 1.92% 3,539 1.54% 1.72%
1,559 0.62% 2.13% 1,375 0.59% 2.48%
162,951 64.36% 1.48% 162,326 70.06% 1.84%
19,928 7.87% 0.48% 20,386 8.80% 0.47%
10,114 3.99% 1.83% 10,302 4_45% 2.02%
14,304 5.65% 1.29% 9,390 4.05% 1.13%
44,346 17.51% 0.76% 40,078 17.30% 0.71%
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207,297 81.87% 1.23% 202,404 87.36% 1.40%
45,908 18.13% 1.49% 29,273 12.64% 0.97%
253,205 100.00% 1.27% 231,677 100.00% 1.32%
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(i)

( )

2023 12 31
207,297 (155,812) 51,485
«C ) « ) «C ) 30,985 (15,709) 15,276
14,923 (8.341) 6,582
253,205 (179,862) 73,343

2022 12 31
202,404 (158,209) 44,195
«C ) «C ) «C ) 15,572 (8,544) 7,028
13,701 (5,746) 7,955
231,677 (172,499) 59,178

)
( )
12 31
2023 2022 2023 2022

149,614 115,300 126,946 102,514
57,146 74,890 36,005 59,812
206,760 190,190 162,951 162,326
52,489 40,927 40,512 35,439
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€)
1 2
2023 2022 12 31
*)
)
(
2023 12 31
90 91 361
360 3

18,216 16,618 6,617 742 42,193

5,957 5,822 6,557 1,477 19,813

45,519 42,856 35,487 3,139 127,001

3,971 11,313 6,265 73 21,622

73,663 76,609 54,926 5,431 210,629

2022 12 31
90 91 361
360 3

9,582 13,502 5,679 1,215 29,978

3,952 4,368 30,296 809 39,425

50,585 28,619 22,938 3,938 106,080

4,588 5,436 4,066 2,528 16,618

68,707 51,925 62,979 8,490 192,101
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2023 12 31
90 01 361
360 3
11,992 13,049 4,675 179 29,895
2,998 3,686 3,947 767 11,398
38,850 38,122 33,482 2,858 113,312
2,651 6,583 4,549 62 13,845
56,491 61,440 46,653 3,866 168,450
2022 12 31
90 91 361
360 3
7,592 11,358 3,177 975 23,102
2,331 3,135 29,085 689 35,240
41,672 27,906 22,243 3,681 95,502
3,225 2,589 3,319 2,336 11,469
54,820 44,988 57,824 7,681 165,313
( )
12 31
2023 2022

168,450 165,313

32,322 20,781

9,857 6,007

210,629 192,101

1.06% 1.10%

(73,663) (68,707)

136,966 123,394
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)
5
2023 12 31
12
1 2 3
19,265,099 96,329 19,361,428
289,716 289,716
67,246 67,246
105,224 105,224
80,698 80,608
19,265,099 386,045 253,168 19,904,312
2022 12 31
12
1 2 3
16,986,984 48,271 17,035,255
235,360 235,360
103,710 103,710
60,561 60,561
66,833 66,833
16,986,984 283,631 231,104 17,501,719
2023 2022 12 31 5
(®)
2023 2022 12 31 1
5
2.6
C ) C ) C )
2023 12 31
.13 .15

A
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( )

2023 12 31

A A A

18,766 3,745,563 3,764,329
149,685 17,486 167,171
714,013 714,013
20,213 195,760 180,816 396,789
96,663 65,921 36,486 199,070
152,433 152,433
437,760 4,738,743 217,302 5,393,805
2,986 792,999 24,441 820,426
90,083 111,590 346 202,019
2,749 197,001 67,468 267,218
9,846 85,364 42,923 138,133
105,664 1,186,954 135,178 1,427,796
543,424 5,925,697 352,480 6,821,601

2022 12 31

A AAA A

16,625 3,365,615 3,382,240
156,707 11,475 168,182
609,586 609,586
42,228 199,074 170,209 411,511
113,009 88,879 45,789 247,677
152,433 152,433
481,002 4,274,629 215,998 4,971,629
75,521 593,655 15,353 684,529
58,632 65,581 425 124,638
5,380 146,742 52,251 204,373
11,285 82,636 36,401 130,322
150,818 888,614 104,430 1,143,862
631,820 5,163,243 320,428 6,115,491
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CVA
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(A

(A

CCR
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OooooOodd
2023 12 31
12
1 2 3
521,717 3,341 912 525,970
5,686,339 41 5,686,380
254,106 22,096 51 276,253
6,462,162 25,478 963 6,488,603
2022 12 31
12
1 2 3
589,666 117 1,052 590,835
4,898,699 4,898,699
226,188 5,271 231,459
5,714,553 5,388 1,052 5,720,993
( CCR
CCR
CVA ) ( ccP
( )
12 31
2023 2022

86,299 72,520

7,669 4,371

514 979

6,447 6,576

100,929 84,446

86,764 65,373

12,704 6,418

200,397 156,237

.23
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€Y

VaR

VaR

VaR
BOCI
1%
VaR

VaR

VaR

BOCHK
VaR
VaR

VaR
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2023 2022 12 31 VaR
( )
12 31
2023 2022
VaR
12.29 18.48 9.23 13.84 27.08 6.80
31.66 51.03 11.83 35.49 72.70 11.30
0.68 1.60 0.23 1.11 3.18 0.52
0.22 0.74 0.01 1.63 7.17 0.17
VaR 30.25 51.09 15.21 39.99 75.79 13.75
( )
12 31
2023 2022
BOCHK
VaR
6.56 10.43 4.08 4.02 8.10 1.99
3.69 6.18 2.11 3.03 5.12 1.87
0.69 1.09 0.04 0.25 0.57 0.03
0.59 3.16 0.00 0.56 1.57 0.00
BOCHK
VaR 7.32 11.26 4.55 4.82 7.87 2.79
BOCI var( ?
0.54 1.96 0.15 0.74 1.63 0.17
0.85 1.33 0.53 1.00 1.77 0.55
0.27 0.48 0.17 0.23 0.47 0.12
BOCI VaR 1.65 3.19 1.03 1.96 3.16 0.99
( ) BoCI VaR
VaR

VaR VaR
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12
( )
12 31
2023 2022
@97 (3,270)
797 3,270

25
22,991 2022 19,708
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3.3
)
2023 12 31
1 3

1 3 12 1 5 5
430,170 33,594 27,182 2,205 75,704 568,855
2,674,435 6,592 18,246 1,650 240,217 2,941,140
643,068 153,838 356,054 79,299 1,629 1,233,888
146,750 146,750
( ) 4,843,034 3,692,199 9,951,888 643,788 175,238 170,724 19,476,871
14,105 43,174 90,064 86,979 102,154 213,945 550,421
219,682 263,462 397,994 1,445,096 883,020 38,859 3,248,113
67,953 275,354 322,677 1,194,626 1,497,257 2,316 3,360,183
6,883 899,062 905,945
8,899,330 4,468,213 11,164,105 3,453,643 2,657,669 1,789,206 32,432,166
1,231,612 174,879 696,244 84,331 58,296 2,245,362
395,863 106,490 723,792 418 8,757 1,235,320
276,759 70,533 123,616 3,964 105 474,977
135,973 135,973
11,436,055 2,133,184 3,801,171 5,014,853 190 521,597 22,907,050
45,688 105,922 880,651 589,001 170,525 10,659 1,802,446
34,308 40,074 21,429 13,561 3,738 761,113 874,223
13,420,285 2,631,082 6,246,903 5,706,128 174,453 1,496,500 29,675,351
(4,520,955) 1,837,131 4,917,202 (2,252,485) 2,483,216 292,706 2,756,815
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( )
2022 12 31
1 3

1 3 12 1 5 5
607,128 85,237 53,197 2,807 66,694 815,063
2,002,856 3,659 334 1,338 305,672 2,313,859
588,242 172,515 366,365 41,308 5,667 1,174,097
152,033 152,033
( ) 4,395,084 3,039,534 8,718,158 558,851 233,591 170,787 17,116,005
12,384 47,904 124,630 113,445 98,214 216,528 613,105
161,933 225,600 372,099 1,123,622 587,091 29,871 2,500,216
75,269 291,359 421,142 1,191,303 1,340,950 1,900 3,321,923
1,624 885,623 887,247

7,844,520 3,865,808 10,055,925 3,032,674 2,259,846 1,834,775 28,893,548

1,433,130 172,894 582,163 13,739 38,397 2,240,323
212,008 68,973 623,756 4,470 6,651 915,858
335,141 56,409 73,391 1,394 466,335

135,838 135,838

10,932,242 1,721,468 3,648,223 3,396,894 823 502,175 20,201,825

30,933 297,804 567,345 557,037 79,111 8,705 1,540,935
24,108 14,559 23,599 29,899 6,420 730,548 829,133
12,967,562 2,332,107 5,518,477 4,002,039 86,354 1,423,708 26,330,247

(5,123,042) 1,533,701 4,537,448 (969,365) 2,173,492 411,067 2,563,301

3.4
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( )
2023 2022 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
+1% 299 207 614 708
+1% (192) 220 2,615 2,400
1%
2023 2022 12 31
)
2023 12 31
362,047 123,898 23,901 27,005 7,663 4,432 19,819 568,855
2,357,156 279,250 24,695 101,258 45,242 57,641 75,808 2,941,140
860,582 267,619 21,444 8,021 1,885 1,39 72,941 1,233,888
65,988 43,462 3,596 3,681 8,323 11,183 10,567 146,750
‘D) 16,269,917 1,011,438 1,399,632 277,488 14,020 102,739 401,636 19,476,871
344,681 102,755 92,701 9,805 452 27 550,421
2,166,348 580,401 258,080 46,738 38,654 4,282 153,610 3,248,113
2,930,748 339,996 21,539 26,528 747 40,625 3,360,183
356,029 175,908 248,623 3,075 1,201 1,988 119,121 905,945
25,713,496 2,924,727 2,004,301 503,509 117,441 184,385 894,217 32,432,166
1,644,498 396,589 29,123 44,605 34,081 9,022 87,444 2,245,362
1,140,227 63,749 24,489 3,082 - 2,873 1,235,320
129,880 295,787 15,877 16,973 726 4,145 11,589 474,977
64,969 37,234 4,269 2,539 4,639 11,216 11,107 135,973
18,282,470 2,131,110 1,475,624 273,757 172,048 91,981 480,060 22,907,050
1,655,318 216,639 3,629 21,267 401 - 5,12 1,802,446
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364,971 127,919 344,662 3,868 483 9,449 2,871 874,223
23,182,333 3,269,027 1,897,673 366,991 212,378 125,813 621,136 29,675,351
2,531,163  (344,300) 196,628 136,608 (94,937) 58,572 273,081 2,756,815
(129,268) 336,974 64,381  (126,020) 111,695 (53,863)  (196,093) 7,806
5,240,210 873,046 256,198 197,222 15,638 70,590 141,301 6,794,205
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OooooOodd
)
2022 12 31
477,597 207,623 22,075 65,273 11,106 7,622 23,767 815,063
1,737,083 296,306 30,073 99,011 22,904 55,090 73,392 2,313,859
734,047 342,698 27,930 12,478 313 609 56,022 1,174,097
61,922 50,154 5,487 3,947 4,363 12,612 13,548 152,033
13,946,960 1,151,760 1,232,302 274,508 12,765 103,135 394,485 17,116,005
406,513 103,051 72,243 30,753 471 27 47 613,105
1,658,273 431,838 190,417 25,557 82,002 3,273 108,856 2,500,216
2,941,392 297,868 32,686 10,614 2,101 2,627 34,635 3,321,923
324,674 168,803 238,655 1,726 1,322 1,274 150,793 887,247
22,288,461 3,050,101 1,851,868 523,957 137,347 186,269 855,545 28,893,548
1,532,330 438,382 35,698 38,597 20,304 14,547 160,465 2,240,323
836,061 42,280 18,293 13,503 5,721 915,858
244,813 176,616 13,449 20,864 733 6,774 3,086 466,335
57,399 41,587 5,193 2,451 4,230 12,137 12,841 135,838
15,879,434 2,028,393 1,360,104 279,291 74,585 68,771 511,247 20,201,825
1,287,690 219,528 2,584 24,498 417 2,435 3,783 1,540,935
354,364 109,251 326,137 3,074 607 8,038 27,662 829,133
20,192,091 3,056,037 1,761,458 382,278 100,876 112,702 724,805 26,330,247
2,096,370 (5,936) 90,410 141,679 36,471 73,567 130,740 2,563,301
97,664 52,426 187,224  (132,610) (37,279)  (69,976)  (84,133) 13,316
4,678,365 870,947 248,335 169,853 8,139 53,986 128,314 6,157,939
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( )
2023 12 31
1 3 -
1 3 12 1 5 5
238,970 267,081 33,110 25,798 3,896 568,855
1,691,309 1,001,820 219,292 8,555 18,514 1,650 2,941,140
412 602,580 145,395 367,085 113,165 5,251 1,233,888
14,286 21,314 27,845 39,778 32,029 11,498 146,750
78,145 312,850 721,128 1,277,791 4,490,884 5,854,905 6,741,168 19,476,871
212,915 11,506 42,659 89,599 90,924 102,818 550,421
30,843 211,452 228,473 407,850 1,470,822 898,673 3,248,113
658 58,972 120,659 324,230 1,350,444 1,505,220 3,360,183
368,379 327,177 33,726 13,254 22,587 87,727 53,005 905,945
2,382,661 1,805,103 2,147,051 1,897,741 5,786,325 9,005,562 9,317,723 32,432,166
1,221,270 62,895 174,764 699,492 86,941 2,245,362
50,487 344,398 108,408 731,609 418 1,235,320
267,240 51,538 152,160 4,039 474,977
10,025 24,513 25,549 38,079 28,811 8,996 135,973
9,575,443 2,077,958 2,129,883 3,939,723 5,183,834 209 22,907,050
36,833 92,660 893,356 609,072 170,525 1,802,446
349 287,111 74,296 48,734 135,259 113,030 217,444 874,223
349 11,144,336 2,888,133 2,629,536 6,589,678 6,026,145 397,174 29,675,351
2,382,312 (9,249,233)  (741,082)  (731,795)  (803,353) 2,979,417 8,920,549 2,756,815
)
2022 12 31
1 3 -
1 3 12 1 5 5
331,760 342,056 85,238 53,202 2,807 815,063
1,558,207 705,042 41,961 3,561 3,750 1,338 2,313,859
1,021 558,600 166,308 379,767 64,289 4,112 1,174,097
12,946 23,843 25,807 35,944 38,330 15,163 152,033
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56,170 286,819 645,085 977,680 3,798,603 4,939,625 6,412,023 17,116,005
217,298 10,463 43,639 103,930 63,704 174,071 613,105
25,621 130,701 209,712 372,822 1,159,645 601,715 2,500,216
501 59,418 137,208 409,332 1,360,225 1,355,239 3,321,923
361,294 333,464 19,641 11,162 21,035 87,015 53,636 887,247

2,220,112 1,670,031 1,831,768 1,660,315 5,178,385 7,716,978 8,615,959 28,893,548

1,386,565 95,609 172,592 561,760 23,797 2,240,323

85,516 128,656 70,089 627,119 4,478 915,858

325,381 53,022 86,377 1,404 151 466,335

8,784 20,740 26,685 34,904 33,494 11,231 135,838

9,319,736 1,848,444 1,748,246 3,758,947 3,525,575 877 20,201,825

14,993 279,100 593,878 573,853 79,111 1,540,935

1,241 320,233 57,222 22,722 142,761 139,056 145,898 829,133
1,241 11,120,834 2,491,045 2,372,456 5,805,746 4,301,657 237,268 26,330,247

2,218,871 (9,450,803)  (659,277)  (712,141)  (627,361) 3,415,321 8,378,601 2,563,301
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( )
2023 12 31
1 1 3 - 1
3 12 5 5

238,970 271,260 33,818 27,578 4,112 575,738

1,691,309 1,001,820 219,391 8,632 18,595 1,871 2,941,618
412 604,431 149,684 375,611 119,596 7,934 1,257,668

78,512 312,880 755,546 1,368,770 4,909,836 7,473,339 9,334,739 24,233,622

213,131 11,882 43,551 95,185 110,906 150,051 624,706
30,883 215,735 238,687 465,159 1,662,317 1,051,331 3,664,112
658 65,520 136,939 397,745 1,622,088 1,954,976 4,177,926
4,414 234,679 29,840 7,161 7,605 1,393 23,192 308,284

2,019,319 1,788,349 2,173,605 1,987,242 6,297,314 10,995,622 12,522,223 37,783,674

1,221,270 64,191 177,697 712,347 93,605 2,269,110
50,487 344,410 109,978 740,789 418 1,246,082
267,583 52,601 155,958 12,075 488,217

9,575,443 2,102,943 2,177,708 4,054,718 5,647,770 292 23,558,874
36,949 94,476 924,480 682,054 194,163 1,932,122

295,806 46,956 30,300 27,603 45,455 31,485 477,605
11,143,006 2,863,032 2,642,760 6,615,895 6,481,377 225,940 29,972,010
4,204 446 998 1,125 2,914 875 10,562
791,783 3,137,208 1,961,571 3,800,559 605,492 89,128 10,385,741

(792,273) (3,138,390) (1,955,136) (3,798,553) (605,672) (89,144)  (10,379,168)
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( )
2022 12 31
1 1 3 - 1

3 12 5 5
331,760 343,275 86,116 54,919 3,089 819,159
1,558,207 705,042 41,992 3,584 3,824 1,581 2,314,230
1,021 560,614 169,805 386,840 68,541 5,625 1,192,446
( ) 56,390 287,954 688,482 1,073,859 4,241,431 6,608,867 9,282,371 22,239,354
217,497 11,233 44,808 115,648 120,704 309,036 818,926
25,641 135,531 214,556 426,061 1,342,967 743,841 2,888,597
501 75,238 162,554 542,898 1,808,771 2,037,006 4,626,968
961 206,166 15,395 1,700 5,135 2,822 23,065 255,244

1,860,218 1,530,922 1,871,760 1,756,982 5,776,756

9,957,342 12,400,944 35,154,924

1,386,565 96,885 175,220 573,869 25,250 2,257,789
85,516 130,836 71,130 631,857 4,664 924,003
325,510 53,464 88,177 1,450 151 468,752
9,319,736 1,880,097 1,800,562 3,928,882 3,876,599 1,014 20,806,890
15,145 280,378 611,686 624,994 89,196 1,621,399
307,836 36,199 16,369 26,148 16,427 31,384 434,363
11,099,653 2,484,672 2,397,123 5,860,619 4,549,384 121,745 26,513,196
4,193 88 892 2,123 3,989 1,313 12,598
185,262 2,079,647 1,535,715 2,542,386 575,782 40,780 6,959,572
(185,744) (2,075,645) (1,532,343) (2,539,729)  (574,949)  (41,094) (6,949,504)
4.4
( )
2023 12 31
1 1 5 5

W 2,495,538 1,478,789 499,253 4,473,580

1,674,887 391,279 254,450 2,320,625

4,170,425 1,870,068 753,712 6,794,205

21,329 60,006 11,937 99,362
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4,197,754 1,930,164 765,649 6,893,567
( )
2022 12 31

1 1 5 5
® 2,393,974 1,122,610 376,135 3,892,719
1,662,958 337,247 265,015 2,265,220
4,056,932 1,459,857 641,150 6,157,939
17,485 46,312 24,970 88,767
4,074,417 1,506,169 666,120 6,246,706

€Y)
41,7
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5.1
3

1

2 — 1

3 —

3 2023 12 31 6.00%-

15.00% 0.04 / -0.84 / 0.99 -81.20 1.01
-38.50 5.00 -45.64

3

Head Office
Head Office
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( )
2023 12 31

1 2 3
18,126 18,126
4,857 141,893 146,750
717,994 782 718,776
5,707 328,603 1,874 336,184
19,507 2,135 90,792 112,434
25,465 10,512 65,826 101,803
301,899 2,914,084 3,215,983
6,117 11,020 14,993 32,130
2,005 20,699 22,704
(3,798) (3,798)
(47,657) (47,657)
(2,118) (2,118)
(729) (53,535) (54,264)
(5.,009) (130,964) (135,973)
( )

2022 12 31

1 2 3
12,333 12,333
8,331 143,702 152,033
586,513 743 587,256
34,691 358,382 5,027 398,100
24,460 3,485 84,637 112,582
27,308 12,945 62,170 102,423
319,791 2,152,932 657 2,473,380
6,972 8,869 10,995 26,836
1,809 21,502 23,311
(36,701) (36,701)
(2,080) (2,080)
(436) (53,432) (53,868)
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( )
2023 1 1 743 5,027 84,637 62,170 657 10,995 21,502
/ - (765) (331) 2,028 - - (879)
- - - - - 3,152 -
- (1,031)  (10,170) (5.617) - (603) @12)
- 208 16,664 7,140 - 1,425 4
3 « D - (1,589) ® - (666) - -
39 24 - 105 9 24 344
2023 12 31 782 1,874 90,792 65,826 - 14,993 20,699
2023 12 31
«C ) - (759) (189) 2,022 - - (867)
( )
2022 1 1 - 28,761 74,300 46,131 906 8,655 18,314 @
/ - 408 570 7,090 - - (803) -
- - - - (185) 4,790 - -
- (1,854) (5,731) (11,794) - (2,631) (58) -
- 93 15,847 20,348 - 21 2,908 -
3 ( )
743 (22,686) (362) - (148) - 154 2
- 305 13 395 84 160 987 -
2022 12 31 743 5,027 84,637 62,170 657 10,995 21,502 -
2022 12 31
«C ) - 460 669 7,095 - - (803) -

328/590



EDINETOOOO
0000000000 O(E05981)

OOooOoOoOoo
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
3
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
207 53 (156) 7,421 7,265
2023 2022 12 31 1 2
2023 12 31
10 3
2,934 1,115 687 671
485
5.2
( )
12 31
2023 2022
@ 3,341,192 3,425,739 3,311,371 3,347,787
@ 1,800,328 1,806,910 1,538,855 1,527,751
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3
( )
2023 12 31
1 2 3
186,119 3,044,203 11 3,230,333
1,806,910 1,806,910
( )
2022 12 31
1 2 3
172,193 2,979,690 483 3,152,366
1,527,751 1,527,751
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Tierl Tierl 9.00% 10.00%

12.00%
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tier2
Tier2
Tierl Tierl
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Tierl Tierl
@
2023 2022
12 31 12 31
Tierl 11.63% 11.84%
Tierl 13.83% 14.11%
17.74% 17.52%
Tierl 2,193,211 2,019,934
294,388 294,388
134,339 134,358
255,137 233,847
379,063 337,276
1,060,652 979,627
36,123 37,168
@ 33,509 3,270
(31,386) (28,592)
(182) (182)
(21,094) (18,416)
Tierl (9,978) (9,950)
Tierl 2,161,825 1,991,342
Tierl 408,447 381,648
119,550 119,550
279,955 249,955
8,942 12,143
Tierl 2,570,272 2,372,990
Tier2 727,136 573,481
Tier2 534,124 398,223
184,316 165,099
8,696 10,159
3,297,408 2,946,471
18,591,278 16,818,275
() BOCG BOC
BOCG
BOCG NFRA
@
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Note 2023 2022
(Restated)
Interest income V.l 1,048,851 BE0. 245
Interest expensa V.l (582,306) (421.582)
Net Interest income 466,545 459,266
Fee and commission income V.2 92,369 27,102
Fee and commission expense V.2 (13,504) (12,212)
Net fee and commission income 78,865 74,890
Met trading gains V.3 28,723 7,221
Met gains on transfers of financial asset V.4 806 2083
Oher operating income V.5 49,199 43,001
Operating income 624,138 586,461
Operating expenses V.6 (222,933) (190.508)
Credit impairment losses V.o (106,494} (97.0903)
Impairment losses on other assets (68) (3,966)
Operating profit 294 643 282,996
Share of results of associates and joint ventures V.19 065 645
Profit before income tax 295 608 283641
Income tax expense V.10 (40,237} (46.016)
Profit for the year 246,371 236,725
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 231904 226,522
MNon-controlling interests 14 467 10,203

246,371 236,725

Earnings per share (in RMEB) V.1l
— Basic 0.74 072
— Diluted 0.74 0.72

For details of the dividends paid or proposed, please refer to Mote V.30.3.

The accompanving notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Note 2023 2022
(Restated)
Profit for the year 246,371 236,725
Other comprehensive income: V.12
Items that will not be reclassified to proflt or loss
— Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans 3l 68
— Changes in fair value on equity instrements
designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income 4,348 2,106
— Oither (2) 9
Subtotal 4.377 2,183

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
— Changes in fair value on debt instruments
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income 20,243 (28.976)
— Allowance for credit losses on debt instruments
measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income 1,501 (375)
— Finance (expensesfincome from
insurance contracts issued (4.096) 3278
— Exchange differences from the translation of
foreign operations 7,007 32,051
— Other {30} 681
Subtotal 4616 7.550
Other comprehensive income for the vear, net of tax 28,993 9,742
Total comprehensive income for the vear 275,364 246,467

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 259,160 220025
Mon-controlling interests 16,204 17442
275 364 246,467

The accompanving notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Ag at 3] December 2023 (Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 3 December
Note 2023 2022
(Restated)
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks and
other financial instimtions V.13 568,855 815,063
Balances with central banks V.4 2041,140 2313850
Placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institations V.15 1,233,888 1,174,097
Government certificates of indebtedness for
bank notes issued V2T 203,176 196,497
Precious metals 06,068 130,215
Derivative financial asseis V.16 146,750 152,033
Loans and advances to customers, net VAT 19476,871 17,116,005
Financial investments V.13 7158717 6,435,244
— financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 550,421 613,105
— financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 3,248,113 2,500,216
— financial assets at amortised cost 3,360,183 3,321,923
Investments in associates and joint ventures V.10 30,550 32304
Property and equipment V.20 227,135 226,716
Construction in process V.2l 20,346 19613
Investment properties Va2 22,704 23,311
Deferred income tax assets V.36 75,156 71,139
Oither assets V.23 220,910 181,392
Total assets 32 432,166 2R.801.548

The accompanving notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

COMSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION { Continued )
Ag at 3] December 2023 (Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December

MNote 2023 2022
(Restated)
LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial institutions V.25 2,245.362 2,240,323
Due to central banks V.26 1,235,320 915,858
Bank notes in circulation V.27 203,249 196,903
Placements from banks and
other financial instimtions V.28 474 977 466,335
Financial liabilities held for trading V.20 54,264 53,868
Derivative financial liabilities V.16 135,973 135,838
Due to customers V.30 22,907,050 20,201,325
Bonds issued V.31 1,802,446 1,540,935
(Other borrowings V.32 36,176 24,905
Current tax liabilities V.33 59,303 58,957
Retirement benefit obligations V.34 1,676 1,842
Deferred income tax liabilities V.36 7.307 6,804
Oither liabilities V.37 512,158 485,854
Total Habilitles 0,675,351 26,330,247
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Bank
Share capital V.38.1 204 388 204 388
Oither equity instruments V.383 309,505 369,505
— Preference shares 119,550 119550
— Perpetnal bonds 279,955 240,055
Capital resarve V.3g2 135,736 135,759
Other comprehensive income V.12 34,719 5505
Statutory reserves V.30.1 256,729 235,362
General and regulatory reserves V.30.2 370,285 33T 465
Undistributed profits V.30 1.120.148 1,045 989
2629510 2,423,973
MNon-controlling interests V.40 127 305 139,328
Total equity 2,756,815 2,563,301
Total equity and Habilitles 32432166 2B.803,548

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024,

The accompanving notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

GE Haijiao LIU Jin
Diirector Diirector
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Note 2023 2022
(Restated)
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 295608 283,641
Adjustments:
Impairment lossas on assets 106,562 103,959
Depreciation of property and equipment and
right-of -use assets 22648 22,190
Amortisation of intangible assets and
other assets 7,768 6,678
Met gains on disposals of property and
equipment, intangible assets and
other long-term assets (1,492) (B76)
Met gains on disposals of investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (11} (561)
Share of results of associates and joint ventures (965) (6435)
[nterest income arising from
financial investments (192,203) (164,603)
Dividends arising from investment securities (643) (729}
Met lossesf{zains) on financial investments 481 (505)
[nterest expense arising from bonds issued 45,777 44 281
Accreted interest on impaired loans (045 (B68)
[nterest expense arising from lease liabilities 663 684
Met changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Wet increase in balances with central banks (127,274) (66, 184)
Met decreasef(increase) in due from and
placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 57,503 (31.193)
Met decrease in precious metals 33,2604 146,056
Met increase in loans and advances
to customers (2.461.455) (1,882,027}
Met increase in other assets (25.367) (268.879)
Wet increase/{decrease) in doe to banks
and other financial institutions 3.113 (441,111
Met increasefidecrease) in due to
central banks 317,365 (30,642)
Met increase in placements from
banks and other financial institutions 7,123 57.969
Met increase in due to customers 2,662,605 2,019,973
Met increasefidecrease) in other borrowings 11.271 (1,449
Net increase in other liabilities 113,808 237,857
Cash inflow from operating activities 875.203 24,016
Income tax paid (58,757) (45.871)
Met cash inflow/{outflow) from operating
activities 816,446 {21,855)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from disposals of property and
equipment, intangible assets and
other long-term assets

Proceeds from disposals of investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Dividends received

Interest income received from
financial investments

Proceeds from disposalsfmaturities of
financial investments

Increase in investments in subsidiaries,
associates and jolnt ventures

Purchase of propedty and equipment,
intangible assets and other long-term assets

Purchase of financial investments

Met cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Procesds from issnance of bonds
Proceeds from issnance of
other equity instruments
Proceeds from capital contribution by
non-controlling shareholders
Repayments of debts issued
Cash payments for interest on bonds issued
Dividend payments to ordinary shareholders
Dividend and interest payments to
other equity instrument holders
Dividend payvments to
non-controlling shareholders
Cash payments for redemption of
other equity instruments held by
non-controlling interests
OMher cash pavments for financing activities

Met cash inflow from financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents

Net Increase In cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Note

V.42

Net cash flows from operating activities include:

Interest received
Interest paid

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
(Restated)

5553 12,850

161 842

1,813 1,603
185,033 165,502
3,631,620 3,554,470
(2,005) (2.717)
{20,148) {27.738)
(4,332,464) (3,716,635)
(539,428) (11,724)
1,316,278 1,012,066
30,000 50,000

62 2473
(1.077.585) (806,006)
{20,317) (27.977)
(68,208) {65,060)
{15,284) (13,421)
(7.288) (5.701)
(21,206) -
(7.410) (3.237)
119,862 53,047
28,370 06,367
425,259 115,835
2,001 466 1,075,631

2,516,725 091

§82,832 737,364

(488.456) (339.086)

The accompanving notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

I GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Bank of China Limited (the “Bank™), formerly known as Bank of China, a State-owned
joint stock commercial bank, was founded on 5 Febmary 1912, From its formation until
1949, the Bank performed varions functions of a central bank, foreign exchange bank and
commercial bank specialising in trade finance. After 1949, the Bank was designated as the
state-designated specialised foreign exchange and trade bank. Since 1994, the Bank has
evolved into a State-owned commercial bank. In this regard, in accordance with the Master
Implementation Plan for the Joint Stock Reform approved by the State Council of the PRC,
the Bank was converted into a joint stock commercial bank on 26 August 2004 and its name
was changed from Bank of China to Bank of China Limited. In 2006, the Bank listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

The Bank is licensed as a financial institution by the National Administration of Financial
Regulation (the former “China Banking and Insurance Repnlatory Commission”, the “NFRA™)
Mo, BOOO3H111000001 and is issued the business license of legal enterprise with unified
social credit code Mo, @11000001000013428 by the State Administration of Industry and
Commerce of the PRC. The registered address is No.l, Fuxingmen Mei Dajie, Beljing,
China.

The Bank and its subsidiaries (together the “Group™) provide a full range of corporate
banking, personal banking, treasury operations, lnvestment banking, insurance and other
services to its customers in the Chinese mainland, Hong Kong (China), Macao (China),
Taiwan (China) and other major international financial centres.

The Bank"s principal regulator is the NFRA. The operations in Hong Kong (Ching), Macao (China),
Taiwan (China) and other countries and regions of the Group are sabject to the supervision
of local regulators.

The parent company is Central Huijin Investment Limited (“Huijin™), a wholly owned
subsidiary of China Investment Corporation (“CIC™).

These consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on
28 March 2024,
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

II

1.1

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
Basls of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
“International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the IASE™ (“IFES Accounting
Standards"). In addition, the consolidated financial statements comply with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (including derivative financial
instruments) and investment properties are measured at their fair values in the consolidated
financial statements. Other accounting items are measured at their historical costs.
Impairment allowance is recognised and measured in accordance with the relevant policy.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group®s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note ITL

Stamdards and amendments effective in 2023 relevant to and adopted by the Group
On 1 January 2023, the Group has adopted the following IFRS Accounting Standards and

amendments issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™), which wera
mandatorily effective:

Amendments to IAS | and Dscloswre of Accounting Policies
IFR.S Practice Statement 2
Amendmenis to IAS 8 Drefinition of Accounting Estimates
Amendmenis to ITAS 12 Deferred Tax related fo Assets and Liabilitdes arising
from a Single Transaction
Amendments to TAS 12 International Tax Reform — Fillar Two Model Roles
IFRES 17 and Amendments Insurance Contracis
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

II

1.1

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Basls of preparation { Continued)
Stamdards and amendments efective in 2023 relevant (o amd adopied by the Group (Comtdmoed)

[AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Amendments provide gunidance to help entities
apply materiality judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments replace
the requirement for entities to disclose their “significant™ accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their “material” accounting policies. The amendments add goidance
ol how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting
policy disclosures.

Amendments to [AS B clarify how companies should distinguish changes in accounting
policies from changes in accounting estimates. It introduces a new definition of “accounting
estimates”™. The amendments are designed to clarify distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and correction of errors.

Amendmenis to IAS 12 require companies to recognise deferred tax on transactions that,
on initial recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary
differences. They will typically apply to transactions such as leases of lessees and
decommissioning obligations and will require the recognition of additional deferred tax
assets and liabilities. The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or
after the beginning of the earliest comparative period presentad.

Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules give companies
temporary relief from accounting for deferred taxes arising from the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development’s (“OECD™) intemational tax reform. The Group
has adopted the relief for defemred taxes under the amendments.

IFES 17 and Amendments Insurance Contracts (“IFRS 17™) and its impact are described in
Mote I1.1.3 and Note I1.1.4.

The adoption of the other standards and amendments does not have any material impact
on the operating results, comprehensive income and financial position of the Group for the
yvear ended 31 December 2023,
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

IT SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

1 Basls of preparation { Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments that are nof yef effecive in the current year and have not
been adopted before their effective dates by the Group

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or
after
Amendments to IAS | Classification of Liabilities as Carrent | January 2024
or Noa-carrent and Non-carrent
Liahilities with Covenanis
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and | Tanunary 2024
Leaseback
Amendments to IAS T and Sopplier finance arrangements | JTanuary 2024
IFR5 7
Amendments to TAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability | Jannary 2025
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets Effective date
Amendments betwesn an Investar and its has been deferred
Asgsociate or Joint Venture indefinitely

Amendments made to [AS | Presentation of Financial Statements in 2020 and 2022 clarified
that liabilities are classified as either current or non-cument, depending on the rights
that exist at the end of the reporting pericd. Classification is unaffected by the entity's
expectations or events after the reporting date (e.g. the receipt of a waiver or a breach of
covenant).

Covenants of loan arrangements will not affect classification of a liability as current or
non-current at the reporting date if the entity must only comply with the covenants after
the reporting date. However, if the entity must comply with a covenant either before or at
the reporting date, this will affect the classification as current or non-current even if the
covenant 15 only tested for compliance after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

II SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
1 Basls of preparation { Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments that are nof yef effecive in the current year and have not
been adopted before their effective dates by the Group {Comtinoed)

Amendmenis to IFRS 16 introduce a new accounting model for variable payments and will
require seller-lessees to reassess and potentially restate sale-and-leaseback transactions
entered into since 2019. The amendments confirm the following: On initial recognition,
the seller-lesses includes variable lease payments when it measures a lease liability arising
from a sale-and-leaseback transaction. After initial recognition, the seller-lessee applies the
general requirements for subsequent accounting of the lease liability such that it recognises
0o gain or loss relating to the right of use it retains.

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments clarify
the characteristics of supplier finance arrangements (SFAs) and require additional disclosure
of such arrangements. The objective of the new disclosures is to provide information about
SFAs that enables investors to assess the effects on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and the
exposure to liguidity risk.

Amendments to LAS 21 elaborated the definitions of exchangeable, that is when an entity
iz able to exchange that currency for the other cumency at the measurement date and for a
specified purpose. When a currency is not exchangeable, an entity needs to estimate the spot
exchange rate to reflect the rate at which an orderly exchange transaction would take place
at the measurement date between market participants under prevailing economic conditions.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and [AS 28 clarify the accounting treatment for sales or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associates or joint ventures. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution
between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
trapsaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resolting
fromm the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss oaly to the extent of the
unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint venturs.

The adoption of the above standards and amendments will have no material impact on the
Group and the Bank's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

IT SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

1 Basls of preparation { Continued)

1.3 Accounting pelicy changes

Cn 1 January 2023, the Group adopted the IFES 17 Insurance Contracts. The adoption of
IFES 17 has resulted in changes in the Group’s accounting policies for the identification
of insurance contracts, recognition and measurement of insurance contract liabilities
using general measurement model (“GMM”™), variable fee approach (“VFA") or premium
allocation approach (“PAA™), insurance related revenus, insurance service expenses and
insurance finance income or expenses. The specific accounting policies of insurance
contacts refer to Mote I1.13.

Transitions

The property insurance subsidiaries mainly used the full retrospective approach. while
the life insurance subsidiaries mainly used the fair value approach. The insurance
subsidiaries also reclassified related financial assets by reassessing their business model
and re-designated the relevant financial assets to aveid accounting mismatches on nitial
application date as at | Jammary 2023, The Group restated the comparative figures as at 1
January 2022, 31 December 2022 and the year ended 31 December 2022,

1.4 I'mpact of acconnting palicy changes

The Group summarises the impact of the implementation of IFES 17 on the main financial
items of comparative period as follows:

As at

As at 31 December 2022

M December 2022 IFRS 17 and 1 Janvary 2023

before adoption of implementation after adoption of

IFRS 17 impact IFRS 17

Total assats 28,013,857 (20,309) 28,803,548

Total liabilities 26,346,286 (16,039) 26,330,247

Capital and reserves

attributable to equity

holders of the Bank 2,427,589 (36186) 2423973

Mon-controlling interests 139982 (654) 139,328
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II

1.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Basls of preparation { Continued)
Impact of accounting palicy changes (Con timed )

The Group summarises the impact of the implementation of IFES 17 on the main financial
items of comparative period as follows (Continued):

Year ended Year ended

M December 2022 IFRS 17 31 December 2022

before adoption of Implementation after adoption of

IFRS 17 impact IFR5 17

Cperating income 619,139 (32.678) 586441
Operating expenses and
Impairment losses on

assets* (335,189) 31,724 (303,465)

Profit for the year 237,504 (770} 236,725

* Impairment losses on amets includes Credit impairment losses and Impairment losses on other assets.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018 onwards. On the initial application of
IFRES 17, the Group is allowed to reassess the classification of financial assets under IFR.S
0 to reduce the accounting mismatches betwesn financial assets and insurance contract
liabilities. The Group reassessed classification of financial assets if they are connected
with contracts within scope of IFRS 17 as at 1| January 2023 and restated comparative
information from 1 January 2022,

For participating and investment-linked insurance contracts measured by VFA under [FRS
17. the Group reclassifies the supporting debt instroments measured at amortised cost (CAC™)
and fair value throngh other comprehensive income (“FVOCI™) to fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL"™). For those assats supporting insurance contracts measured by GMM,
there are also reclassifications of certain debt instruments measured at AC o FVOCI
in accordance with IFRS 17. The following table shows the measurement category and
carrving amount before and after the adoption of IFRS 17 as at 1 January 2023:
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II

1.4

1.5

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

Basls of preparation { Continued)

Impact of accounting palicy changes (Con timed )

Classificatlon as at
Classification as at 31 December 2622 and
3 December 2022 before 1 January 2023 after
adoption of IFRS 17 adoption of IFRS 17
Financial assats at fair Financial assets at fair
value through other value through pmofit or loss
comprehensive inoome
Financial assats at Financial assets at fair
amortised cost vale through profit or loss
Financial assats at Financial assets at fair
amortised cost vilue through other
comprehensive income
Comparaftive figures

Carrying

Carrying amount as at

amount as at 31 December 2022

3 December 2822 and 1 Jampary 2023
before adopton after adoption

of IFRS 17 of IFRS 17
4120 4,120
42454 3Tms
40,991 35961

The Group adopted the requirements of IFRS 17 retrospectively with comparatives restated
from the transition date, 1 January 2022. The restated notes mainly includes: Note V.5
Other operating income, Note V.6 Operating expenses, Note V.12 Other comprehensive
income, MNote V.18 Financial investments, Note V.23 Other assets, Mote V.37 Other
liabilities, and Note V.44 Segment reporting, etc. In addition, certain comparative figures
have been adjusted to conform with changes in disclosures in current year.
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II

21

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION ( Continued)
Consolidation
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those refurns
through its power to direct the activities of the entity. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible and rights arising from other
contractual arangements are considerad when assessing whether the Group controls another
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. If the changes of the
relevant facts and circumstances resulting in changes of relevant elements in the definition
of control, the Group will re-evaluate whether subsidiaries are controlled.

The Group uses acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations.
Consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair valoes of the assats
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business and the
equity interests issued by the Group. Consideration transferred includes the fair value of
any asset of liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acguisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition by acquisition basis, the Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acguiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquires’s net identifiable assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquires and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the subsidiary acquired,
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there
i an indication of possible impairment, and carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. If there is any indication that goodwill is impaired, recoverable amount is estimated
and the difference between carrving amount and recoverable amount is recognised as an
impairment charge. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

II SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
2 Consolidation (Continued)

21 Suhsidiartes (Comtinued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. Where
necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank's statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising
from contingent consideration amendments, but does not include acquisition-related costs,
which are expensed as incurred. Dividends or profits declared to distribute by the invested
entity shall be recognised by the Bank as other operating income. The Group assesses at
each financial reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an investment in
subsidiaries is impaired. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
investment in subsidiaries’ carrving amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of the investment in subsidiaries" fair value less costs to sell and value
in use.

2.2 Assoclates and Jolmt venfures

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but no control
or joint control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights.

Joint ventures exist where the Group has a contractual arrangement with one or more parties
to undertake economic activities which are subject to joint control.

Investments in associates and joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and accounted
for using the equity method of accounting. The Group®s “Investment in associates and joint
ventures” includes goodwill.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the associates and jolnt ventures;
unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates and joint ventures have been
changed where nacessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The Group assesses at each financial reporting date whether there is objective evidence that
investments in associates and joint ventures are impaired. Impairment losses are recognised
for the amounts by which the investments in associates and joint ventures' carrying amounts
exceed their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amounts are the higher of investments in
associates and joint ventures’ fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
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II

2.3

A1

.2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)

Transactions with non-confrofling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control as transactions with eguity owners of the Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a
loss of control, joint control or significant influence, any retained interest in the eatity is
re-measured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recognised in the income
statement. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are reclassified to the income statement.

Forelgn currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Group®s operations in the Chinese mainland is Renminbi (“BMBE™).
Itemns included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s operations in Hong Kong (China),
Macao (China), Taiwan (China) and other countries and regions are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency™). The presentation currency of the Group is EMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into respective functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions, or the exchange rates that
approximate the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transaction. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are recognised in the
income statement.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the financial reporting
date are translated at the foreipn exchange rates muling at that date. Changes in the fair
value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the securities and other changes
in the carrving amount of the securities. Translation differences related to changes in the
amortised cost are recognised in the income statement, and other changes in the carrving
amount are recognised in “Other comprehensive income™. Translation differences on all
other monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the income statement.
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II

1.2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Forelgn currency translation (Continued)
Transactions amnd balances (Con tlmed )

Mon-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost in foreign currencies
are translated using the foreign exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in foreign currencies are translated using
the foreign exchange rates at the date the fair value is determined. Translation differences
ofl nofi-monetary financlal assets classified as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised in “Odher comprehensive income™. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised as “Met trading gains™ in the income statzment.

Except for the entities in a hyper-inflationary economy, where all financial statement
items are translated into the presentation currency at the closing rate at the statement of
financial position date, the results and financial positions of all the Group entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of financial position;

. income and expenses for each income statement are translated at exchange rates at the
date of the transactions, or a rate that approximates the exchange rates of the date of
the transaction; and

«  all resulting exchange differences are recognised in “Other comprehensive income™,

Omn consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of customers deposits taken and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments are taken to “Other comprehensive income™. When a foreign

eqtity is disposad, these exchange differences are recognised in the income statement.

The effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents is presented individually
in the statement of cash flows.
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II

4

4.1

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Financial instruments
Initial recognition amd measurement

The Group recognises a financial asset or financial liability in its statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,
which is the trade date.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial liability at its
fair value. For a financial asset or financial liability at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs are directly recopnised in profit or loss. For other financial asset or
liability, transaction costs are recognised in the initial measurement.

The fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction
price. If the Group determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price, and if that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market
for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, the Group recognises the difference between the fair value at initial
recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss.

4.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement

4.2, I Financial assets

The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both
the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.

Business model

The Group's business model refers to how the Group manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. For example, financial assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, If above two sitnations ar not applicable, the financial assets ae classified as part of “other™
business model. The Group’s assessment of the business model is performed on a financial
assel portfolio basis, and determined on the basis of scenarios which are reasonably
expected to occur, taking into account: how cash flows were realised in the past, how the
performance are evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management personnel; the risks
that affect the performance and the way in which those risks are assessed and managed; and
how managers of the business are compensated, etc.

234

354/590

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

II

4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments { Continued)

4.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement (Contined )

4.2.1 Financial assets (Continged)

i1}

2)

The contractoal cash flow characteristics

The assessment of contractual cash flow characteristics is to determine whether the assat’s
contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition. However,
the principal amount mav change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there
are repayvments of principal). Interest consists of consideration for the time value of money,
for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular
period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin.

Financial assets ai amortised cost

The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost if both of
the following conditions are met:

. the financial asset iz held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets that the Group holds are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
That is, the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus or mious the cumnlative amortisation using the effective interast
method of any difference between that initial amount and the matarity amount and adjusted
for any loss allowance,

Financial assets at fair valoe throogh other comprehensive income

The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

+  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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II

4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments { Continued)

4.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement (Contimed )

4.2 I Financial assets (Continged)

(2} Financial assets at fair valge through other comprefheasive income (Continged)

3

Such financial assets that the Group holds are subsequently measured at fair value. A pain
or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
shall be recognised in “Other comprehensive income™, except for interests calculated using
effective interest method, impairment losses or reversal, and foreign exchange gains and
lossas. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cummlative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. The
impairment allowances for such financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income, impairment losses or reversal are recognised in profit or loss, and not reduce the
carrving amount of such financial assets in the statement of financial position.

Investments in equity instruments

The Group may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate an investment in egquity
instrument, which is not held for trading, as at fair valoe through other comprehensive
income when it meets the definition of an equity instrument under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation. When the equity instrument is derecognised. the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income shall be reclassified
from other comprehensive income to undistributed profits under equity. Dividends, which
the Group is entitled to collect, on equity investments in such measurement category are
recognised in profit or loss. Mo impairment losses or reversal are recognised for such equity
instruments.

Financial assels at fair valoe through profit or loss

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured
at amortised cost or at fair value throngh other comprehensive income, which includes
financial assets held for rading, financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or
loss and other financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss in
accordance with IFRS 9.

Such financial assets that the Group holds are subsequently measured at fair value. A gain
or loss on such financial asset is recognised in profit or loss unless it is part of a hedging

relationship. Dividends, which the Group is entitled to collect, on eguity investments in
such measurement category are recognised in profit or loss.
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IT SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION ({ Continued)
4  Financial instruoments { Continued)

4.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement (Contined )

4.2 I Financial assets {Continged)

{3} Financial assets af fair valne throagh profit or loss (Coatinmed)

When, and only when, the Group changes the business model for managing financial
assets, the Group shall reclassify all affected financial assets. Reclassification is applied
prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in
business model.

4.2 2Financial liabilities

The Group classifies all financial liabilities as subseguently measured at amortised cost,
except for:

. financial liabilities at fair valoe through profit or loss. Such liabilities, include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.

. financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies.

. financial puarantee contracts and commitments to provide a loan at a below-market
interast rate.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss held by the Group are subsequently

measured at fair value. A gain or loss on a financial liability that is measured at fair value is

recognised in profit or loss unless:

. itis part of a hedging relationship; or

. itis a financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss and the effects
of changes in the Group's credit risk are presented in other comprehensive income.
When such financial liability is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously

recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from other comprehensive
income to undistributed profits under equity.

The Group does not reclassify any financial liabilities.
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II  SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
4  Financial instruoments { Continued)

4.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement (Contined )

4.2 . 3Financial assets and financial liabilides held for trading

A financial asset or financial liability is classified as held for trading if it

. is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the
near term; or

. on initial recognition is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking; or

. i5 a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantes contract or a
designated and effective hedging instrument}.

4.2 4 Financial assets and financial liabilites designated as at fair valve throagh profit or loss

The Group may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial asset or financial
liability as measured at fair value through profit or loss, because either:

. it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring assats or liabilities or recognising the gains and
losses on them on different bases; or

. a portfolio of financial liabilities or financial assets and financial liabilities s
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about
the portfolio is provided intemally on that basis to the Group's key management
personnel; or

. the financial liability contains one or more embedded derivatives, unless the embedded
derivative(s) does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no
analysis, that it would not be separately recorded.
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4

4.3

44

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Financial instruments { Continued)

Financial guarantee comtracts and loan commifments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the isswer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies to secure customer
loans, overdrafts and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised at fair value on the date the guarantee was
given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial guarantes contracts are measured
at the higher of the initial measurement less amortisation calculated and the impairment
allowance determined by the expected credit loss (“ECL™) model at the financial reporting
date. Any increase in the liability relating to financial guarantee contracts is recognised in
the income statement.

Loan commitments are commitments provided by the Group to customers to grant loans
under the established contract terms during certain period. The impairment allowance for
loan commitments is measured using the ECL model.

The impairment allowances for financial guarantees and loan commitments are presented in
“Orther liabilities — provision™.

Determination of falr value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair values
of quoted financial assets and financial liabilities in active markets are based on market
prices, as appropriate. If there is no active market, the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm's length transactions, discountad
cash flow analysis and option pricing models, and other valuation techniques commonly
used by market participants.

The Group uses valnation techniques commonly used by market participants to price
financial instruments and techaiques which have been demonstrated to provide reliable
estimates of prices obtained in actual market transactions. The Group makes use of all
factors that market participants would consider in setting a price, and incorporates these
into its chosen valuation techniques and tests for validity using prices from any observable
current market transactions in the same instruments.
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4

4.5

4.6

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Financial instruments { Continued)
Derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired. or when a financial asset is transferred, the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership, or when the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all risks or rewards of ownership of the financial asset but has not
retained control of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished, that is, when the
obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Impairment measurement for losses o assels

At the financial reporting date, the Group assesses and recognises the relevant impairment
allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income, and loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts on the basis of expected credit losses.

Measgrement of ECL

ECL is a weighted average of credit losses on financial instraments weighted at the risk of
default. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all cash flows expected to be received by the
Group discounted at the original effective interest rate {or credit-adjusted effective interest
rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets), i.e. the present value of all
cash shortfalls.

According to the changes of credit risk of financial instruments since initial recognition, the
Group calculates ECL by thres stages:

. stage 1: Financial instruments without significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition are included under Stage 1 to calculate their impairment allowance at an
amount equivalent to the ECL of the financial instruments for the next 12 months;

. stage 2: Financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition but have no objective evidence of impairment are included under
Stage 2, with their impairment allowance measured at an amount equivalent to the
ECL over the lifetime of the financial instruments;

. stage 3: Financial assets with objective evidence of impairment at the financial
reporting date are included under Stage 3, with thelr impairment allowance measured
at an amount equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instruments.
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4.6

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Financial instruments { Continued)

Impalrment measurement for losses on assets (Confing ed)

Measgrement of ECL (Continged)

Where, in the previous accounting period, the impairment allowance of a financial
instrument was measured based on the ECL of the instrument over the entire lifetime, and
while, at the current financial reporting date, such financial instrument is no longer regarded
as experiencing a significant increase in credit risk since its initial recognition, the Group
measures the impairment allowance of the financial instraoment as at the financial reporting
date using the ECL of the instroment over the next 12 months.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the Group only recognises
the cumulative changes in lifetime expected credit losses since initial recognition at the
financial reporting date as an impairment allowance. At each financial reporting date, the
Group recognises in profit or loss the amount of the change in lifetime expected credit
losses as an impairment gain or loss.

The Group measures ECL of a financial instrument in a way that reflects:

. an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range
of possible outcomes;

. time value of money; and

. reasonable and supportable information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions that is available without undue cost or effort at

the financial reporting date.

When measuring ECL, an eatity need not necessarily identify every possible scenario.
However, the Group considers the risk or probability that a credit loss occurs by reflecting
the possibility that a credit loss occurs and the possibility that no credit loss occurs, even
if the possibility of a credit loss occurring is very low. The parameters, assumptions and
estimation technigues used in measuring the ECL are disclosed in Note V1.2.3 measurement
of ECL.

361/590

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

II

4

4.7

4.8

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Financial instruments { Continued)
Moadification of contractual cash §ows

The Group sometimes modifies or renegotiates the contractual cash flows with a
counterparty, which include extending payment term arrangements, repayment schedule
modifications and changes to the interest settlement arrangement. When this happens, the
Group assesses whether or not the new terms are substantially different to the original
terms.

If the terms are not substantially different, it does not result in a derecognition of the
original financial asset. The risk of default of such assets after modification is assessed at
the financial reporting date and compared with the risk under the original terms at initial
recognition. The gross carrying amount of the financial asset is recalculated based on the
present value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
financial assat’s original effective interest rate, and the related gain or loss is recognised in
profit and loss.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognises the original financial asset
and recognizes a “new” asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate
for the asset. The date of renegotiation is consequently considered to be the date of initial
recognition for impairment calculation purposes, including for the purpose of determining
whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred. The Group also assesses whether
the new financial asset recognised is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition,
especially in circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable
to0 make the originally agreed payments. Differences in the carrving amount are also
recognised in profit or loss as a gain or loss on derecognition.

Write off

When the Group determines that a loan has no reasonable prospect of recovery after the
Group has taken necessary actions and necessary procesdings, the loan is written off
against its allowance for impairment losses. If in a subsequent period the loan written off
is recovered, the amount recovered will be recognised in profit or loss captured within
impairment losses on financial assets.
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II SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
4  Financial instruoments { Continued)
4.9 Derivative financial tnstrumemts and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subseguently remeasured at their fair value. Fair valoes are obtained
from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, or
valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models, as
appropriate. Credit risk valuation adjustments are applied to the Group’s over-the-countar
derivatives to reflect the credit risk of the counterparties and the Group, respectively. They
are dependent on the expected future values of exposures for each counterparty and default
probabilities, etc. All derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The treatment of the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated and qualifies as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. For derivatives not designated or qualified as hedging instruments, including those
intended to provide effective economic hedges of specific interest rate and foreign exchange
risks, but do not gualify for hedge accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivatives
are recognised in “Met trading gains” in the income statemeant.

The Gronp documents, at inception, the relationship between hedping instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge
transactions. When designating a hedging relationship and on an ongoing basis, the Group
assesses the hedge effectiveness, that is the extent to which changes in the fair value or cash
flows of the hedging instrument offsets changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged
item.

The hedging relationship should meet all of the following hedge effectiveness requirements:

. there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.
That means the hedging instrument and hedged item have values that generally move
in the opposite direction because of the same risk, which is the hedged risk;

. the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that
economic relationship; and
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II SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
4  Financial instruoments { Continued)
4.9 Derivative financial instroments and hedge accounting {Comtinoed)

. the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the
quantity of the hedged item that the entity actually hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrument that the entity actually uses to hedge that quantity of the hedged
item. However, that designation shall not reflect an imbalance between the weightings
of the hedged item and the hedging instroment that would create hedee ineffectivensss
that could result in an accounting outcome that would be inconsistent with the purposa
of hedge accounting.

Possible sources of ineffectiveness are as follows:
. notional and timing differences between the hedged items and hedging instmments;
. significant changes in counterparties’ credit risk.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when the hedging instrument
expires orf Is sold, terminated or exercised (the replacement or rollover of a hedging
instrument into another hedging instrument does not constitute an expiration or termination),
or the hedging relationship ceases to mest the updated risk management objective, or to
meet other qualifving criteria for hedging accounting.

If a hedging relationship ceases to mest the hedge effectiveness requirement relating to
the hedge ratio but the risk management objective for that designated hedging relationship
remains the same, the Group adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship so that it
meets the qualifying criteria again.

(1) Fair value hedge

Fair value hedge is a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognised asset
or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment, or a component of any such item, that is
attributable to a particular risk and could affect profit or loss.

The changes in fair value of hedging instruments that are designated and qualify as fair
value hedges are recorded in the income statement, together with the changes in fair
value of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. The net resalt is included as
ineffectivensss in the income statement.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the
carrving amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is
amortised to the income statement over the period to maturity.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Financial instruments { Continued)

Dertvative financial instroments and hedge accounting { Comtined)

Cash flow hedge

Cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable
to a particular risk associated with all, or a component of, a recognised asset or liability (such
as all or some future interest pavments on variable-rate debt) or a highly probable forecast
transaction, and could affect profit or loss.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of hedging instruments that are designated
and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in “Other comprehensive income™. The
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the income statement in the same periods
when the hedged fomre cash flows affect profit or loss.

When the Group discontinues hedge accounting for a cash flow hedge, if the hedged futore
cash flows are still expectad to occur, that amount accumulated in the cash flow hedge
reserve shall remain in equity. If the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to
occur, that amount shall be immediately reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to
profit or loss.

Net investment hedoe
Met investment hedge is a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow
hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the
hedge is recognised directly in other comprehensive income; the gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement. Gains and losses
accumulated in equity are reclassified to the income statement when the foreign operation is
disposed of as part of the gain or loss on the disposal.

When the Group separates the forward element and the spot element of a forward contract
and designates as the hedging instrument only the change in the value of the spot element,
the changes in the value of the forward element of the forward contract shall be recognised
in other comprehensive income to the extent that it relates to the hedged item.
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II SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
4  Financial instruoments { Continued)
4.10 Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also
includes a non-derivative host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the
hybrid {combined) instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative.
If a hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset, the Group applies the
requirements of classification and measurement to the entire hybrid contract. If a hybrid
contract contains a host that is not a financial asset, the Group separates the embedded
derivative from the host contract and accounts for it as a derivative, if, and only if:
. the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely
related to those of the host contract;
. a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and
. the hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement.
These embedded derivatives separated from the host contract are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
If it is unable to measure the embedded derivative separately either at acquisition or at the
subseguent financial reporting date, the Group will designate the entire hybrid instrument as
at fair value through profit or loss.
4.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a current legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION ( Continued)
Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals. The Group retains all risks
and rewards of ownership related to precious metals deposited with the Group, including
the right to freely pledge or transfer, and it records the precious metals received as an asset.
A liability to return the amount of precious metals deposited is also recognised. Precious
metals that are not related to the Group's precions metal market making and trading
activities are initially measured at acguisition cost and subsequently measured at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Precious metals that are related to the Group’s market
making and trading activities are initially recognised at fair value and subseguent changes
in fair value included in “Net trading gains™ are recopnised in the income statement.

Repurchase agreements, apreements to re-sell and securities kending

Securities and bills sold subject to repurchase agreements (“Repos™) continne to be
recognised and are recorded as “Financial investments”. The corresponding obligation is
included in “Placements from banks and other financial institutions™ and “Due to central
banks". Securities and bills purchased under agreements to re-sell (“Reverse repos™) are not
recognised. The receivables are recorded as “Placements with and loans to banks and other
financial institutions™ or “Balances with central banks", as appropriate,

The difference betwesn purchase and sale price is recognisad as “Interest expense” or “Interast
income” in the income statement over the life of the agpreements using the effective interast
method.

Securities lending transactions are generally secured, with collateral taking the form
of securities or cash. Securities lent to counterparties by the Group are recorded in the
consolidated financial statements. Securities borrowed from counterparties by the Group
are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements of the Group. Cash collateral
received or advanced is recognised as a liability or an asset in the consolidated financial
statements.

Property and equipment and construction in progress

The Group's property and equipment mainly comprise buildings. egquipment and motor
vehicles and aircraft. When the costs attributable to the land use rights cannot be reliably
measured and separated from that of the building at inception, the costs are included in the
cost of buildings and recorded in “Property and equipment™.

Assets purchased or constructed are initially measured at acquisition cost or deemed cost,

as appropriate. Such initial cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the assats,
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7.2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Property and equipment and construction in progress ( Continued )

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the
income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line method to write down the cost of such assets to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The residual values and useful lives
of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial reporting date.

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment at each financial reporting date.
Where the carrving amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by the difference between proceeds and
carrying amount, after deduction of relevant taxes and expenses. These are included in the
income statement.

Buildings, eguipment and mafor velicles
Buildings comprise primarily branch and office premises. The estimated useful lives,

estimated residual value rate and depreciation rate of buildings, equipment and motor
vehicles are as follows:

Estimated Annual

Estimated residual depreciation

Type of assets useful lives value rate rate
Buildings 15-50 years A% 1.9%-6.5%
Equipmeqnt 3-15 years 3% 6.4%-32.4%
Motor vehicles 4-6 vears 3% 16.1%-24 3%

Alrcraft
Aircraft are used in the Group's aircraft operating leasing business,
Aircraft are depreciated using the straighi-line method over the expected useful life of 25

years, less the vears in service at the time of purchase to an estimated residual value rate
varving from 0% to 15%.
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7.3

8.1

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Property and equipment and construction in progress ( Continued )
Construction in progress

Construction in progress consists of assets under construction or being installed and is
stated at cost. Cost includes equipment cost, cost of construction, installation and other
direct costs. Items classified as construction in progress are transferred to property and
equipment when such assets are ready for their intended use and the depreciation charge
commences after such assets are transferred to propecty and sguipment.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of one
or more identified assets for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As Lessee

The lease term is the non-cancellable period of a lease for which the Group has the right to
use an underlying asset. The Group considers a lease that, at the commencement date of the
lease, has a lease tenm of 12 months or less, and does not contain any option to purchase
the underlving asset as a short-term lease; and a lease for which the value of the individual
underlying asset is relatively low when new as a lease of low-value asset. The Group
chooses not to recognise the right-of -use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets, and the rental expenses are recognised as “Operating expenses”
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over each period of the lease term.

The Group uses the incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate to calculate the present
value of lease payment. The economic circomstance and the observable interest rate set
the foundation for each institution of the Group in determining the incremental borrowing
rate. On this basis, the applicable incremental borrowing rate is calculated through the
adjustment of the reference intersst rate, which is determined according to the situation of
the Bank and its subsidiaries and the underlying asset, the lease term, the amount of lease
liability and other specific conditions of the lease.
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8.1

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Leases ( Continued)

As Lessee (Contimred)

Right-of-use assels

The right-of-use assets of the Group mainly include buildings, vehicles and other
right-of-use assats.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset. The cost
of the right-of-use asset comprises:

(1} the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(2) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date of the lease less any
lease incentives received;

{3) any initial direct costs incurred when the Group is a lessee; and

{4y an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lesses in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlving
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis subsequently by the Group.
If the Group i1s reasonably certain that the ownership of the underlving asset will be
transferred to the Group at the end of the lease term. the Group depreciates the asset from
the commencement date to the end of the useful life of the asset. (therwise, the Group
depreciates the asset from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life
of the asset or the end of the lease term.

The Group remeasures the lease liabilities at the present value of the changed lease
payments and adjusts the carrying amounts of the rfight-of-use assets accordingly. When the
carrving amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero, and there is a further reduction
in the measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognises the remaining amount of the
remeasurement in profit or loss.

Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group measures the lease liabilities at the

present valoe of the lease payments that are not paid at that date, except for shori-term
leasas and leases of low-value assets.
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II

8.1

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Leases ( Continued)

As Lessee (Contimred)

Lease liabilites (Continmed)

In calculating the present value of the lease payments, the Group unses the incremental
borrowing rate of lessee as the discount rate. The Group calculates the interest expenses
of lease liabilities in each period during the lease term using the constant periodic rate of
interest, and recognises such interest expenses in profit or loss. Variable lease pavments
that are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities are recopnised in profit or loss
as incurred.

After the commencement date, the Group remeasures lease liabilities by discounting
the revised lease payments if any of the following occur: (i) there is a change in the
in-substance fixed payments; (ii) there is a change in the amounts expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee; {iii) there is a change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or a rate nsed to determine those payments; or ({iv) there is a
change in the assessments of options to purchase the underlying asset, extend or terminate
the lease, or the circumstances of the actual exercise of these options.

Lease modification

Lease modification is a change in the scope of a lease, the consideration for a lease or
lease term, that was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease. For example,
adding or terminating the right to use one or more underlying assets, or extending or
shortening the contractual lease term.

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate leasa if both:

{1y the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlving assets; and

(2) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, at the effective date

of the lease modification, the Group remeasures the lease term and the lease liability by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.
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II

5.2

10

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION ( Continued)
Leases ( Continued)
As Lessor

At the inception date, a lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. Otherwise, a lease is
classified as an operating lease.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, the Group recognises the finance lease
receivable and derecognises the assets under finance leases at the commencement date.
The Group recognise assets held under a finance lease in the consolidated statement of
financial position and such assets at an amount egual 1o the net investment in the lease. Net
investment in the lease is the present value of the sum of the unguaranteed residual value
and the lease payments that are not received at the commencement date, which is discounted
by the interest rate implicit in the lease. The Group calculates and recognises the interest
income in each period during the lease term using the constant periodic rate of interest, and
recognises such interest income in profit or loss. Income relating to variable lease payments
that are not measured as part of the net investment in the lease are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

When the Group is a lessor under operating leases, the Group reflects the underlying assets
as the Group's assats. The rental income is recognised as “Other operating income™ in the
income statement on a straight-line basis over each period of the lease term. Income relating
to variable lease payments that are not measured as part of the receivable in the lease are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally consisting of office buildings, are held to generate
rental income or earn capital gains or both and are not occupied by the Group. Investment
properties are carried at fair value and changes in fair value are recorded in the income
statement, representing the open market value and other related information determined
periodically by independent appraisers.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance owned and
controlled by the Group, including computer software and other intangible assets.

Computer software and other intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated

amortisation and impairment. Thesa costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives with the amortisation recognised in the income statement.
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10

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Intangible assets {Continued)

Expenditure on research and development mainly includes staff cost, depreciation and
amortisation of equipment and software during research and development activities.
The expenditure on research and development project is classified into expenditure on
the research phase and expenditure on the development phase. Research is defined as
original and planned investigation undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific
or technical knowledge and understanding. Development is defined as the application
of research findings or other knowledge to a plan or design for the production of new or
substantially improved materials, devices, products etc. before the start of commercial
production or use. Expenditure on research phase is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on the development phase is capitalised only if
all of the following conditions are satisfied:

. It is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale;

. Intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

. It can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will generate economic benefits,
including the evidence of the existence of a market for the output of the intangible
asset or the intangible asset itself or, if it is to be used internally, the usefulness of the
intangible asset;

. There are adequate techmical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and the ability to use or sell the intangible asset, and

. The expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development phase can
be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not mest the conditions above are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

The value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment at each financial reporting date.
Where the carrving amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is

written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an intangible asset is the higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use.
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11

12

13

131

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Employee benefits
Bonos plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses, taking into consideration
its business performance and profit attributable to the Bank's equity holders. The Group
recognises a liability where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. The amount initially recognised as a provision should be the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation.

Insurance contracts
Tdentification of Insurance Cortracts

The insurance subsidiaries of the Group bear insurance risk through issnance of insurance
contracts. The Group assesses whether each contract transfers significant insurance risk to
determine whether it is within the scope of IFRS 17.

Insurance contracts subject to similar risks and managed together are prouped as a portfolio
of insurance contracts. Each portfolio is further divided into groups of contracts mainly
basaed on profitability, extent of loss or possibility of becoming onerous contract subsequent
to imitial recognition. Insurance contracts issued more than one year apart should not be
included in the same group.

13.2 Recognition and messurement of insurance contracts

The Group considers a group of insurance contracts as the lowest unit of account. Insurance
contracts are measured using general measurement model (“GMM™), variable fee approach
(“VFA™) or preminm allocation approach (“FAA™) as at the end of each reporting period.
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II
13

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

13.2 Recognidon and measurement of insurance contracs (Continred)

14

For the GMM., the insurance contracts are measured with the following building block:

. present value of future cash flows that relate directly to the fulfilment of the contracts
discounted at applicable current discount rates;

. risk adjustments for non-financial risks; and
. contractual service margin representing unearned profit of the contracts.

Contractual service margin is adjusted at the end of each reporting period for changes
in fulfilment cash flows that relate to future service; and will be recognised in insurance
revenue in subsequent periods to reflect the insurance services provided under “Other
operating income™, The Group shall recognise a loss at initial recognition of a group of
Onerous insurance contracts or when the group of contracts becomes onerous on subsequent
measurement under “Operating expenses™ in the income statement.

Insurance related revenne are presented in “Other operating income™, whersas insurance
service expenses and insurance finance income or expenses of certain portfolios of
insurance contracts are presented in “Operating expenses”. Directly atiributable insurance
acquisition cash flows are amortised in both “Other operating ncome™ and “Operating
expensas’ during the lifetime of insurance contracts.

Discount rates nsed to measure the insurance contracts by the Group are consistent with
observable current market prices to reflect the time value of money and financial risks
related to those cash flows. For certain portfolios of insurance contracts, the Group chooses
to disaggregate the insurance finance income or expenses for the period, arising from the
effect of the time value of money and financial risks, into “Operating expenses™ and “Other
comprehensive income™.

Apart from the GMM, the Group applies the VFA to insurance contracts with direct
participation feature, Under the VFA, changes in the Group's share in the underlying items
are related to changes in future services to be provided, and related contractual service
margin will be adjusted. In addition, the Group simplifies measurement of short-term
insurance contracts within one year or other eligible insurance contracts nsing the PAA.

Preference shares and perpetual bonds

Preference shares issued by the Group contain no contractual obligation to deliver cash
or another financial asset; or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with
another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Group. Preference
shares issued are non-derivative instruments that will be settled in the Group's own equity
instruments, but includes no contractual obligation for the Group to deliver a variable
aumber of its own equity instruments. The Group classifies preference shares issued as
an equity instrument. Fees, commissions and other transaction costs of preference shares
issuance are deducted from equity. Dividends on preference shares are recognised as profit
distribution at the time of declaration.
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14

15

16

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Preference shares and perpetual bonds (Continued)

Perpetual bonds issued by the Group contain no contractual obligation to deliver cash or
another financial asset; or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another
entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Group. Perpetual bonds
izzned include no terms and arrangements that the bonds must or will alternatively be
sattled in the Group’s own equity instruments. The Group classifies perpetual bonds issned
as an equity instrument. Fees, commissions and other transaction costs of perpetual bonds
Issuance are deducted from equity. Interest on perpetual bonds is recognised as profit
distribution at the time of declaration.

Contingent Habilitles

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence of non-occurrence of one of mode
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that 15 not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as a custodian, trustee or in other fidociary capacities, that result in its
holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals, securities investment funds., social
security funds, insurance companies, qualified foreign institutional investors, annuity
schemes and other customers. These assets are not included in the statement of financial
position of the Group, as they are not assets of the Group.

The Group also administers entrusted loans on behalf of third-party lenders. In this regard,
the Group grants loans to borrowers, as an intermediary, at the direction of third-party
lenders, who fund these loans. The Group has been contracted by these third-party lenders
to manage the administration and collection of these loans on their behalf. The third-party
lenders determine both the underwriting criteria for and all terms of the entrusted loans,
including their purposes, amounts, interest rates, and repayvment schedules. The Group
charges a commission related to its activities in connection with the entrusted loans, but
the risk of loss is borne by the third-party lenders. Entrusted loans are not recognised in the
statement of financial position of the Group.
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18

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Interest iIncome and expense

“Interest income™ and “Interast expense” in the Group’s income statement are the intenast
income and expense calculated using the effective interest method on financial assets at
amortised cost, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Effsctive interest method is used in the calculation of the amortised cost of a financial asset
or a financial liability and in the allocation and recognition of the interest income or interest
expense in profit or loss over the relevant period. Effective interest rate is that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of a financial asset or
financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or the amortised cost of a
financial liability. When calculating effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected
cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrumnent but does not
consider expected credit losses. The calculation includes all amounts paid or received by the
Group that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

For those purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the Group calculates the
interest income by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from initial recognition. Credit-adjusted effective intersst rate is that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial
assel to the amortised cost of a financial asset that is a purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial asset.

For those financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets but subsequently have become credit-impaired financial assets, the Group calculates
the interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.

Fee and commission income

The Group earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides
to its customers. For those services that are provided over a period of time, fee and
commission income is accrued in accordance with the terms and conditions of the service
agreement. For other services, fee and commission income is recognised when the
transactions are completed.
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II SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
19 Income taxes

Income taxes comprise current income tax and defered income tax. Tax is recognised in the
income stafement except to the extent that it relates to items directly recognised in Equity,
in which case, tax is also directly recognised in Equity.

19.1 Current Incame tax

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantially enacted at the financial reporting date, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of pravious years.

19.2 Deferred Incame fax

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the financial reporting date and are
expected to apply when the related asset is realised. or the liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment allowances, revaluation of
certain financial assets and financial liabilities including derivative contracts, revaluation
of investment properties, depreciation and amortization, provisions for pension, retirement
benefits and salary pavables.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised
except the deferred tax asset arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects
feither accounting profit nor taxable profitloss and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

For deductible temporary differences associated with investment in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, a deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that, and only to the
extent that, it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foresseable
future; and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities shall be recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except
to the extent that the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill,
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business
combination, and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit/loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

Income taxes (Continued)

19.2 Deferred Incame tax (Contlmred )

20

21

Deferred income tax liabilities on taxable temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are recognised, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable futare.

The tax effects of income tax losses available for carrying forward are recognised as an
asset when it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these
losses can be utilisad.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right

to offset cumrent tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
are related to the same fiscal authority.

Cash equivalents
Cash equivalents of the Group are short-term and highly liquid assets, which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. These assets have original maturity of less than three months,
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(1) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person:
(a) has confrol or joint control over the Group;

(b has significant influence over the Group; or

{c) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
{2) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

{a) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(b) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity {or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

{c) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(dy one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity;

(g} the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of emploveas of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(fy the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (1);

(g) a person identified in (1)a) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity {or of a parent of the

entity).
Segment reporting

The Group reviews the internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Segment information is presented on the same basis as the Group's managemeqnt
and internal reporting.

Materiality

The concept of materiality is applied by management in the preparation of financial
statements and disclosures. Financial information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements,
which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity. The Group assesses
whether the financial information is material depending on the nature and magnitude, or
both, considering entity-specific sitnation. When considering the nature of the information,
the Group considers whether the nature of such information is related to normal operating
activity, whether it has significant impact on the Gronp’s financial position, operating
results and cash flows. When considering the magnitude of the information, the Group
considers the proportion of such information of total assets, total liabilities, total equity,
total operating income, total operating expenses, profit after tax, total other comprehensive
income and respective financial statement line items.
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I CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting estimates and judgements made by the Group will generally affect
the carrving amounts of assets and liabilities of the next financial year. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group has taken into consideration the impact of the economic environment on the
industries and territories in which the Group operates when determining critical accounting
estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies.

Arens susceptible to changes in critical estimates and judgements, which affect the carrving
value of assets and liabilities, are set out below. It is possible that actual results may be
materially different from the estimates and judpements referred below.

1 Measurement of ECL
The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at
amortised cost, debt instroments measured at FVOCI and loan commitments and financial
guarantse contracts is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant
assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behaviour (the likelihood of
customers defaulting and the resulting lossas).

A number of significant judgements and estimations are required in applying the accounting
requirements for measuring ECL., such as:

. segmentation of portfolios sharing similar credit risk characteristics for the purposes of
measuring ECL;

. selection of appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL;

. determination of criteria for determining significant increases in credit risk, default
and credit-impaired financial assets;

. economic indicators for forward-looking measurement, and the application of
economic scenarios and weightings for different types of products; and

. estimation of futare cash flows for impaired loans and advances to customers where
ECL is being assessed individually.

Refer to Mote VI.2.3 measurement of ECL for the description of the parameters,
assumptions and estimation technigques used in measuring the ECL.
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I CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 Falr value of financial instruments

The Group establishes fair value of financial instruments with reference to a quoted market
price in an active market or, if there is no active market, using valuation technigues. Thesa
valuation technigues include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, observable prices
for similar instroments, discounted cash flow analysis using risk-adjusted interest rates, and
commonly used market pricing models. Whenever possible these models use observable
market inputs and data including, for example, interest rate vield curves, foreign currency
rates and option volatilities. The results of using valuation techniques are calibrated apainst
the industry practice and observable current market transactions in the same or similar
instruments.

The Group assesses assumptions and estimates used in valuation technigues including
review of valuation model assumptions and characteristics, changes to model assumptions,
the quality of market data, whether markets are active or inactive, other fair value
adjustments not specifically captured by models and consistency of application of
techniques between reporting periods as part of its normal review and approval processes.
Waluation technigques are walidated and periodically reviewed and, where appropriate,
updated to reflect market conditions at the financial reporting date.

3 Provisions

The Group uses judeement to assess whether the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events at each financial reporting date, and judgement is used
to determine if it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and to determine a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation and relevant disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.
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I CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4  Taxes

The Group is subject to income, value-added and other taxes in numerous jurisdictions,
principally in Chinese mainland and Hong Kong (China). During the ordinary course of
business, there are certain transactions and activities for which the final tax treatment is
uncertain. The Group takes into account the existing tax legislations and past practice in
determining the tax estimates.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially estimated, such differences will impact the current income tax, deferred income
tax, and value-added tax in the period during which such a determination is made.

5 Impairment of non-financial assets

Mon-financial assets are periodically reviewed for impairment and where the carrving
amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use.

When estimating the value in use of aircraft held by the subsidiary, the Group estimates
expected future cash flows from the aircraft and uses a sunitable discount rate to calculate
present value. The Group obtains valuations of aircraft from independent appraisers for
which the principal assumptions underlving aircraft value are based on current market
transactions for similar aircraft in the same location and condition. The Group also uses
the fair value of aircraft obtained from independent appraisers in its assessment of the
recoverable amount of intangible assets and the goodwill arising from the purchase of the
Group's aircraft leasing subsidiary.
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I CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING

Iv

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Judgement in assessing control over structured entities

The Group is involved with structared entities in its normal business course, and the Group
determines whether or not 1o consolidate those structured entities depending on whether the
Group has control over them. When assessing control over structured entities, the Group
takes consideration of power arising from rights it directly owns or indirectly owns through
subsidiaries (including controlled structured entities), variable returns, and the link betwesn
power and returns.

Variable returns the Group is exposed to from its involvement with structured entities
include decision makers” remuneration (such as management fees and performance-related
fees), as well as other benefits (such as investment income, remuneration and exposure to
loss from providing credit or liguidity support, and variable returns from transactions with
structured entities). When assessing whether it controls a struoctured entity, the Group not
only considers applicable legal or regulatory requirements, and contractual agreements, but
also other circumstances where the Group may have obligation to absorb any loss of the
structured entity.

The Group reassesses whether it controls a structured entity if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the relevant elements of control.

TAXATION
The principal income and other taxes to which the Group is subject are listed below:
Taxes Tax basis Statutory rates

Chinese mainland

Corporate income tax Taxable income 5%
Value-added tax Taxable added value 6%
City construction and maintenance tax Turnover tax paid 1%-T%
Education surcharges Turnover tax paid 3%
Local education sarcharges Turnover tax paid 2%

Hong Kong (China)
Hong Kong (China) profits tax Assessable profits 16.5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS

Met Interest income

Interest income

Loans and advances to customers
— Corporate loans and advances
— Personal loans
— Discounted bills

Financial investments
— Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income

— Financial assets at amortised cost

Due from and placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions and central banks

Subtotal

Interest expense
Due to customers
Due to and placements from banks and
other financial institutions
Bonds issued and other

Subtotal

Met interest income

385/590

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
750,601 652,655
465947 361,805
275 494 282,390

9,160 8,460
192,203 164,603
86,272 61,064
106,021 102,639
105957 63,500
1,048 851 880,848
(450,851) (311,923)
{84,376) {64.761)
(47,079) {44,808)
(582.306) (421,582)
466,545 450,266
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

2 Net fee and commission income

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
Apency commissions 21,134 22319
Settlement and clearing fees 16672 15,904
Bank card fees 13,585 12,256
Credit commitment fess 11412 11,368
Custodian and other fiduciary service fees 8,381 6,844
Consultancy and advisory fees 8,051 5651
Spread income from foreign exchange business 5,751 5,788
Other 7.183 6,882
Fee and commission income 92,369 B7. 102
Fes and commission expense (13.504) (12,212)
Met fee and commission income 78.865 74 390

3 Net trading gains

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

Met gains from foreign exchange and
foreign exchangs products 0034 2,047
Met gains from interest rate products 17 647 2,203
Met losses from fund investments and eguity products (B35) (4.740)
Met gains from commodity products L9977 a1l
Total ™ 28,723 7.221

* —
(1) Inciuded in “Met wading gains” above for the year ended 31 December 2023 were gains of RMEL444

million in medation to financial assets and financial liabilites desigreted as at fair valne through profit or loss (2022:
losses of RMB1, 173 million).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

4

Met gains on transfers of financial asset

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
Met (losses)/zains on derecognition of financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income (973) 652
Met gains on derecognition of financial assets at
amortised cost 1,779 1431
Total 806 2083

— ————————

(1) Al the net goins on the derecognition of financinl assets at amortised cost were result from disposals
during the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,

Other operating income

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
Revenue from sales of precions metal products 14,311 0413
Adrcraft leasing income 13,432 12,058
Insurance revequs 10,309 2,601
Dividend income 4,563 6,036
Gains on disposals of property and equipment,
intangible assets and other assets 1671 979
Changes in fair value of investment properties
(Mote V.22) (632) (7
Oither 5545 5921
Total 40,100 43,001

(1) For the year ended 31 December 2023, government subsidy income from operating activities, as part of
other operating income, was RMB359 miltion (2022: RMB20& miflion).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Operating expenses

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
Staff costs (Note V.7) 107,872 101,004
General operating and administrative expenses (1102 44778 44730
Depreciation and amortisation 24 853 23579
Cast of sales of precions metal products 13939 9,090
Insurance service expenses 9020 7514
Insurance finance expenses/i{income) 6,904 (3.279)
Taxes and surcharges 6,098 6,072
Other 9,379 10,496
Tota] & ® 222933

(1

{2

{3

{4

; 199,506

Included in the “Genersl operating and administrative expenses” was principal anditors’ remuneration of
REMB 193 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB182 million), of which EMBES million
ia for Hong Kong (China), Macao (China). Taiwan (China) and other countries and regiors of the Group (2022:
RMBT3 million).

Included in the “Genernl operating and administrative expenses” were lease expenses related to shori-tecm
lesmea, leases of low-value msets and others of EMB1.239 million for the year endad 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB 1,045 million).

Included in the “Opemting expenses” weme premises and equipment-related expenses (mainly comprised of
property management and building maintenance expenses and tames) of RMB13.554 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB13,188 million).

Included in the “Operating expenses” was expenditure melated to reseanch and development activities of
RMB459 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB342 million).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

7 Staff costs

Salary, bonus and subsidy
Staff welfare
Retirement benefits
Social insurance

— Medical

— Pension

— Annuity

— Unemploy ment

— Injury at work

— Maternity insurance
Housing funds
Labour union fee and staff education fee

Reimbursement for cancellation of labour contract

Oither

Total
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Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
75,143 70,956
4,821 4,972
38 29
4,388 3,690
6,014 6,420
4,114 3,820
245 216

98 86

119 109
5,451 5,117
Lol 1140
20 25
4,610 4,415
107,872 101,004
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
Directors®, supervisors® and senjor management’s emoluments

Details of the directors’ and supervisors” emoluments are as follows:

For the vear ended 31 December 2023

Contributions
Remuneration o pensian Benefits in
Fees paid schemes kind Total
RME 000 RME 00D RMB"d0@ RMEB 00 RMB 00D
Executive direct ars
GE Haijiao = 504 101 71 676
LI Fin'® - £73 134 o3 i}
LI lingzhea® - 05 127 o3 815
WANG Wit L 151 31 ] 205
Nog-executive directors
ZHAMG Yong'® - - - - -
ZHAMG Hangang! - - - - -
HUAMNG Binghua™ - - - - -
LITT e - - - - -
SHI Yongyan!* - - - - -
X140 Libong!™e - - - - -
WANG Xiaoya®r - - - - -
CHEM Jianbete - - - - -
Independent dire ctars
Martin Cheung Kong LTAO 450 - - - 450
CHUI Zai Peng Joae 500 - - - 500
Jean-Louis Bkm 450 - - - 450
E Weainan 350 - - - 350
Giovanni Tria 400 - - - 400
TTANG Guobua'™ 480 - - - 480
Supervisars
WEI Hanguang™ 50 - - - 50
ZHOU Hehua™ 50 - - - 50
TIA Xiangseq 260 - - - 260
HUI Ping 260 - - - 260
CHIJ Yiyun 260 - - - 260
ZHAMG Eagin'™® - 673 134 o3 o0
LEMG Hes 4 - - - 4
3,523 2,606 527 373 7,028
270
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Directors’, supervisors® and senlor management®s emoluments { Continued)

For the vear ended 31 December 2022

Contributions
Remuneration o pension Benefits in
Fees paid schemes kind Total
EMIB O EMIB 000 RMB B0 BB 0D RMEB 0D
Executive direct ars
LI Yin'™® - oan 125 25 L1
LIN Yingzhea™ - 8a7 118 84 Lon
WANG Wit - BOB 118 B4 Lo12
Non-execuiive directors
THAMG Hangang™ - - - - -
HUAMNG Binghua™ - - - - -
ZHAD Y - - - - -
X140 Libong!te - - - - -
WANG Xiaoya ™ - - - - -
CHEN TinohofHe - - - - -
Tndepen dent directors
Martin Cheung Kong LIAC 450 - - - 450
CHUI Sai Peng Joae 493 - - - 493
Jean-Louis Bkm 250 - - - 250
E Weinan 152 - - - 152
Giovanni Tria 174 - - - 174
JTANG Guobua™ GO0 - - - &0
WANG Changyan 300 - - - 300
Anpeln CHAD 225 - - - 225
CHEN Chun s 328 - - - 329
Supervisors
'WHI Hanguang™ 50 - - - 50
ZHOU Hehua™ 50 - - - 50
JIA Xiangzen 260 - - - 260
HUI Ping v} - - - 13
CHU Yiyun 127 - - - 127
THAMG Keagin - Gan 125 B4 Lin
LENG He## 50 - - - 50
ZHENG Zhiguang 129 - - - 129
3,842 3415 486 344 2,107

7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Directors’, supervisors® and senlor management®s emoluments { Continued)

(1)

()

(3

(4)

(5)

(6]

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, thess non-emecutive directors of the Bank were not
remunemted by the Bank.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, these executive directors of the Bank did not receive any
fees.

Employes supervisors” compensation preseated above is paid for serving as the supervisors of the Baak.

A portion of the discretionary boous payments for emecutive directors and the Chairman of the Board of
Supervisors are deferred for & minimum of 3 years, which is contingent upon the future performance in
accordance with relevant regulations of the PRC authorities.

The total compensation packages for executive directors and certein supervisors for the year ended 31
December 2023 including discretionary bonus have not yet been finalized in accordance with the relevant
regulations of the PRC authorities. The amount of the compensation not provided for is not expectad to
have aoy significant impact on the Group's 2023 financial statements. The final compensation for the year
endad 31 December 2023 will be disclosed in a sepambe announcement when detarmined.

The compensation amounts for these directors and supervisors for the year ended 31 December 2022 wera
restabed based on the finalised amounts as disclosed in the Bank’s anpouncement on resolutions of the
Board of Directors dated 30 Angust 2023,

GE Haijino began to serve as Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive director of the Bank as
of 25 April 2023, ZHANG Yong began to sarve as Mon-executive ditector of the Bank as of 9 June 2023,
LIUT Hui began to serve as Mon-executive director of the Bank as of 24 August 2023, SHI Yongyan began
to serve as Non-executive director of the Bank as of 25 September 2023, LIU Xiaoled began to serve as
Independent disector of the Bank as of 26 Marnch 2024, Since LIU Xisoled did not hold any position at the
Board of Directora of the Baok in 2023, no emoluments were disclosed in 2023,

WANG Wei ceasad to serve ns Executive director of the Bank as of 21 March 2023, XTIAO Lihong and
WANG Xinoya ceased to serve as Mon-executive director of the Bank as of 30 June 3023, CHEN Jianbo
ceased o serve as Non-executive director of the Bank as of 17 April 2023, JIANG Guohua ceased to
sarve as Independent director of the Bank as of 26 Pebruary 2024, ZHANG Kegiu ceased to serve as
Chairwoman of the Board of Supervisors and Shareholder Supervisor as of 5 Febmuary 2024. LENG lie
ceased to serve 08 Bmployee Supervisor as of 31 Jannary 2023

272
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
8 Directors’, supervisors® and senlor management®s emoluments { Continued)
Five highest pald individials

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none of them are directors or
supervisors whose emoluments are disclosed above.

The emoluments payable to the five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the vears ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

Basic salaries and allowances 22 20
Discretionary bonuses 30 55
Contributions to pension schemes and other 1 2
62 77

Emoluments of the individuals were within the following bands:

Year ended 31 December

Amounts in RMB 2023 2022
5,000,001 - 10,000,000 2 -
10,000,001-15 000,000 2 4
15,000,001 -20.000.000 - -
20,000,001 -25 000 000 1 -
25,000,001 - 30,000 000 — 1

The above five highest paid individuals® emoluments are based on best estimates of
discretionary bonuses. Discretionary bonuses include portions of pavments that are deferred
to future periods.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group has not paid any
emoluments to the directors, supervisors, or s2nlor management as an indocement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

9 Credit iImpairment losses

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
Loans and advances
— Loans and advances at amortised cost 106,213 92,769
— Loans and advances at fair value through
other comprehensive income (29} 24
Subtotal 106,114 92,793
Financial investments
— Financial assets at amortised cost 034 154
— Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 2,002 (575)
Subtotal 3026 (421
Credit commitments (799) 5,781
Other (1.847) (160
Total 106494 07,993
274

394/590



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn

BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
10  Income tax expense

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
Current income tax
— Chinese mainland income tax 48,202 47,633
— Hong Kong (China) profits tax 5401 5,082
— Macao (China), Taiwan (China) and
other countries and regions taxation 6,155 5,016
Adjustments in respect of current income tax
of prior years T3 2473
Subtotal 59,836 60,204
Deferred income tax (Mote ¥.36.3) (10,599} (13,288)
Total 492'? 46,916

The principal tax rates applicable to the Group are set out in Note IV.

Provision for Chinese mainland income tax includes income tax based on the statutory tax
rate of 25% of the taxable income of the Bank and each of its subsidiaries established in
the Chinese mainland, and supplementary PRC tax on overseas operations as determined in
accordance with the relevant PRC income tax rules and regulations.

Taxation on profits of Hong Kong (China), Macao (China), Taiwan (China) and other
countries and regions has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits in accordance

with local tax regulations at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries or regions in
which the Group operates.
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

10

Income tax expense (Comtinued )

The tax rate on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the basic Chinese mainland tax rate of the Bank as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at the basic Chinese mainland tax rate

Effect of different tax rates for Hong Kong (China),
Macao (China), Taiwan (China) and other conntries
and regions

Supplementary PRC tax on overseas income

Income not subject to tax

Items not deductible for tax purposes &

Oither

Income tax expense

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
295 608 283,641
73,902 70,910
(5.137) (3.601)
3,089 3,019
(35,178) (31,038)
13,262 7,608
(701) 018
49237 46,916

(1) Income not subject o mx mainly comprises interest income from PRC treasury bonds and Chinese local
gowernment bonds, and teax-free income recognised by the overseas entities in accordance with the relevant

local tax law.

(2} Non-deductible items primarily include non-deductible losses mesulting from the write-off of certain non-
performing loans, and entertinment expenses in excess of the melevant deductible threshold under the

relevant PRC tax regulations.
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10

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
Income tax expense (Comtinued )
QECD Pillar Two model rules

In December 2021, the OECD published Tax Challenges Arising from the Digitalisation of
the Economy — Global Anti-Base Erosion Model Rules (Pillar Two).

The Group is within the scope of the Pillar Two roles. As at 31 December 2023, Chinese
mainland has not legislated the Pillar Two. The United Kingdom, Luxembourg, Germany,
ete., where some of the Group's branches and subsidiaries are located, have enacted Pillar
Two local legislation, and have come into effect on or after | January 2024, Since the plobal
Pillar Two legislation was not effective at 31 December 2023, the Group is not reguired to
recognise the related current income tax for the year ended 31 December 2023, Meanwhile,
the Group applies the exception to recognising and disclosing information about deferred
tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes, as provided in the amendments
1o IAS 12-Income Taxes issued in May 2023,

When Pillar Two becomes effective in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, the
Group is required to calculate the effective tax rate for each jurisdiction under the Pillar
Two rules and to recognise a top-up tax on any shortfall of 15%. Due to the complexity
of the Pillar Two calculations and the difference betwesn the effective tax rate caleolated
under Pillar Two and [AS 12-Income Taxes, the Group is currently engaged with tax
specialists to assist with analysing the potential impact of Pillar Two.

277

397/590

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

11 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share was computed by dividing the profit attributable to the ordinary
shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during

the period.

Diluted earnings per share was computed by dividing the adjusted profit attributable to the
ordinary shareholders of the Bank based on assuming conversion of all potentially dilutive
shares for the period by the adjusted welghted average number of ordinary shares in issue.
There was no difference between basic and diluted earnings per share as there were no
potentially dilutive shares outstanding for the vears ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank 231,904 226522
Less: dividends/interest on preference shares/

perpetual bonds declared (15,296) (13.419)

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank 216608 213,103
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

(in million shares) 204 388 204 388

Basic and diluted earnings per share {in RMB) 0.74 0.72
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
12 Other comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Acmarial gains on defined benefit plans 3l 68
Changes in fair value on equity instruments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income 5,536 3,009
Less: related income tax impact (1,188) (903)
Crther (2) 0
Subtotal 4377 2,183
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Changes in fair value on debt instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income 25,128 {35.976)
Less: related income tax impact (3.643) 7,389
Amount transferred to the income statement Q73 (652)
Less: related income tax impact (215) 263
20,243 (28.0978)
Allowance for credit losses on debt instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income 2,005 (513}
Less: related income tax impact (504) 138
1.501 (375)
Finance {expensesincome from insurance contracts issued (4.630) 3,839
Less: related income tax impact 534 (561)
(4,006) 3278
Exchange differences from the translation of
foreign operations 7.007 32,051
Crther (30) 681
Subtotal 24616 7.559
Total 25,993 9,742

=‘=
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
12  Other comprehensive income {Continued)

Other comprehensive income attributable to equity holders of the Bank in the consolidated
statement of financial position:

Galns/{losses)
on financial Exchange
assets at differences
falr value from the
through other translation of
comprehensive forelgn
Income operations Other Total
As at 31 December 2021 28,800 (30,2399 2,766 1417
Impact of accounting policy
changes (Note IL.1.3) 747 il (443 734
As at | January 2022 20637 (30.208) 2722 2151
Changes for the year (22,547) 22,505 3396 3354
As at 31 December 2022 and
1 Jampary 2023 T.080 (7.70%) 6118 3.505
Changes for the year 24225 3,138 (149 28,214
As at 31 December 2023 31{!;15 1.56 Si';lﬁl;l 34{.?1';!
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¥  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
13 Cash and due from banks and other financial institutions

As at 31 December

2023 2022

Cash 67.571 64,706
Due from banks in Chinese mainland 387672 573,718
Due from other financial institutions in Chinsse mainland 18,847 11,230
Due from banks in Hong Kong (China), Macao (China),

Taiwan {China) and other countries and regions 03,134 161,004
Due from other financial institutions in Hong Kong (China),

Macao (China), Taiwan (China) and other conntries

and regions 1.110 2,897
Subtotal 500,763 749,499
Accrued interest 1,822 2492
Less: allowance for impairment losses™ (1,301} (1.634)
Subtotal due from banks and other financial institutions 501,284 750,357
Total 568,855 815,063

— ——

(1)  As at 3] December 2023 and 2022, the Group inclnded the predominant majority of due from banks and
other finoncial institutions under Stage 1, and measured the impairment losses based on expected credit
losses in the next 12 months.
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14

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Balances with central banks

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Mandatory ressrves™ 1.668 454 1,551,359
Surplus reserves and others™ 1,274,398 765,062
Subtotal 2,042 852 2316421
Accrued interest 1346 1080
Less: allowance for impairment losses (3.058) (3.642)
Total 2,941,140 2,313,850

i1

(Z)

The Gooup places mandatory mserve funds with the People’s Bank of China ithe "PBOC") and the central
banks of Hong Kong (Chinn), Macao (China), Taiwan (China) and other countries and regions where it has
operations. As at 31 December 2023, mandatory reserve funds placed with the PBOC were calculated at 9.0%
(31 Decamber 2022: 0.5%) and 4.0% (31 December 2022: £.0%) of qualified RMB deposits and foreign
currency deposits from customers in Chinese mainland of the Bank, respectively. Mandatory reserve funds
placed with the central bank of domestic subsidiaries of the Group are determined by the PBOC. The
amounts of mandatory reserve funds placed with the central banks of other jurisdictions are determined by
local regulations.

These represent funds for clearing purposes and balances other than mandatory reserves placed with the

PBOC, the central banks of Hong Kong (China), Mocao (China), Taiwan (China) and other countries and
regions.
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

15 Placements with and loans to banks and other financial institutions

Placements with and loans to:

Banks in Chiness mainland

Other financial institutions in Chinese mainland

Banks in Hong Kong (China), Macao (China),
Taiwan (China) and other countries and regions

Other financial institutions in Hong Kong (China),
Macao (China), Taiwan (China) and other countries
and regions

Subtotal e
Accrued interest

Less: allowance for impairment lossas™

Total

As at 31 December

2023 2022
229 088 137,472
719,913 648,655
244 024 157,834

35,950 29,360
1,228,975 1,173,321
6,350 4,663
(1,446) (3.887)
1,233,588 1,174,007

{1y The Gmoup designates certnin placements with and loans to banks and other financial insttutions as
financial nssets measured ot fair value through profit or loss, to eliminate or significantly reduce accounting
mismatch. As at 31 Decembear 2023, the camrying amount of the above-mentioned finoncinl asets of the
Group was RMB18, 126 million (31 Decamber 2022: RMB12,333 million]).

(2} "Plocements with and loans to banks and other financial institutiona™ include balances arising from reverse
repo agreements and collateralised financing agreements. They are presented by collateral type as follows:

As at 31 December

Dhebit pecurities
— Government s

— Policy banks

— PFinancinl institutions

— Corporates
Subtotal®

Leas: allowance for impairment losses'™

Totl

2023

152,597
209,004
21,865
310

383,776

(298)

383,477

w2

200,040
86,703
22084
10,374

328,101

(388)

318,513

(3 As ot 3] December 2023 and 2022, the Group included the predominant majority of its placements with
and loans to banks and other financial institutions under Stage 1, and measured the impairment losses

bazed on expected credit lozses in the next 12 monoths,
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
16 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group enters into foreign currency exchange rate, interest rate, eguity, credit or
precious metals and other commodity-related derivative financial instroments for trading,
hedging, assat and liability management and customer initiated transactions.

The contractualnotional amounts and fair values of derivative instroments held by the
Group are set out in the following tables. The contractual/notional amounts of financial
instruments provide a basis for comparison with the fair values of instroments recognised in
the statement of financial position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash
flows involved or the current fair value of the instrements and, therefore, do not indicate the
Group's exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative instruments become favourable
(assats) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates,
foreign currency exchange rates, credit spreads, or equity/commodity prices relative to their
terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate
significantly from time to time.

16.1 Derivative financlal instruments

As at 31 December 2023 As at 31 December 2022
Cantraetual/ Contractual/
amount Assets  Liabilitles amount Assets  Liabilities
Exchange rate derivatives
Currency forwards and
Fwans, ad cos-cumency
imberest rate swaps 8,730,964 42 586 (85583) 6088607 04,304 (B6.84T)
Curfency options 735,082 5,735 (5.646) 623,454 6,672 (5.96T)
Currency futures 2,558 B (11} 1,560 19 (1)
Subtotal QA6R616 08327 912400 6,713,771 100,905 (02.824)
Inferest rate dedvatives
Interest rate swaps 5605842 41,836 (36,028 4.320,705 46,655 (38,621)
Interest rate options 15,749 216 (216) 2,037 340 [348)
Interest rate futures 22,196 9 21) 80,445 72 (4T
Substotal 5643787 42061 (36265) 444,187 47,078 (39,018)
Equity derivatives 5,566 118 )] 0,085 260 (230)
Commodity derivatives
and other 525425 6,244 (8.302) 33058 3,603 (3.759)
Total" 15,643,304 146,750 (135.973) 11503597 152,033 (135.838)

{1}  The derivative financial instruments abowe include those designated as bedging instruments by the Group.
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

16  Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Continued)

16.2 Hedge accounting

(¥} Fair valoe hedges

The Group uses cross-currency interest rate swaps and interest rate swaps to hedge against
changes in fair value of “Financial investments”, “Due to central banks” and “Bonds
issned” arising from changes in foreign corrency exchange rates and interest rates. Foreign
currency exchange rate risk and interest rate risk are wsually the primary risks which affect

the change in fair value.

(i} The following table contains details of the derivative hedging instruments used in the
Group's fair value hedging strategies:

As at 31 December 2023

Imterest rate risk

Interest rate swaps

Forelgn exchange and
Imterest rate risk

Crogs-cuirency interest
fate swaps

Total

Derlvatives designated as
bedging instruments in far value hedges

Contractoal/ Lime Hem in the
Notlonal Fair value statement of
amsunt Assets Liabilities financlal position
Derivative

fimancial assets/

99,520 4558 210 liabilities
Derivative

firsncial assta

4012 12 (28] lizbilities

103532 4570 274)
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

16  Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Continued)

16.2 Hedge accoundng (Continued)

1)

{i) The following table contains details of the derivative hedging instruments used in the

Fair valge hedees (Conlinued)

Group's fair value hedging strategies (Continued ):

As at 31 December 2022

Imterest rate risk

Interest rate swaps

Forelgn exchange and
Imterest rate risk

Crogs-currency interest
fale swWaps

Total

Derlvatives designated as

hedging instruments in far value hedges

Contractoal/ Lime Hem in the

Notlonal Fair value statement of

amaunt Assels Liabilities flnancial position

Derivative

fimancial asseta/

100257 6512 (253) lizbilities

Derivative

fimancial assets/

2860 3 (43) lizbilities
112,117 6515 (206}
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

16  Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Continued)

16.2 Hedge accountng ¢ Contimred)

({1} Fair valoe hedees (Conlinmed)

{i) The following table contains details of the derivative hedging instruments used in the

Group's fair value hedging strategies (Continued ):

The following table sets out the maturity and average exchange ratefinterest rate information
of the hedging instruments mentioned above:

Fair value hedges
Between Between Between
Less than 1and 3 Yand 12 1 and 5 Ower
1 month months months Years 5 years Tutal
As at 31 December 2023
Imterest rate risk
Interest rate swaps
Motional amount 1,258 4270 16,953 5o 407 20,542 00500
Average fixed interest
rate 340% 148% 201% 322% 1% NiA
Forelgn exchange and
Imterest rate risk
Crogs-currency interest
fale swWaps
Motional amount - 35 - 3661 - 4,012
Average fixed
interest rate - 5.50% - 301% - NiA
Average exchange rate
of USDNCNY - 6.0350 - - - NiA
Average exchanpe rate
of AUDWCNY - - - 46875 - NiA
Averape exchange rate
of AUDVUSD - - - (.6766 - MNiA
287
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

16  Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Continued)

16.2 Hedge accountng ¢ Contimred)

({1} Fair valoe hedees (Conlinmed)

{i) The following table contains details of the derivative hedging instruments used in the

Group's fair value hedging strategies (Continued ):

Fair value hedges

Less than
1 monih

As at 3 December 2022

Imterest rate risk
Interest rate swaps
Motional amount 2,380
Average fixed intesest
rate 34T%

Forelgn exchange and
Imterest rate risk
Cross-currency interest
fate swaps
Motional amount -
Averape fixed intesest
rate -
Average exchange rate
of USDNCNY -
Average exchange rate
of AUIMCNY -

Between Between Between
1and 3 Jand 12 1 and 5

months months Years

1,380 0484 0,065

320% in% 445%

- - 4.74%

- - 6.0350

- - 4.6875

Over
5 years

24048

L.Ea%

Tutal

109257

NiA

2860

Ni&

NiA

MiA
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
16  Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Continued)

16.2 Hedge accounding (Contimred)

({1} Fair valoe hedees (Conlinmed)

{ii) The following table sets ont the details of the hedged items covered by the Group's fair
value hedging strategies:

Falr value hedges
Line ltem
Accumulated amomnt of in the
Carrying amount of falr valoe adjustments statement of
hedied btems ont the hedped ltems fnanclal
Assels Liabilities Assets Liabilitles pesition
As at 31 December 2023
Interest rate risk
Financial
Financial investmerts B5.682 - (4,774) - investments
Bonds isned - {9.228) - 22 Bonds izsued
Forelgn exchange and
Imterest rate risk
Bonds isned - (3.860) - 51 Bonds izsued
Total B 5,682 (13088 (4.774) 73
Asat 3 December 2022
Interest rate risk
Financial
Fimncial investments 05,007 - (1.714) - investmenis
Due o
D to central banks - (2.574) - 25 ceptral barks
Bonds issned - (3175) - 92 Bonds issued
Forelgn exchange and
Imterest rate risk
Bonds issuead - (2.794) - 31 Bonds issued

Total 05,077 (8.547) {1.714) 154

289

409/590

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

v

16

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Continued)

16.2 Hedge accountng ¢ Contimred)

({1} Fair valoe hedees (Conlinmed)

{iil) The Group’s net gains/(losses) on fair value hedges are as follows:

2)

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
Met gains/(losses) on
— hedging instruments (1.762) 7.193
— hedged items 1,836 (6,958)
Ineffectiveness recognised in net trading gains 74 235
Net investment hedoes

The Group's consolidated statement of financial position is affected by exchange differences
between the functional currencies of the Group and functional currencies of its branches
and subsidiaries. The Group hedges such exchange exposures only in limited circumstances.
Hedging is undertaken using due to customers, due to central banks and foreign exchange
forward and swap contracts in the same or exchange-rate pegged currencies as the
functional currencies of the related branches and subsidiaries which are accounted for as
hedges of certain net investments in foreign operations. Under the hedging relationships of
designating due to customers, dus to central banks and foreign exchange forward and swap
contracts as hedging instruments, the Group separates the forward element and the spot
element of a forward contract and designates as the hedging instrument only the change in
the value of the spot element of the forward contract. There was no ineffectiveness for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022 Nil).
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
16  Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Continued)

16.2 Hedge accountng ¢ Contimred)

(2}  Net investment hedges (Continued)

(i) Details of due to customers and due to central banks used in the Group’s net investment
hedging strategies:

Az at 31 December 2023, the carrying value of such due to customers amounted to
EMB67.358 million (31 December 2022: EMB74.350 million) and due to central banks
amounted to RMB380 million (31 December 2022: RMB522 million).

(ii) The following table contains details of the derivative hedging instruments used in the
Group’s net investment hedging strategies:

Derivatives designated as
net investment hedging Instruments

Contractual/ Line item in the
Notlonal Fair value statement of
amount Assets Liabilities  fimancial position
As at 31 December 2023
Foreign exchange forward Derivative financial
and swap contracts 8,207 36 (195) assetsfliabilities
Total SEED? 36 5195]
As at 31 December 2022
Foreign exchange forward Derivative financial
and swap contracts 7,520 178 (35) assetafliabilitizs
Total 7,520 278 (33)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
16  Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Continued)

16.2 Hedge accountng ¢ Contimred)

(2}  Net investment hedges (Continued)

{ii) The following table contains details of the derivative hedging instruments used in the
Group's net investment hedging strategies (Contimied):

The following table sets out the maturity and average exchange rate of the hedging
instruments mentioned above:

Net investment hedges
Between Between Between

Less than land 3  3dand 12 1and 5 Over
1 month months months years 5 years Total
As at 31 December 2823
Forelgn exchange risk
Foreign exchange
forward and swap
contracts
Wotional amount - - 8207 - - 8207
Average exchange
rate of USDVERL - - 53200 - - NiA
Average exchange
rate of USINVZAR - - 19,6375 - - NiA
Average exchange
rate of USIVINR - - 83,4650 - - NiA
Average exchange
rate of USDVMXN - - 18.6362 - - NiA
Average exchange
rate of USDVCLE  B63.7344 - UR55018 - - NiA
Awerage exchangs
rate of USIVFEN - - A.7470 - - NiA
Average exchangs
rate of USIVHUF - - 3A5E64E - - NiA
Average exchange
rate of USIVTWD - - 20,5737 - - NiA
292
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
16  Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Continued)

16.2 Hedge accountng ¢ Contimred)

(2}  Net investment hedges (Continued)

{ii) The following table contains details of the derivative hedging instruments used in the
Group's net investment hedging strategies (Contimied):

Net investment hedges
Between Between Between

Less than land 3  3dand 12 1and 5 Over
1 month months months years 5 years Total
As at 31 December 2022
Forelgn exchange risk
Foreign exchange
forward and swap
contracts
Motional amount - - 7520 - - 7520
Average exchange
rate of USDVERL - - 52811 - - NiA
Average exchange
rate of USINVZAR - - 16,6045 - - NiA
Average exchange
rate of USIVINR - - 814512 - - NiA
Average exchange
rate of USIVFEN - - 35149 - - NiA
Average exchange
rate of USIVHUF - - 3805048 - - NiA
Average exchange
rate of USDVTWD - - 288214 - - NiA
293
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
16  Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Continued)

16.2 Hedge accountng ¢ Contimred)

(2}  Net investment hedges (Continued)

(iil) The Group's fair value changes from the hedging instruments recognised in “Other
comprehensive income™ on net investment hedges are as follows:

As at 31 December

2023 2022

Amounts of fair value changes on hedging instruments

recognised in “Other comprehensive income™ 2,383 3,822
Amounts of forward element reclassified from

“Oither comprehensive income™ to profit or loss 69 03
Met amounts of fair value changes on hedging

instruments recognised in

“Other comprehensive income™ 2452 3,015
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

17 Loans and advances to customers

17.1 Analysis of loans and advances fo customers by meastrement category

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Measured at amortised cost

— Corporate loans and advances 12,577,901 10,509 264

— Personal loans 6,600,965 6,406,970

— Discounted bills 1,345 1,703
Measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income

— Corporate loans and advances 4,080 7.936

— Discounted bills 711,012 575,246
Subtotal 19,904,312 17,501,719
Measured at fair value through profit or loss &

— Corporate loans and advances 3,675 4,074
Total 19,907 987 17,505,793
Accrued interest 53,792 46,068
Total loans and advances 19,961,779 17,552,761
Less: allowance for loans at amortised cost (484,008) (436,758)
Loans and advances to customers, net 19,476,871 17.116,005

—— E————

(1)  As at 3] December 2023, the allowance for impairment losses of loans and advances to customers at fair
value through other comprehensive income of the Group amounted to RMB300 million (31 December
2022: RMB485 million) and was credited to other comprebensive income.

(2}  Dwuring the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no significant movements in the fair value

and accumulated fair value changes of corporate loans and adwances measured at fair value through profie
of logs that are attributable to changes in credit risk of these loans.
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS {Continued)

17 Loans and advances to customers ( Continued)

17.2 Analysis of loans and advances to customers (accrued interest excluded) by geographical
area, customer type, industry, collateral tvpe and analysis of impaired and overdue loans

and advances to customers are presented in Mote V2.5,

17.3 Reconciliation of allowance for impalrment losses on loans and advances to custom ers

(1)  Allowance for loans al amortised cost

Year ended 31 December 2023

As at 1 January
Transfers to Stage 1
Transfers to Stage 2
Transfers to Stage 3
Impairment (reversalVlosses of
loans with stage transfers
Charge for the year @
Reversal for the year %
Write-off and transfer out
Recovery of loans and advances
written off
Foreign exchange and
other movements

As at 3] December

12-month
ECL Lifetime ECL Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
205,195 50,062 172,499 436,756
0763 (5,804) (3,950 -
(4,261 13,571 (9,310 -
(1,125} (16,700) 17,825 -
(9,214} 31443 40,286 T1.515
99,690 17.345 28,929 145,964
(76,299) (18.155) (16.812) (111.266)
- - (72,554) (T2.554)
- - 13,889 13,889
314 221 2] &04
224,063 80,983 179,862 484,908
296

416/590

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

17 Loans and advances to customers ( Continued)

(Continued)

As at 1 January
Transfers to Stage |
Transfers to Stage 2
Transfers to Stage 3
Impairment {reversalylosses of
loans with stage transfers
Charge for the year @
Reversal for the year %
Write-off and transfer out
Recovery of loans and advances
written off
Foreign exchange and
other movements

Ags at 3] December

(1} Allowance for loans at amoriised cost (Continmed)

Year ended 31 December 2022

17.3 Reconciliation of allowance for impalrment losses on loans amd advances (o cusiomers

12-month
ECL Lifetime ECL Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
166,358 53,832 169,900 300,090
6,481 (5.296) (1,185) -
(2,234) 5611 (3,37T) -
(1,659) (11.533) 13,192 -
(5,060 18,943 41,851 54,825
93,067 14,787 22,827 130,681
(52,371} (18.168) (22,198) (92.737)
(64) - (6l1.766) (61.830)
- - 11,837 11,837
1.586 586 1418 3,890
205,195 50,062 172,499 436,756
297
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

17 Loans and advances to customers ( Continued)

17.3 Reconciliation of allowance for impalrment losses on loans amd advances (o cusiomers

(Continued)

{2y Allowance for loaas at fair valve throagh other comprehensive income

As at 1 January
Transfers to Stage 1
Transfers to Stage 2
Transfers to Stage 3
Impairment {reversalylosses of
loans with stage transfers
Charge for the year®
Reversal for the year %
Foreign exchangs and
other movements

As at 31 December

Year ended 31 December 2023

418/590

12-month
ECL Lifetime ECL Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
479 6 - 485
355 5 - 360
(453) (=3 - (450
4 - - 4
385 5 - 300
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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¥  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
17 Loans and advances to customers ( Continued)

17.3 Reconciliation of allowance for impalrment losses on loans amd advances (o cusiomers
(Continued)

{2y Allowance for loans at fair valge through other comprehensive income (Continmed)

Year ended 31 December 2022

12-month
ECL Lifetime ECL Total

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

As at 1 January 374 7 - 451
Transfers to Stage 1 - - - —
Transfers to Stage 2 - - - —
Transfers to Stage 3 - - - —
Impairment {reversalylosses of

loans with stage transfers - - - —

Charge for the year (i) 460 6 - 475
Reversal for the year (ii) (3743 (77} - (451
Foreign exchangs and

other movements 10 - - 10

As at 31 December 470 6 - 485

()  Chorge for the year comprises impairment losses attributnble to new loans gramted, brounght forward loans
without stage transfers, as well as changes to model and risk parmeters, during the year.

(i) Rewersal for the year comprises impairment losses attribumble to loan repaid, brought forward loans
without stage transfers, as well as changes to model and risk parameters, during the year.
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
17 Loans and advances to customers ( Continued)

17.3 Reconciliation of allowance for impalrment losses on loans amd advances (o customers
(Continwed)

The Group enhanced its ECL models in 2023, which has no significant impact to the
financial statements.

In 2023, the changes in pross carrving amounts of loans and advances to customers that
have a significant impact on the Group’s impairment allowance were mainly derived from
the credit business in the Chinese mainland, including:

. The domestic branches performed regular reviews of the five-category loan
classification grading and internal credit ratings on their loans and advances to
customers. Loans with a gross canrying amount of RMEL97.216 million (2022:
EMBI119.797 million) were transfemred from Stage 1 to Stage 2 and Stage 3, and
the impairment allowance increased correspondingly by RMBST 400 million (2022:
RMB38.571 million). The gross carrying amount of loans transferred from Stage 2 to
Stage 3 was RMB33.450 million {2022: RMB33,006 million), with a corresponding
increase in impairment allowance of RMB12,750 million (2022: RMB11.398 million).
The gross carrying amount of the loans transfered from Stage 2 to Stage | was
EMB20.,508 million (2022: EMB26,00d4 million), and the impairment allowance
decreased correspondingly by RMB4.307 million (2022: RMEBE4,149 million). The
gross carrying amount of loans transferred from Stage 3 to Stage 2 and Stage |
was RMB20,930 million (2022: BMB6,015 million), and the impairment allowance
decreased correspondingly by RMET 966 million (2022: RMB2.553 million).

. During the year, the disposal of non-performing loans by domestic branches via
write-off, transfer of creditor’s rights and loans to equity conversion amounted
to RMB40.558 million (2022: RMBS53.303 million), resulting in a corresponding
reduction of RMB43 648 million (2022: RMB47,718 million) in impairment allowance
for Stage 3 loans.

. Through personal loan securitisation, the domestic branches transferred out loans
of RMBI13,810 million {2022: EMBI18.556 million), resolting in a decrease of

EMBI10.518 million in the impairment allowance for Stage 3 loans (2022 RMB6&64
million and BMBS,586 million for Stage 1 and Stage 3 loans, respectively).
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18

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Financial investments

Financial assets at fair value through proflt or loss

Financial assets held for trading and other financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities
Issuers in Chinese mainland
— Government
— Public sectors and quasi-governments
— Policy banks
— Financial institutions
— Corporate
Issners in Hong Kong (China), Macao (China),
Taiwan (China) and other countries and regions
— Governments
— Public sectors and quasi-governments
— Financial institutions
— Corporate

Equity instruments
Fund investments and other

Total financial assets held for trading and
other financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

30l
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As at 31 December

2023 2022
31,540 36,485
205 285
28,831 20576
140,370 169,626
18,032 52,368
35.089 16,094
1,504 118
24,105 23,803
17,028 16,642
206,714 350,087
112,434 112,582
101,803 102,423
310,951 365,092
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS {Continued)

18 Financial investments (Continued)

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (designated)
Debt securities ™
Issuers in Chinese mainland
— Government 7,108 2243
— Policy banks 84 53
— Financial institutions 8,455 2,020
— Corporate 1,633 206
Issners in Hong Kong (China), Macao (China),
Taiwan (China) and other countries and regions
— Governments 2,389 21.158
— Public sectors and quasi-governments 572 470
— Financial institutions 6,358 4,183
— Corporate 12,781 4,681
39470 48,013
Total financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss {designated) 30470 48,013
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 550421 613,105
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Financial investments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive iIncome
Debt securities
Issners in Chinese mainland
— Government
— Public sectors and quasi-governments
— Policy banks
— Financial institutions
— Corporate
Issuers in Hong Kong (China), Macao (China),
Taiwan (China) and other countries and regions
— Governments
— Public sectors and quasi-governments
— Financial institutions
— Corporate

Equity instruments and other®

Total financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
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As at 31 December

2023 2022
1,303 244 877513
92,260 26,113
408,501 430466
208,123 181,203
169,338 176,983
503,242 472316
B1.426 29677
168,890 107,267
100,959 101,842
3215983 2473380
32,130 26,836
3,248,113 2,500.216
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Financial investments (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost
Debt securities
Iszners in Chinese mainland
— Government*=
— Public sectors and quasi-governments
— Policy banks
— Financial institutions
— Corporate
— China Orient®
Issuers in Hong Kong (China), Macao (China),
Taiwan {China) and other countries and regions
— Governments
— Public sectors and quasi-governments
— Financial institutions
— Corporate

Investment tmsts, asset management plans and other
Accrued interest

Less: allowance for impairment losses

Total financial assets at amortised cost

Total financial investments™®®
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As at 31 December

2023 2022
2,435,134 2,460,361
75,880 73,194
197,520 158,855
43,645 55,060
12,668 21,603
152,433 152,433
194,020 178204
119,160 04515
70,788 66,163
10,285 8,778
3,311,551 3,278,756
23,761 17,853
35,568 35,201
{10,697) {9.887)
3,360,183 3,321,023
7.158.717 6,435,244
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
18 Financial investments (Continued)

As at 31 December

2023 2022

Analysed as follows:
Financial assets at fair value through proflt or loss

— Listed in Hong Kong, China 41,361 48,845

— Listed outside Hong Kong, China®® 2754651 345,329

— Unlisted 233409 218,931
Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income
Debt sacurities

— Listed in Hong Kong, China 159,280 146,360

— Listed outside Hong Kong, China?® 2,502,199 1,804,720

— Unlisted 554504 432,300
Equity instruments and other

— Listed in Hong Kong, China 4,942 4,628

— Listed outside Hong Kong, China®™ 12,384 10,867

— Unlisted 14,804 11,341
Financial assets at amortised cost

— Listed in Hong Kong, China 20,034 18,738

— Listed outzide Hong Kong, China?m 3,042 487 3,024,133

— Unlisted 206,762 279052
Total 7158717 6435244
Listed in Hong Kong, China 226517 218571
Listed ontside Hong Kong, China® 5,832,721 5,275,049
Unlisted 1.099.479 941,624
Total 7158717 6,435 244
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

18 Financial investments (Continued)

As at 31 December

i | pi) .| ]
Carryving Carrying Market
value value value
Diebt securities at amortizsed cost
— Listed in Hong Kong, China 20,934 18,738 17,446
— Listed outside Hong Kong,
Chinaae 3,042 487 3,024,133 3,0705438

(1

(2}

(3)

(4

(3

In order to eliminate or significantly reduce accounting mismatches, certain debt securities are designabed
as financinl azsets at fair value through profit or loss,

The Group designates certain opon-trading equity instroment investments s financial investments
measured at FVOCL Investments in equity instruments in this category are mainly financial institution-
type iovestments. In 2023, dividend income from such equity investments was EMB643 million (2022:
FMBT29 million). The walne of aquity investments dispoaed of was BMB 1173 miltion (2022: RMBSATT
millicn) and the cumulative losses transferred into undistributed profits from other comprehensive income
ofter disposal wos RMBAS0 million (2022: cumulative losses of RMBS90 million).

The Group's accumulated impairment allowance for the debt securities at fair walue through other
comprehengive income as of 31 December 2023 amounted to RMBT 808 million (31 December 2022:
FMB35, 708 millicn).

On 18 August 1998, a Special Purpose Treasury Bond was izsued by the Ministry of Pinance (“MOF™)
with a par value of RMB42.500 million matiring on 18 August 23028, This bond was originally isued with
an annual coupon rate of 7.20% and its coupon mte was restructired to 2.25% per annum from | Decamber
2004,

The Bank undarwrites certoin Treasury bonds izsued by the MOF and undertakes the role of a distributor of
these Tremsury bonds through its branch netwark eaming commigsion income on bonds sold. The investors
of thess bonds have a right to redeam the bonds at any time prior to matudty and the Baok iz committed
to redesm these Treasury bonds The balance of these bonds held by the Bank as at 31 Decamber 2023
amounted to REMB 1265 million (31 December 2022: RMB1 449 million).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Financial investments (Continued)

(&)

(7

(8

9

(10

The Bank transferred cermin noo-performing sssets to Chinn Orient Asset Monngement Corpomtion
{“China Orrient™) in 1999 and 2000 and China Orient isswed a bond (“Orent Bond™) with o par value of
RME 160000 miltion to the Bank as consideration. Based on the latest agresment, the Orient Bond will
mahire on 30 June 2025, The MOF shall continue to provide funding support for the principal and interest
of the Owrent Bond. The Bank received a notice from the MOF in January 2020, confirming that from 1
January 2020, the interest mbe on the unpaid amountz will be verified year by year based on the rate of
return of the five-year treasury bond of the previous year. As ot 31 December 2023, the Bank had received
early repayments of principal amounting to RMBT 567 million cumulatively.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group beld bonds issned by the MOF and bills issued by the PEOC included

in financinl investments. The camying value (accruoed interest excluded) and the melated coupon rate rangs
omn guch bonda and bills are as follows:

As at 31 December

2023 L P
Carrying value (accrued interest excludad) 1173711 1066657
Coupon rate range 0U00e-5.31% 0.00H-5.31 %

Included in the Group’s financial investments were certificates of deposit held amounting, to RMB 149,258
million as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: RMB 153,611 million).

As ot 3] December 2023, RMB3957 million of debt securities measured at fair value through other
comprehengive income and at amortised cost of the Group was determined to be impaired and was included
wnder Stage 3 (31 Decambar 2022: BMB3, 193 million), with an impairment allowance of RMB3.295 million (31
December 2022: RMB2,441 million); RMB26,655 million of debt securities wos included under Stage 2 (31
Decamber 2022: RMB3 584 million), with an impairment allowance of BEMB 1,089 million (31 December
2022: RMB171 million); and the remaining debt securities were inclnded under Stage 1. with impairment
allowance measused based on 12-month expected credit lossas.

Dhebt sacurities traded in the Chiness mainland interbank bond market are included in “Listed outside Hong
Kong, China”.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

18 Financial investments (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment losses on financial investments at amortised

cosh:
Year ended 31 December 2023
12-momnth
ECL Lifetime ECL Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

As at | January 2,812 68 7.007 0,287
Transfers to Stage 2 (3} 3 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (13) 13 -
Impairment losses due to

stage transfers - 12 496 508
Impairment losses during

the year 141 24 261 426
Foreign exchange

and other movements (142 - 18 (124
As at 31 December 2,808 04 7.795 10,687

Year ended 31 December 2022
12-month
ECL Lifetime ECL Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

As at | January 2,126 2 7.550 9,678
Transfers to Stage 2 (25} 25 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (10 (1) 11 -
Impairment losses due to

stage transfers - 43 264 7
Impairment lossesfreversal)

during the vear 757 - )] (153}
Foreign exchange and

other movements (36) (1) 92 55
As at 31 December 2,812 1) 7.007 0,887
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

18 Financial investments (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment losses on financial investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income:

Year ended 31 December 2023
12-momnth
ECL Lifetime ECL Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

As at | January 5305 103 300 5,708
Transfers to Stage 2 (150} 150 - -
Impairment losses due to

stage transfers - Ta6 - TaG
Impairment lossesf{reversal)

during the vear 1,348 (22) - 1.326
Foreign exchange and

other movements 1o (2) - 8
As at 31 December 6513 905 300 7808

Year ended 31 December 2022
12-momnth
ECL Lifetime ECL Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

As at 1 January 5771 4 500 6,275
Transfers to Stage 2 (40} 40 - -
Impairment losses due to

stage transfers - 58 - 58
Impairment {reversal)/

losses during the year (434} 1 (200 (633)
Foreign exchange and

other movements 8 - - 2
As at 31 December Séﬂs 103 300 SiT{lE
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

19

Investment in associates and jJoint ventures

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
As at 1 January 38,304 35,769
Additions 1.241 2,717
Disposals and transfer out (150} (281)
Share of results, net of tax 965 645
Dividends received (B35) (B0}
Exchange differences and other 25 304
As at 31 December 39,550 38,304

The carrying amounts of major investments in associates and joint ventures of the Group
are as follows. Further details are disclosad in Note V.43.4,

As at 31 December

2023 2022
China Insurance Investment Fund Co., Lid. 12,196 11,880
BOC International (China) Co., Ltd. 5,762 5484
Ying Kou Port Group CORP. 3002 4227
Mational Green Development Fund 1,828 1200
CGN Phase [ Private Equity Fund Company Limited 1.809 1,731
Shanghai Chenggang Real Estate Co., Lid. 1,781 1.558
Sichwan Lutianlua Co., Ltd. 1.517 1471
Graceful Field Worldwide Limited 1446 1.531
Guomin Pension Insurance Co., Lid. 1,035 1002
Wkland Investments II Limited 853 242
Oither 7421 6,760
Total 39,550 38,304

Az at 31 December 2023, there were no restrictions on associates and joint ventures to
transfer funds to the Group.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

20 Property and equipment

Year ended 31 December 2023

Equipment
and motor
Bulildings vehicles Afreraft Total

Cost
As at | January 128,600 76,543 166,450 AT1.602
Additions 332 5405 6,751 12,488
Transfer from investment

properties (Note V.22) 213 - - 213
Construction in progress

transfer in (MNote V.21) 2,048 534 3,736 7.216
Deductions (2,161 (6,984) (10,002) (19.147)
Exchange differences 499 138 2,740 3,377
As at 31 December 130,438 75,636 169,675 375,749
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January (49.222) (61.115) (25,909 (136,246)
Additions {4,200 (6,545) (5.562) (16.307)
Deductions 1.786 6,731 2,175 10,692
Transfer to investment properties

(Mote V.22) 24 - - 24
Exchange differences (164} (123} (4507 (746
As at 31 December (51.776) (61.052) (29.755) (142.583)
Allowance for impairment losses
As at | January (72T} - (7.853) (B.580)
Additions (13 - (62) (63)
Deductions 8 - 2720 2,728
Exchange differences 4 - (120 (116}
As at 31 December (716) - (5.315) (6,031
Met book value
As at | January 78,660 15,428 132,688 226,776
As at 31 December TTIME 14,584 13495«05 HTilﬂﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Property and equipment (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022

Equipment
and motor
Bulildings vehicles Alrerafi Total

Cost
As at | January 124,080 73,497 146,901 345387
Additions 136 6115 7.250 13,501
Transfer from investment

properties (Note V.22) 406 - - 406
Construction in progress

transfer in (MNote V.21) 2,690 520 0,054 12,264
Deductions (1613) (4,188) (10.046) (15.847)
Exchange differences 2,001 500 13,201 15,201
As at 31 December 128,600 76,543 166,450 AT1.602
Accumulated depreciation
As at | January (45,518) (58.364) (20,022} (123,904)
Additions (4,056 (6,200) (5,289 (15.635)
Deductions 887 4,030 1.367 6,284
Transfer to investment properties

(MNote V.22) 11 - - 11
Exchange differences (546 (491 (1,965 {3,002
As at 31 December (40,222} (61,115) {25,000) (136,246
Allowance for impairment losses
As at | January (740 - (1&1T) (2.35T)
Additions - - (5,944 (5,944
Deductions 16 - 25 41
Exchange differances {3 - (317} (320}
As at 31 December (T2T) - (7.853) (B.580)
Met book value
As at 1 January 78,731 15,133 125,262 219,126
As at 31 December 78,660 15,428 132,688 226,776
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
Property and equipment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the net book amount of aircraft leased out by BOC Aviation
Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, under operating leases was RMBE 134,605 million (31
December 2022: RMB 132,688 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the net book amount of aircraft owned by BOC Aviation Limited,
a subsidiary of the Group, that has been pledged for loan facilities was RMB68Q million (31
December 2022: RMB4,783 million) (Mot V.32).

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, after conversion into a joint stock
limited liability company, the Bank is required to re-register its property and eguipmeqnt
under the name of Bank of China Limited. As at 31 December 2023, the process of re-
registration has not been completed. However, this registration process does not affect the
rights of Bank of China Limited to these assets.

The carrying value of buildings is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
follows:

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Held in Hong Kong, China
on long-term lease (over 50 years) 4232 4,155
on medium-term lease (10-50 yvears) 3011 0,029
o short-term lease (less than 10 vears) - -
Subtotal 13,143 13,184
Held outside Hong Kong, China
on long-term lease (over 50 vears) 6,664 6,208
on medium-term lease (10-50 years) 50,721 52509
on short-term lease (less than 10 vears) T418 6,759
Subtotal 64,803 63476
Total 77946 T8.660
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

21 Construction in progress

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
Cost
As at 1 January 19,540 27,192
Additions 8043 6,663
Transfer to property and equipment (Note V.20) (7.216) (12.264)
Deductions (284) (3,320)
Exchange differences 171 1.569
As at 31 December 20,554 19,840
Allowance for impatrment losses
As at | January (227) (227}
Additions - -
Deductions 19 -
Exchange differences - -
As at 31 December {208) (227
MNet book value
As at 1 January 19&13 Eﬁi%ﬁ
As at 31 December 20,346 19613

22 Investment properties

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
As at 1 January 23,311 19.554
Additions 200 2,995
Transfer to property and equipment, net (Note V.20) (237) (417
Deductions {273) (58)
Fair value changes (Note V.5) (632) (7}
Exchange differences 335 1.244
As at 31 December 22,704 23311

il4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
Investment properties ( Continued)

The Group's investment properties are located in active real estate markets, and external
appraisers make reasonable estimation of fair value using market prices of the same or
similar properties and other related information from the real estate markets.

Investment properties are mainly held by Bank of China Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (“BOCHE
{Holdings)") and Bank of China Group Investment Limited (“BOCG Investment'™),
subsidiaries of the Group. The carrving values of investment properties hald by BOCHE
{Holdings) and BOCG Investment as at 31 December 2023 amounted to REMEL0,080
million and RMB9.229 million, respectively (31 December 2022 RME10.768 million and
EMB9,764 million). The valuations of these investment properties as at 31 December 2023
were principally performed by Knight Frank Petty Limited based on the open market price
and other related information.

The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of the
leasas as follows:

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Held in Hong Kong, China
on long-term lease (over 50 years) 3019 3,103
on medium-term lease (10-50 yvears) 7.001 7441
Subtotal 10,020 10,544
Held outside Hong Kong, China
on long-term lease (over 50 vears) 4378 4429
on medium-term lease (10-50 vears) 7153 T.633
on shor-term lease (less than 10 vears) 1,153 T05
Subtotal 12,684 12,767
Total 22,704 23,311
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{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

23  Other assets

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Accounts receivable and prepaymentst! £3.350 48,252
Insurance contract assets™ 44 674 40,383
Right-of-usz assets™ 18,058 19,709
Intangible assats™ 20,702 19,036
Land use rights® 5,713 5,770
Long-term deferred expense 3,556 3425
Repossessed assets® 3,152 2,153
Goodwill'® 2685 2.651
Interest receivable 1.240 749
Other 36,871 30,264
Total 220010 181,302

(1)  Accounts receivable and prepayments

As at 31 December

2023 2
Accounts receivable and prepayments B7.084 52016
Impairmeat atlowance {4,625) {4.664)
Met valne 83,350 48,252

Accounts receivable and prepayments mainly include items in the process of clearing and settlement. The
analysiz of the ageing of accounts receivable and prepayments is o8 followa:

As at 31 December

023 L Fr]
Impairment Impairment
Ealance allowance Balance allowance
Within 1 year 82,220 (372 30,407 (185)
From 1 year to 3 years 1,206 431 4,877 {1.371)
Ower 3 yaars 4458 (3.822) 8,632 (3,008)
Toitnl 87,084 (4,625) 51,016 (4. 664)

2]  Insurance contracts assets comprise of the carrying amount of portiolics of insurance contracts issued and
reinsurance contracts held that are assets.

il6
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

23  Other assets (Continued)

()

Right-of-use azsets

Year ended 31 December

013 iz
Muatar Muotor
vehicles vehicles
Buildings and other Total Buildings and other Tutal

Cost
Az at | January 38,826 w7 30,223 36,447 32 IEATD
Additions 5874 101 5,975 6,952 193 7,145
Deductions (5,B05) (30) (5,025) (5.118) (31) (5,149
Exchange differences 41 1 242 545 3 548
A3 at 31 December 30,045 468 30,515 38826 307 30,213
Accumulated depreciation
Az at | January (19.3200) (1943 (19.514) (16,265) 03) (16,358)
Additions (6.407) (132) (6,539) (6,668) (1300 (6,799
Deductions 5,532 29 5561 3,804 31 3815
Exchange differences (635) - (65) (190 (2) (192)
A3 at 31 December 20,2600 (25T (M0.55T) (19,3200 (194) (19.514)
Met book value
Az at | January 19,506 JLAE] 10,700 20, 182 139 20,321
Aa ot 31 Decamber 18,786 172 18,958 10,506 203 10,702
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

23  Other assets (Continued)

(4)  Inmngible assets
Year ended 31 December
2023 w2z
Cost
Asat | January 47,888 40,377
Additions 8,136 T.013
Deductions (1.151) (135)
Exchange differences 132 633
As at 3] December 55,005 47,888
Accomulated amortisation
As ot | January (28.8417) (23,447)
Additions (6,200) (5.072)
Deductions 853 119
Exchange differences 94 (442)
As at 31 Decemibar (34.200) (28,842)
Allowance for impairment losses
Asat | Jeouary (10 -
Additions (1) (%)
Deductions - -
Exchange differences - (1)
As at 31 Decemibar (113 (100
Met book value
Asat 1 Jamuary 10,036 16,930
Az at 31 Decambear 20,702 19,035

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the capitalised expenditure incumed by the Group on projects
under development phase was RMB35.163 million and the total expenditure for projects which had reached
thedr intended uea during the year was RMB4.034 million. As at 31 December 2023, the total capitalisad
expenditure relating to pojects under development phase was RMBEETT million (31 December 2022:
FMBT.544 millicn).

KNE
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

23  Other assets (Continued)

(5)

(8]

(T

Land usa rights

The carrying value of land wse rights is anntysed based on the remaining terms of the lenses as follows:

As at 31 December

23

Held cutzide Hong Kong, China
on long-term lease (ower 50 years) 54
on medinm-term lease (10-50 years) 5,000
on short-term lease (less than 10 years) 569
Total 5713

Repossassed azsats

A at 31 December 2023, the net book amount of repossassed assets wos RMB3.152 million (31 December
22 RMB2, 153 million), mainly comprised properties. Related allowance for impairment was RMBE28

millicn (31 December 2022: RMB 86 miltion).

The total book value of epossessed asets disposed of during the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted
to REMB&44 million (2022: RMB232 million). The Group plans to dispose of the reposseased asets held at

31 December 2023 by auction, bidding or tranafer.

1 kel

5128

5,770

Goodwill
Year ended 31 December

23 w2
As ot 1 January 2651 2481
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries - -
Deecreass resulting from disposal of subsidiaries - -
Exchange differences 34 170
Aa ot 31 Decamber 2,685 21651

The goodwill mainly arose from the acquisition of BOC Aviation Limited in 2006 amounting to USD241

million {aquivalent to RMB1,705 million).
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

24 Impairment allowance

Loans and advances to cugomers
— at amortizad cost
— it £adr valug through other
comprehensive income

Subvtotal

Financial investments
— at amortized cost
— at £air value through other
comprehensive income

Subiotal

Other

Total

As al Additions’ Exchange Asat

1 Janwary  (reversal, Write-oMamd  differences 31 December
013 met  transfer out and other Ly
436,756 106213 (3511} 1.550 434008
485 (09 - 4 30
437,241 106,114 (59.611) 1.554 485,008
0,887 934 - (124 10,697
5,008 2002 - 8 7808
15,503 306 - (116) 18503
55,753 [2.578) (4,438) 286 40,023
508,589 106,562 (64,0407 1.724 552826
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

24 Impairment allowance {Continoed)

Loans and advances to cugomers
— at amortizad cost
— it £adr valug through other
comprehensive income

Subvtotal

Financial investments
— at amortized cost
— at £air value through other
comprehensive income

Subiotal

Other

Total

As al Additions’ Exchange Asat

1 Janwary  (reversal, Write-oMamd  differences 31 December
2012 met  transfer out and other anl
300,000 0,760 (50,863) 4,760 436,756
451 o) - 10 485
300,541 92,783 (50.863) 4770 437,241
0678 154 - 55 0887
6,275 (575) - 8 5708
15953 (421) - 63 15,5035
43,760 11.587 434 240 55,753
450,254 103,959 (51.297) SA73 508,580
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

25 Due to banks and other financial institations

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Due to:
Banks in Chinesa mainland 419,953 409,250
Other financial institutions in Chinese mainland 1,552,016 1,506,452
Banks in Hong Kong (China), Macao (China),
Taiwan (China) and other countries and regions 208620 248,486
Other financial institutions in Hong Kong (China),
Macao (China), Taiwan (China) and
other countries and regions 56632 60,920
Subtotal 2,237,221 2,234,108
Accrued interest 8.141 6,215
Total 2,245,362 2,240,323

26 Due to central banks

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Due to central banks 1,226 588 009,223
Accrued interest 8,732 6,635
Total 1,235,320 915,858

jaz
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

v

27

28

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Government certificates of indebtedness for bank notes Issued and bank notes in

circulation

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited (“BOCHK"™) and Bank of China Macau Branch are
note issuing banks for Hong Kong Dollar and Macao Pataca notes in Hong Kong (China)
and Macao (China), respectively. Under local regulations, these two entities are required to
place deposits with the Hong Kong (China) and Macao (China) governments, respectively,

to secure the currency notes in circulation.

Bank notes in circulation represent the liabilities in respect of Hong Kong Dollar notes
and Macao Pataca notes in circulation, issued respectively by BOCHE and Bank of China

Macau Branch.

Placements from banks and other financial institutions

As at 31 December

Placements from:

Banks in Chiness mainland

Other financial institutions in Chinese mainland

Banks in Hong Kong (China), Macao (China),
Taiwan (China) and other countries and regions

Other financial institutions in Hong Kong (China),
Macao (China), Taiwan (China) and
other countries and reglons

Subtotal

Accrued interest

Total™

2023 2022
136,070 306,833
1,450 10,350
317463 138,142
17,081 2614
472,064 464,041
2913 1,384
474077 466,333

(1) Included in “Placements from banks and other finoncial instituions” are amounts received from

counterparties under repurchase agreements and collateral agreaments as follows:

As at 31 December

Repurchase debit securities™

2023 22
86,693 137,804

{iy  Debt securities used as collabernl under repurchase agreements were principally government tonds

and were included in the amount disclosed under Note V.41.2.

323

443/590

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

29 Financial Habilities held for trading

30

As at 3] December 2023 and 2022, financial liabilities held for trading mainly included
short position in debt securities.

Due to customers

Demand deposits
— Corporate deposits
— Personal deposits

Subtotal
Time deposits
— Corporate deposits
— Personal deposits
Subtotal
Structured deposits(t
— Corporate deposits
— Personal deposits

Subtotal

Ceftificates of deposit
Other deposits™

Subtotal due to customers

Accrued interest

Total™

As at 31 December

2023 2022
5,630,238 5,370,057
3,782,330 3,757.373
0,421,568 9,127.430
5,502,463 4,462,328
6,662,417 5,384,034

12,254,880 0,846,362

208,621 328,602
235,724 255,280
534,345 583,891
310,212 200,082
81,830 92,375
22,602,835 10,040,140
304,215 261,685
22,007,050 20,201,825
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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30

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Due to customers (Continued)

(1)

()

(3

According to the Group's risk management policy, the Group enters into derivatives to hedge market risks
arizing from its structured deposits. The Group designates certain structured deposits as financinl liabilities
at foir volwe through profit or does, to eliminate or sigoificantly reduce accounting mismatch. As at 31
December 2023, the carrying amount of these financial linbilities was RMB4AT,657 million (31 December
2022: RMB36,701 miltion). The differences between the fair value and the amount that the Group would
be contractually requited to pay to the holders as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were not significant. Por
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was no significant change in the Group's credit risk
nof changes in the fair value of these financinl liabilities s a esult.

Included in other deposits is special purpose funding. which represents long-term funding provided in
multiple curmencies by foreign governments andfor entities in the form of export credit, foreign government
and other subsidized credit The special purpose funding is normally used to finance projects with a special
commercial purpose in the PRC as determined by the forelgn govemments or entities and the Group is
obliged to repay the funding when it falls due.

As ot 3] December 2023, the remaining maturity of special purpose funding moges from 25 days to 30
years. Thi interest-bearing special purpose funding bears interest at floating and fined mbes ranging from 0U15%
to 7.92% (31 December 2022: 0.15% to 7.92%). Thess terms are consistent with the related development
loans granted to customers,

D to customers included margin depogits received by the Group as at 31 December 2023 of RMBS85 801
million {31 December 2022: RMBAT1 382 mitlion).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Bonds issued

Eonds issped at amortised cost
Tier 2 capital bonds issned
2014 US Dallar Debit 5 ecurities '

201E RME Dbt Securiies First Trancha ™

2018 EMB Diebt Sacurities
Sacond Tranche ™

1019 RMB Diebt Sacurilies
Firat Tranche 01%

2019 EMB Dbt S2curilies
Firat Tranche 02%*

2019 EMB Diebt Sacurilies
Sacond Tranche ™

200 EMB Diebt Sacurities
Firat Tranche 017

200 BMB Diebt Sacurilies
Firat Tranche 2%

2021 BMB Dbt Sacurilies
Frst Tranche 01

2021 RMB Dbt Sacurilies
Firat Tranche (2%

2021 BME Diebt Sacurilies
Sacond Tranche 0140

2021 EME Debt Sacurilies
Sacond Tranche 1270

2022 RMB Dbt Sacurilies
Firat Tranche ™

2022 BMB Dbt Sacurilies
Eacond Tranche 01°#

2022 BME Diebt Sacurilies
Sacond Tranche 024

2073 EMB Debt Sacurilies
Firat Tranche 01"

lsuechte  Maturity date
L3 November 2014 13 November 2024
3 Saplember 2013 5 Seplember 2028
O0ctober 2013 11 Dctober 2028

) Seplember 2019 24 Seplember 2029
¥ Seplember 2019 34 Saplember 20134
20 November 2018 22 November 20129
17 Saplember 2020 21 Seplember 2030
17 Seplember 2020 21 Seplember 2035
[TMich 2021 19 March 2031
[TMich 2020 19 March 203

2 November 2021 16 Nevember 2031
2 November 2021 16 November 2035
20 Jamary 202 M Jamoary 2032
M October 2022 36 Cctober 032
M October 202 36 Cictober 20137
WMch 208 2 Mich 2033
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

31 Bonds issued (Continued)

Annwal Asat 3] December
inlenest
Issue date Maturity dste rale ] nn
2073 BMB Diebt Sacurilies
Firat Tranche 0277 20 March 2023 DMuch 032 341% 19908 -
2073 BMB Diebt Sacurilies
Sacond Tranche 0179 19 Seplember 2003 21 Seplember 2033 3.25% 2005 -
2073 BMB Diebt Sacurilies
Sacond Tranche (249 19 Seplember 2009 21 Seplember 2038 337% o5 -
2073 BMB Diebt Sacurilies
Third Tranche 0 == 19 Dictober 201 1 October 2033 34%% 44,003 -
2073 RMB Diebt Sacurilies
Third Tranche 02 = 19 Diztober 202 1 October 2038 353 4,004 -
2073 RMB Diebt Sacurilies
Feurth Trenche 0] 1 December 2023 5 December 2033 330% 14,908 -
2073 BMB Diebt Bacurilies
Fearth Tranche 027 1 December 2023 5 December 2038 337% 14008 -
Subtofa] ™ 551,108 410,740
(Other boads issped 29
US Dallar Debi Secorities 192,057 196,301
RME Dbt Bacurities e 190,939
Other 10382 EENAES
Subtotal 444,268 410,044
Negotiahle certificales of deposit 704,204 650 453
Subinial bonds issued at amortised cost 1739600 1,530,152
Eonds issped at fair value through
jprofit or loss ™ 1118 2080
Subtofal bonds issued 1791788 1532232
Aecrued inberest 10658 4703
Tootal bonds isspad ™ 1800 445 1,540,035

(1) The Bank issued tier 2 capital bonds in an amount of USD3 billion on 13 November 2014. The bonds have
o maturity of 10 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 5.00%.

(2)  The Bank issned tier 2 capital bonds in an amount of EMEAD billion on 3 Se ber 2018, The bonds have
o maharity of 10 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 4.86%. The Bank is entitled to redeam the bonds at the
end of the fifth year. The Bank hos redeemed all the bonds in advance at face value on 5 September 3023,
(3)  The Bank issued tier 2 capital bonds in an amonnt of RMBAD billion on 9 October 2018, The bonds have

a mahurity of 10 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 4.84%. The Bank is entitled to redeam the bonds at the
end of the fifth year. The Bank hos sedeemed all the bonds in advance at face value on 11 October 2023,
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Bonds issued (Continued )

(4)

(5)

(&)

(7

()

(i

{10y

(11

(1

(13

(14}

The Bank issued tier 2 capital bonds in an amount of RMB3D billion on 20 September 2019, The tonds
have a maturity of 10 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 3.98%. The Bank is entitled to redeam the tondz
ot the end of the fifth year.

The Bank issuad tier 2 capital bonds in an amount of RMB 1D billion on 20 September 2019, The bonds
have a maturity of 15 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 4.34%. The Bank is entitled to redesm the tondz
ok the end of the tenth year.

The Bank issued tier 2 capital bonds in an amount of RMB30 billion on 20 November 2019, The tonds
have a maturity of 10 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 4.01%. The Bank is entitled to redeam the tondz
ot the end of the fifth year.

The Bank issued tier 2 copital bonds in an amount of RMBE&D billion on 17 September 2020, The bonds
have a maturity of 10 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 4.20%. The Bank is entitled to redeam the tondz
ot the end of the fifth year.

The Bank issuad tier 2 capital bonds in an amount of RMB15 billion on 17 September 2020, The bondzs
have a maturity of 15 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 4.47%. The Bank is entitled to redeam the tondz
ok the end of the tenth year.

The Bank issued tier 2 capital bonds in an amount of RMB1L5 billion on 17 March 2021, The bonds have
a maturity of 10 yeams with a fixed coupon mte of 4.15%. The Bank is entitled to redeem the bonds at the
end of the fifth year.

The Bank issued tier 2 capital bonds in an amount of RMB1L0 billien on 17 March 2021, The bonds have
o mahurity of 15 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 4.38%. The Bank is entitled to redeam the bonds at the
end of the tenth year.

The Bank issued tier 2 capital bonds in an amount of RME40 billion on 12 Movember 2021. The bonds
have a maturity of 10 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 3.60%. The Bank is entitled to redesm the tondz
ot the end of the fifth year.

The Bank issued tier 2 capital bonds in an amount of RME 10 billion on 12 Movember 2021. The bonds
have a maturity of 15 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 3.80%. The Bank is entitled to redeam the tondz
ok the end of the tenth year.

The Bank issued ter 2 capital bonds in an amount of BMB30 billion on 20 Jannary 3022, The tonds have
a mahrity of 10 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 3.25%. The Bank is entitled to redeam the bonds at the
end of the fifth year.

The Bank issued tier 2 capital bonds in an amount of RMB45 billion on 24 October 3022, The bonds have

o mahrity of 10 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 3.02%. The Bank is entitled to redeam the bonds at the
end of the fifth year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Bonds issued (Continued)

(13

(16)

(17

(18)

(15}

(200

{21y

The Bank issued tier 2 capital bonda in an amount of BEMB15 billion on 24 October 2022, The bonds have
o mahurity of 15 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 3.34%. The Bank is entitled to redeam the bonds at the
end of the tenth year.

The Bank issued tier 2 capital bonds in an amownt of RMB40 billion on 20 March 2023, The bonds have
o mahrity of 10 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 3.49%. The Bank is entitled to redeam the bonds at the
end of the fifth year.

The Bank issued tier 2 capital bonds in an amownt of RMB20 billion on 20 March 2023, The bonds have
o mahurity of 15 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 3.61%. The Bank is entitled to redeam the bonds at the
end of the tenth year.

The Bank issuad tier 2 capital bonds in an amount of EMB 30 biflion on 19 September 2023, The tonds
have a maturity of 10 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 3.25%. The Bank is entitled to redeam the tonds
at the end of the fifth year.

The Bank issuad tier 2 capital bonds in an amount of EMB 30 biflion on 19 September 2023, The tonds
have a maturity of 15 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 3.37%. The Bank is entitlad to redeam the tonds
at the end of the tenth year.

The Bank issued tier 2 capital bonds in an amount of RMB45 billion on 19 October 2023, The bonds have
o maharity of 10 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 3.43%. The Bank is entitled to redeam the bonds at the
end of the fifth year.

The Bank issued tier 2 capital bonds in an amount of RMB25 billion on 19 October 2023, The bonds have

o maharity of 15 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 3.53%. The Bank is entitled to redeam the bonds at the
end of the tenth year.
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

K3}

32

Bonds issued (Continued )

(23

(23

(24)

(25)

(26)

(27)

The Bank issued tier 2 copital bonds in an amount of RMBE 15 billion on 1 December 2023, The bonds have
a mahrity of 10 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 3.30%. The Bank is entitled to redeam the bonds at the
end of the fifth year.

The Bank issued tier 2 capital bonds in an amount of RMB 15 billicn on | December 2023, The bonds have
o matarity of 15 years, with a fixed coupon rate of 3.37%. The Bank is entifled to redeam the bonds at the
end of the tenth year.

The claims of the holders of ter 2 capital bonds will be subordinated to the claims of depositors and
genernl creditors.

TS Doller Debt Securities. RMB Debt Securities and other Debt Securities were issued in Chinesa
mainland. Hong Kong (China), Macao (China), Toiwan (Chinn) and other countries and regions between
2014 and 2023 by the Group, with dates of maturity ranging from 2024 to 2033

According to the Group's risk management policy. the Group enters imto derivatives to hedge market risks
ariging from certain of its bonds issued. The Group designates certain bonds issued as financial liabilities
at fair value thoough profit or doss, to eliminate or significantly reduce accounting mismatch. As at 31
December 2023, the carrying amount of the above-mentioned bonds izsued by the Group was RMB2,118
million (31 December 2022: RMB 2,080 million). The differances between the fair walue and the amount
that the Group would be contractually required to pay to the holders as at 31 December 2023 and 2022
were not significant. In the years of 2023 and 2022, there was no significant change i the Group's credit
risk nor changes in the fair value of thesa financial linhilitias as a result.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 3022, the Group did not default on any principal, interest
or redemption amounts with respect to its bonds izsued.

Other borrowings

These other borrowings relate to the financing of the alrcraft leasing business of BOC
Aviation Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, and are secured by its aircraft (Note V.20).

Az at 31 December 2023, these other borrowings had a remaining maturity ranging from 2
days to 5 vears and borne floating and fixed interest rates ranging from 6.26% to 6.47%
(31 December 2022: 4.02% to 6.03%).

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not default on any
principal, interest or redemption amounts with respect to its other borrowings.
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

33 Cuorrent tax labilities

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Corporate income tax 51,180 50,192
Value-added tax 6476 6,965
City construction and maintenance tax 647 554
Education surcharges 260 25
Crther 731 a21
Total 50,303 58,057

34 Retirement benefit obligations

Az at 31 December 2023, the actuarial liabilities existing in relation to the retiremednt
benefit obligations for emplovees who retired prior to 31 December 2003 and the early
retirement obligations for emplovees who early-retired were RMBL.5E0 million (31
December 2022: RME1.713 million) and EMB2T million (31 December 2022: RMB129
million), respectively, using the projected unit credit method.

The movements of the net liabilities recognised are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
As at 1 January 1.542 2,095
Interest cost 48 54
Met actuarial gains recognised (41} (94}
Benefits paid (173) (213
As at 3] December IE'FE 1,842
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v

34

35

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Retirement benefit obligations ( Continued)

Primary assumptions used:

As at 31 December

2023 2022

Discount rate

— Mormal retires 2.505% 275%

— Early retires 2.25% 2.50%
Pension benefit inflation rate

— Mormal retires 3.0% 3.0%

— Early retires 3.0% 3.0%
Medical benefit inflation rate B.0% 2.0%
Retiring age

— Male 60 Gl

— Female 50055 S0/55

Assomptions regarding foture mortality experience are based on the China Life Insurance
Maortality Table {published historical statistics in China).

Az at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was no significant change in employee retirement
benefit obligations that was attributable to changes in actuarial assumptions.

Share apprecation rights plan

In November 2005, the Bank’s Board of Directors and equity holders approved and adopted
a Share Appreciation Rights Plan under which eligible participants, including directors,
supervisors, management and other personnel designated by the Board, will be granted
share appreciation rights, up to 25% of which will be exercisable each year beginning on
the third anniversary date from the date of grant. The share appreciation rights will be valid
for seven vears from the date of grant. Eligible participants will be entitled to receive an
amount equal to the difference, If any, betwesn the average closing market price of the
Bank’s H shares in the ten davs prior to the date of grant and the average closing market
price of the Bank’s H shares in the 12 months prior to the date of exercise as adjustad for
any change in the Bank's egquity. The plan provides cash-settled share-based payment only
and accordingly, no shares will be issued under the share appreciation rights plan.

Mo share appreciation rights were granted since the inception of the plan.
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

36 Deferred income taxes

J6.4 The table below includes the deferred income tax assets and liabilities of the Group after
offsetting qualifyving amounts and the related temporary differences.

As at 31 December
2023 022

Deferred Deferred
Temporary tax assets/ Temporary tax assefs’
differences  (llabilities) differences  (liabilities)

Defered income tax assets 206,050 75,156 278,548 71.130

Defered income tax liabilities (55,9200 (7.397) (33.46T) (6.804)

Meat 240.130 67.750 225081 654,335
33

453/590



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

36 Deferred income taxes ( Continued)

J6.2 Deferred income tax assets/liabilities and related temporary differences, before offsetting
qualifying amounts, are attributable to the following items:

As at 31 December
2023 022

Deferred Deferred
Temporary tax assets/ Temporary tax assefs’
differences  (llabilities) differences  (liabilities)

Deferred Income fax assets

Asset impairment allowances 319479 79.510 306,972 76,005
Pension, retirement benefits
and salary payables 37,502 9,359 32,054 7902

Financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial

instruments 125,053 31,306 106,246 26,171
Financial assets at fair walue through other

comprehensive income 13,009 2,780 21,019 4,868
Other temporary differences 73,108 16,387 52,382 11,006
Subtotal 560,141 130,432 519,573 126,042

Deferred Income tax labilities
Financial instruments at fair ¥alue through
profit or loss and derivative financial

instruments (126,838) (31,381 (137.985) (34253)
Financial assets at fair walue through other

comprehensive income (47.421) (11,652} 24,777 (6.194)
Depreciation and amortisation (46,005) {5,820} (46,251} (5.378)
Revaluation of investment properties (10,933 {2,104} (10.269) (1.955)
Other temporary differences (96,914) (20.516) (73.110) (14.827)
Subtotal (320011) (71673 (204.407) (62,607
Met 240,130 67,759 225081 64,335

Az at 31 December 2023, deferred tax liabilities relating to temporary differences of
RMB214.236 million associated with the Gronp's investments in subsidiaries have not besn
recognised (31 December 2022: RMB 199,915 million). Refer to Note I1.19.2.
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¥  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
36 Deferred income taxes ( Continued)
J6.F Movements of the deferred income tax are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
As at 1 January 64,335 44,693
Credited to the income statement (MNote V.10) 10,599 13,288
(Charged Wcredited to other comprehensive incoms (7.012) 6,343
Crther (163) 11
As at 31 December 67,759 64,335

J6.4 Breakdowns of deferred income tax credit{charge) in the income statement are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

Assat impairment allowances 3,505 T7.620
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or

loss and derivative financial instryments 7.807 2455

Pension, retirement benefits and salary payables 1.367 1.754

Other temporary differences (2,170} 1.450

Total 10,599 13,288
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

37 Other Habilities

Insurance contract liabilities

Items in the process of clearance and settlement

Salary and welfare payables

Lease liabilities =
Provision ®
Deferred income
Oither

Total

(1) Salary and welfare payables

Salary. boous and subaidy
Staff welfare
Bocial insumnce

— Medical

— Pension

— Anouity

— Unemployment

— Injury at work

— Maternity insurance
Housing funda

Labour wnion fee and staff education fee
Reimbursement for cancellation

of labour contract
Oither

Total™

As at 31 December

2023 2022

257625 222,939

63,547 67,875

52,117 46,657

18,797 19621

31,778 32844

6,865 6,579

21,431 20,330

5 12=l 58 485i354

As at As at
1 January 31 December
23 Awccrual Payment 2023
38842 76,250 (70,253 44,830
- 4,871 (4,871 -
1358 4,388 (2680 1477
257 6014 (6,922) 49

12 4,114 4,116y 10

) 245 (246) [

2 08 (57 3

3 119 {118) 4

5l 5451 (5.441) 61
5374 1911 {2,315) 4,970
25 21 (31) 15

T26 5437 (56800 483
45657 100816 (104,355 32117
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

37 Other Habilities (Continwed)

(1)

(Z)

Balory ond welfare peyables (Continned)

As at As at
1 January 31 December
2022 Awccrual Payment 012
Salary, boous and subsidy 314051 T2.158 (64, 36T 38,842
Staff welfare - 5017 {3,017y -
Social insumnce
— Medical 1525 3600 (3L85T) 1.358
— Pension 230 6420 (6,393 257
— Annuity 10 3820 (382T) 12
— Unemployment & 216 (215) 7
— Injury at work 2 86 (Ba) 2
— Maternity insurance 3 109 LY 3
Housing funds 30 5117 (5,096) 51
Labour wnion fee and s@ff education fee 6.126 1.152 (1,904 5374
Reimbursement for cancellation of
labour contract ] 25 (23) 5
Other 670 4.908 (4,861 T3
Total™ 30685 102,727 595,?55‘.! 46,657

{iy  There was no overdue payment for saff slary and welfare payables as at 31 December 2023 and

2022

Lense liabilities

The Group's lease liabilities are analysed by the maturity date — undiscounted analysis

Leas than 1 year
Between 1 to 5 years
Orver 5 years

Undiscounted lease liabilities

Lensa liabilities
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As at 31 December

2023

6585
10,297
7656

24,538

18,797

w2

6,257
10,740
8507

25,504
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

37 Other Habilities (Continwed)

(3 Provision
As at 31 December
2023 2
Allowance for credit commitments ™ 30917 31602
Allowance for litigation losses (Note ¥.41.1) 859 1,242
Toinl 31,776 32844

Movements of the provision are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

023 w2z
Asat 1 January 32844 26,343
(Reversal Mlosses for the year (808} 6,199
Utilised during the year (374) (63)
Exchange differences and other 114 365
As ot 31 December 31,776 32844

iy  Allowance for credit commitments is measured using the ECL model. Credit commitments were
muoinly under Stage 1, and the transfers in balance between stages were not significant during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
38 Share capital, capital reserve and other equity instruments
J8.1 Share capital

The Bank's share capital is as follows:

Unit: Share
As at 31 December
023 w2
Dromestic Usted A shares, par walue of RMB1.00 per share 210,765 514,845 210,765,514 845
Orverseas lsted H shares, par value of RMB10O per share 83,622.276,305 83,622,276 305
Total 204,387.701,241  204.387,791.241

All A and H shares rank pari passu with the same rights and benefits.

J38.2 Capltal reserve

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Share preminm 133632 133,634
Other capital reserve 2,104 2,125
Total 135,736 135,759
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

38 Share capital, capital reserve and other equity instruments { Continued)

J8.3 Other equity instriments

For the vear ended 31 December 2023, the movements in the Bank’s other aguity

instruments were as follows:

As at As at
1 Jamuary 2023 Increasefidecrease) 31 December 2023
Cuantity (mantity Quantity
(millon Issme (midllion Issue (milion Issue
shares) amount shares) amounk shares) amount

Preference Shares
Damestic

Preference Shares

{Third Tranche)™ 730.0 73,000 - - 7300 73,000
Domestic

Preference Shares

(Fourth Tranche)® 270.0 27,000 - - 2700 27,000
Offshore

Preference Shares

(Second Tranche)™ 197.9 19,787 - - 1979 19,787
Subtotal 1.197.9 119,787 - - 1,1979 119,787
Perpetual Bonds
2019 Undated Capital

Bonds (Series 1) ™ 40,000 - 40,000
2020 Undated Capital

Bonds (Series 1) @ 40,000 - 40,000
2020 Undated Capital

Bonds (Series 2) & 30,000 - 30,000
2020 Undated Capital

Bonds (Series 3) ™ 20,000 - 20,000
2021 Undated Capital

Bonds (Serdes 1) ™ 50,000 - 50,000
2021 Undated Capital

Bonds (Seres 2) ™ 20,000 - 20,000
2022 Undated Capital

Bonds (Seres 1) ™ 30,000 - 30,000
2022 Undated Capital

Bonds (Seres 2) ™ 20,000 - 20,000
2023 Undated Capital

Bonds (Seres 1) - 30,000 30,000
Subtotal 250,000 30,000 280,000
Total 369,787 30,000 399,787

As at 3] December 2023, the transaction costs of outstanding other equity instruments

issned by the bank were EMB1 10 million (31 December 2022: RMEB108 million).
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS {Continued)

38 Share capital, capital reserve and other equity instruments { Continued)

J8.3 Other eguity instruments (Contimged)

(1

(Z)

(3

With the approvals by the relevant regulatory authorities in Chinn. the Bank issued non-cumulative
Daomestic Preference Shares on 24 June 2019, in the aggregate par value of RMBT3 billion. Bach Domestic
Preference Shore has a par value of RMB100 and 730 million Domestic Preference Shores were isued in
total. The dividend rate of the shores for the first five years is 4.30% (pre-tax), which iz reset every 5 years.

The Domestic Preference Shares have no maturity date. However, subject to the satisfaction of the
redemption conditions and the prior approval of the relevant megulatedy anthorities, the Bank may ot its
discretion redeem all or part of the Domestic Preference Shares after 27 June 2024 at the redemption price
representing the sum of the par value of the Domestic Preference Shame and the dividends declared but not
et distribuwted.

With the approvals by the relevanot regulatory authorities in Chino. the Bank issued pon-cumulative
Domestic Preference Shares on 26 August 2019, in the aggregate par walue of RMB27 billion. Each
Daowmestic Preference Share has a par valne of RMB 100 and 270 miltion Domestic Preference Shares wera
issued in total. The dividend rate of the shares for the first five years is 4.35% (pre-tax), which is tesat

every 5 yeams.

The Domestic Preference Shares have no maturity date. However, subject to the satisfaction of the
redemption conditions and the prior approval of the relevant regulatory authorities, the Bank may ot its
discretion redeem all or part of the Domestic Preference Shares after 20 August 2024 at the redemption
price representing the sum of the par value of the Domestic Preference Share and the dividends declared
but not yet distributed.

With the approvals by the relevant regulatory authorities in China. the Bank issued the US Dodlar satted
oon-cumulative Offshore Preference Shares on 4 March 2020. Bach Offshore Preference Share haz a
par value of RMB100 and 197865300 Offshore Preference Shares were issued in totml. The aggregate
par value of the Offshore Preference Shares s USD2.820 billion as converted into USD using the fixed
exchanges mte (USDL00 o RMBT.0168). The initinl annual dividend rate iz 3.60% (after tax) and iz
subject to reset per agreement. but in no case shall excesd 12.15%. The dividends are calculated and paid
in U8 Dallars.

The Offshore Preference Shares have no maturity date. Howewer, subject to the satisfaction of the
redemption conditions and the prior approval of the relevant regulatory authorities, the Bank may ot its
discretion redeem all or part of the Offshore Preference Shares on 4 March 3025 or any dividend payment
date thereafter ot the redemption price representing the sum of the par value of the Offshore Preference
Shores and the dividends declared but not yet distributed, as calculated and paid in US Dollats.
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
38 Share capital, capital reserve and other equity instruments { Continued)
J8.3 Other eguity instruments (Contimged)

Save for such dividend at the agreed dividend payout ratio, the holders of the above
preference shares shall not be entitled to share in the distribution of the remaining profits
of the Bank together with the holders of the ordinary shares. The above preference shares
bear non-cumulative dividends. The Bank shall be entitled to cancel any dividend on
the preference shares, and such cancellation shall not constitute a default. However, the
Bank shall not distribute profits to ordinary shareholders until resumption of full pavment
of dividends on the preference shares. Upon the occurrence of a triggering event for the
compulsory conversion of preference shares into ordinary shares in accordance with the
agreement, the Bank shall convert the preference shares into ordinary shares in whole or in
part after reporting to the relevant regulatory authorities for its examination and approval
decision. As at 31 December 2023, the above preference shares have not been converted to
ordinary shares.

Fuonding raised from the issuance of the above preference shares was fully nsed to replenish
the Bank’s capital and to increase its capital adequacy ratio.

(4)  With the approvals by the relevant regulatory authorities in China, the Bank issued RMB40,000 million
write-down undated capital bonds in the Chinese mainland interbank bond market on 25 January 2019
and completed the isuance on 29 Jamuary 2019, The denomination of the tonds is RMB 100 each. and the
annual interest rate of the bonds for the ficst five years s 4.50%, which is reset every 5 years.

{31 With the approwals by the relevant regulatory authorities in China, the Bank issued RMBA0,000 miflion
wiite-down undated capital bonds in the Chinese mainland interbank bond market on 28 April 2020 and
completed the issuance on 30 April 2020, The denomination of the bonds is RMB100 each, and the anoual
interast rate of the bonds for the first five years is 3.40%, which is reaet every 5 years.

(6)  With the approvals by the relevant regulatory authorities in China, the Bank issued RMB 30,000 million
write-down undabted capital bonds in the Chinese mainland interbank bond market on 13 Movember 2020
and completed the issuance on 17 Movember 2020, The denomination of the bonds is RMB 100 each. and
the anomal interest rate of the bonds for the first five years is 4.55%, which is reset every 5 years,

{7y With the approwals by the relevant regulatory authorities in China, the Bank issued RMB 20,000 million
wiite-down undated capital bonds in the Chinese mainland interbank bond market on 10 Decamber 2020
and completed the isuance on 14 Decamber 2020, The denomination of the bonds is RMB 100 each. and
the anomal ioterest rate of the bonds for the first five years is 4.70%. which is reset every 5 years,

(8)  With the approvals by the relevant regulatory authorities in China. the Bank dissued RMB 50,000 million
write-down undabed capital bonds in the Chiness mainland interbank bond market on 17 May 2021 and

completad the issuance on 19 May 2021. The denomination of the bonds iz RMB100 each, and the anonal
interast rate of the bonds for the first five years is 4.08%, which is reaet every 5 years.
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
38 Share capital, capital reserve and other equity instruments { Continued)

J8.3 Other eguity instruments (Contimged)

(90 With the approvals by the relevant regulatory authorities in China, the Bank issued RMB 20,000 million
wiite-down undated copital bonds in the Chinese mainland interbank bond market on 25 Movember 2021
and completed the issuance on 20 Movember 2021, The denomination of the bonds is RMB 100 each. and
the anomal ioterest rate of the bonds for the first five years is 3.64%. which is reset every 5 years,

(100 With the approvals by the relevant regulatory authoritias in China, the Bank issued RMB 30,000 million
wiite-down undated copital bonda in the Chinese mainland interbank bond market on 8 April 2022 and
complatad the issnance on 12 April 2022, The denomination of the bonds is RMB100 each, and the anonal
interest rate of the bonds for the first five years is 3.65%, which is reaet every 5 years.

(11} With the approvals by the relevant regulatory authorities in China, the Bank issued RMB 20,000 million
wiite-down undated capital bonds in the Chinese mainland imterbank bond market on 26 April 2022 and
completad the issuance on 28 April 2022, The denomination of the bonds is RMB100 each, and the anonal
interest rate of the bonds for the first five years is 3.65%, which is reaet every 5 years.

{12y 'With the approvals by the relevant regulatory authorities in China, the Bank issued RMB 30,000 million
wiite-down undated capital bonds in the Chiness mainland interbank bond market on 14 June 2023 and
completad the issuance on 16 June 2023, The denomination of the bonds iz RMB100 each, and the anonal
interast rate of the bonds for the first five years is 3.27%, which is reset every 5 years.

The above perpetual bonds will continne to be ontstanding so long as the Bank's business
continues to operate. Subject to the satisfaction of the redemption conditions and having
obtained the prior approval of the relevant regulatory authorities, the Bank may redesm
these bonds in whole or in part on each distribution payment date from the fifth anniversary
since the issuance. Upon the occurrence of a triggering event for the write-downs, with
the consent of the relevant regnlatory authorities and without the need for the consent of
the holders of the above bonds, the Bank has the right to write down the principal amount
of the above bonds issued and existing at that time in whole of in part, in accordance with
the outstanding principal amount of the bonds. The claims in respect of the above bonds,
in the event of a winding-up of the Bank, will be subordinated to the claims of depositors,
general creditors and subordinated indebtedness that ranks senior to these bonds; will rank
in priority to all classes of shares held by the Bank’s sharcholders and rank pari passu with
the claims in respect of any other additional tier 1 capital instruments of the Bank that rank
pari passn with these bonds.

The above bonds bear non-cumulative interest and the Bank shall have the right to cancel
distributions on these bonds in whole or in part and such cancellation shall not constitute a
default. The Bank may at its discretion utilise the proceeds from the cancelled distributions
to meat other obligations of maturing debts. The Bank shall not distribute profits to ordinary
shareholders until the resumption of full interest pavment to the holders of these bonds.

Funding raisad from the issuance of these bonds was fully used to replenish the Bank's
capital and to increase its capital adequacy ratio.

343

463/590

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

38 Share capital, capital reserve and other equity instruments { Continued)

J8.3 Other eguity instruments (Contimged)

Interests aftributable to the holders of equily Instruments

As at 31 December

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank
— Equity attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Bank
— Equity attributable to other equity holders of
the Bank

Total equity attributable to non-controlling interests
— Equity attributable to non-controlling interests of
ordinary shares
— Equity attributable to non-controlling interests of
other equity instruments

2023

2,629,510

2,230,005

300,505

127,305

120,712

6,593

2022

2,423,973

2,054,468

360,505

139,328

112,076

27,252
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
39 Statutory reserves, gpeneral amnd regulatory reserves and undistributed profits
J9.1 Statutory reserves

Under relevant PRC laws, the Bank is required to appropriate 10% of its net profit to non-
distributable statutory surplus reserves. The appropriation to the statutory surplus reserves
may cease when such reserves has reached 50% of the share capital. Subject to the approval
of the Annual General Meeting, the statutory surplus reserves can be nsed for replenishing
the accumulated losses or increasing the Bank's share capital. The statutory surplus resarves
amount used to increase the share capital is limited to a level where the statutory surplus
reserves after such capitalisation is not less than 25% of the share capital.

According to the profit distribution plan approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March
2024, the Bank appropriated 10% of the net profit for the year ended 31 December 2023
to the statutory surplus reserves, amounting to EMB20.824 million (2022: EMB20,494
million}.

In addition, some operations in Hong Kong (China), Macao (China), Taiwan (China) and
other countries and regions are required to appropriate certain percentages of their net
profits to the statutory surplus reserves as stipulated by local banking authorities.

39.2 General and regulatory reserves

According to Caijin [2012] No. 20 Reguirements on Impairment Allowance for Financial
Institwtions (the “Requirement™), issued by the MOF, in addition to the impairment
allowance, the Bank establishes a general reserve to address unidentified potential
impairment losses. The general reserve as a distribution of profits, being part of the equity,
should not be less than 1.5% of the aggregate amount of risk assets as defined by the
Requirement, and the minimum threshold can be accumulated over a period of no more than
five years.

According to the profit distribution plan approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March
2024, the Bank appropriated RMBE40 468 million to the general reserve for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: RME32,264 million).

The regulatory reserve mainly refers to the reserve amount set aside by BOC Hong Kong
{Group) Limited (“BOCHE Group’™), a subsidiary of the Group, for general banking risks,
including future losses or other unforeseeable risks. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022,

the reserve amounts set aside by BOCHE Group were RME4.939 million and EMB4, 186
million, respectively.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
39 Statutory reserves, general and regulatory reserves and undistributed profits (Continued )
J9.3 Nvidends

Dividemds for Ordinary Shares

Ordinary share cash dividend of RMB&S,298 million (pre-tax) in respect of the profit for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was approved by the shareholders of the Bank at the Annual
General Meating held on 30 June 2023 and was distributed during the year.

Ordinary share cash dividend of RMBZ2.364 per ten shares (pre-tax) in respect of the profit
for the vear ended 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB2.32 per ten shares), amounting to a
total dividend of RMB69,593 million (pre-tax), based on the number of shares issued
as at 31 December 2023 will be proposed for approval at the forthcoming 2023 Annual
General Meeting and the dividend payable is not reflected in the liabilities of the financial
statements.

Dividends for Preference Shares

Dividend distributions of Domestic Preference Shares (Third Tranche and Fourth Tranche)
and Offshore Preference Shares (Second Tranche) were approved by the Board of Directors
of the Bank at the Board Mesting held on 28 April 2023, Dividend of Domestic Preference
Shares (Third Tranche) amounting to EMB3.285 million (pre-tax) was distributed on
27 Jupe 2023, Dividend of Domestic Preference Shares (Fourth Tranche) amounting to
EMBIL,174.5 million (pre-tax) was distributed on 29 August 2023, Dividend of Offshore
Preference Shares (Second Tranche) amounting to USDIO01.S5 million (after tax) was
distributed on 4 March 2024 and was recorded in “Other liabilities™ as at 31 December
2023,
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
39  Statutory reserves, general and regulatory reserves and undistributed profits (Continued )
9.3 Dividends (Continued)

Interest on Perpetual Bomds

The Bank distributed interest on the 2019 Undated Capital Bonds (Series 1) amounting to
REME1,200 million on 29 Jamary 2023,

The Bank distributed interest on the 2022 Undated Capital Bonds (Series 1) amounting to
RME1,005 million on 12 April 2023,

The Bank distributed interest on the 2022 Undated Capital Bonds (Series 2) amounting to
EMBT730 million on 28 April 2023,

The Bank distributed interest on the 2020 Undated Capital Bonds (Series 1) amounting to
RMEL.,360 million on 4 May 2023,

The Bank distributed interest on the 2021 Undated Capital Bonds (Series 1) amounting to
RMB2,040 million on 19 May 2023,

The Bank distributed interest on the 2020 Undated Capital Bonds (Series 2) amounting to
RMEL,365 million on 17 November 2023,

The Bank distributed interest on the 2021 Undated Capital Bonds (Series 2) amounting to
RMBT2E million on 29 November 2023,

The Bank distributed interest on the 2020 Undated Capital Bonds (Series 3) amounting to
EMBO40 million on 14 December 2023,

40 Non-controlling interests
Mon-controlling interests of the subsidiaries of the Group are as follows:

As at 31 December

2023 2022
BOC Hong Kong (Group) Limited 91,000 103,926
Tai Fung Bank Limited 12,400 13,195
Bank of China Group Investment Limited 12776 12,254
Crther 11,129 0,953
Total 127305 139,328
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
41 Contingent lHabilitles and commitments
41.1 Legal proceedings and arbifrations

As at 31 December 2023, the Group was involved in certain litigation and arbitration cases
in the regular course of its business. In the Group's regular business operations in differsnt
countries and regions across the world, given the range and scale of its international
presence, the Group may be involved in a variety of litigation, arbitration and judicial
procesdings within different jurisdictions, and the ultimate outcomes of these proceedings
involve varions levels of uncertainty. Management makes provisions for potential losses
that may arizse from these uncertainties based on assessments of potential liabilities, courts”
judgements or the opinions of legal counsel, and as at 31 December 2023, the balance
of the provisions was EMBS59 million (31 December 2022: RME1.242 million), as
disclosed in Mote V.37. Based upon the opinions of internal and extemal legal counsels,
senior management of the Group believes that, at the current stage, these matters will not
have a material impact on the financial position or operating results of the Group. Should
the ultimate outcomes of these matters differ from the initially estimated amounts, such
differences will impact the profit or loss in the period during which such a determination is
made.

41.2 Assets pledged

Asszats pledged by the Group as collateral mainly for placement, repurchase, short positions,
derivative transactions with other banks and financial institutions and for local statutory

requirements are set forth in the table below. These transactions are conducted under
standard and normal business terms.

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Dbt securities 1,450,062 1,084,236
Bills 638 281
Tuotal 1,450,700 1.084.517
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v

41

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Contingent Habilitles and commitments (Continued)

41.3 Collateral accepied

The Group accepts securities as collateral that are permitted to be sold or re-pledged
in connection with reverse repurchase and derivative agreements with banks and other
financial institutions. As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of collateral received from
banks and other financial institutions and accepted by the Group amounted to EMBE23,498
million {31 December 2022: RMB 130,147 million). As at 31 December 2023, the fair value
of the collateral that the Group had sold or re-pledged, but was obligated to return, was
REMB665 million (31 December 2022: RMB761 million). These transactions are conducted
under standard terms in the normal course of business.

41.4 Capltal commitments

(I} Long-term asseis

2}

As at 31 December

2023 2022

Property and equipment

— Contracted but not provided for 90,133 B2.420

— Anthorised but not contracted for 4,198 2,124
Intangible assets

— Confracted but not provided for 4,414 3455

— Authorised but not contracted for 65 264
Investment properties and others

— Contracted but not provided for 552 504
Total 99,362 88,767

Acguisition of China Conastroction Bank (Brasil} Banco Midldplo 5/4

Az at 3] December 2023, the Group Is committed to acquire a controlling stake in the
shareholding in China Construction Bank (Brasil) Banco Multiplo S/A ("CCB Brasil™)
based on a share purchase agreement signed with China Construction Bank Corporation.
The Group is required to pay CCB Brazil Financial Holding — Investimentos e Participagoes
Ltda. BEL564 million (equivalent to approximately RMB217 million) as the consideration
for the existing OCE Brasil shares and BRL540 million (eguivalent to approximately
EMBT764 million) to subscribe for certain new shares to be issued by CCE Brasil. The
completion of transaction depends on the fulfilment of all prescribed conditions stated in
the share purchase agreement. The transaction was completed on 31 January 2024 (MNote V. 500,
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS {Continuved)
41 Contingent llabllitles and commitments (Continued)
41.5 Operating leases

The Group acts as lessor in operating leases principally through aircraft leasing undertaken
by its subsidiary BOC Aviation Limited. Under irrevocable operating lease contracts, the
minimum lease payments which will be received by the Group under the operating leases
for existing aircraft and aircraft yet to be delivered amounted to:

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Less than 1 year 14 406 13,648
Between 1 to 2 vears 14,347 14,327
Betwesn 2 to 3 vears 13,940 13,565
Between 3 to 4 years 13,217 12,816
Between 4 1o 5 vears 12,865 12,060
Over 5 years 45727 51028
Total 114,502 117444

41.6 Treasury bonds redempiion commitmens

The Bank is entrusted by the MOF to underwrite certain Treasury bonds. The investors of
these Treasury bonds have a right to redeem the bonds at any time prior to maturity and the
Bank is committed to redeem these Treasury bonds. The MOF will not provide funding for
the early redemption of these Treasury bonds on a back-to-back basis but will pay interest
and repav the principal at matarity. The redemption price is the principal value of the bonds
plus unpaid interest in accordance with the early redemption arrangement.

As at 31 December 2023, the outstanding principal value of the Treasury bonds sold by the
Bank under obligation to redeem prior to maturity amounted to RMB42.677 million (31
December 2022; EMB45.563 million). The original matarities of these Treasury bonds vary
from 3 to 5 years and management expects the amount of redemption throngh the Bank
prior to the maturity dates of these bonds will not be material.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS {Continuved)
41 Contingent llabllitles and commitments (Continued)
41.7 Credit commitments

As at 31 December

2023 2022

Loan commitments

— with an original matarity of less than 1 vear 492,790 304,771

— with an original matarity of 1 year or above 2,952,967 2,430,689
Undrawn credit card limits 1027823 1,067.259
Letters of guarantee issned @

— Financing letters of guarantes 33,602 48,176

— Mon-financing letters of gnarantes 1164180 1,140,293
Bank bill acceptance 640,385 574425
Letters of credit issued

— Sight letters of credit 107,952 00,646

— Usance letters of credit 51,083 56,048
Accepted bills of exchange under letters of credit 61,279 79,362
Crther 253,054 275,670
Total & 6,794 205 6,157,939

(1) Loan commitments mainly represent undrawn loan facilities agreed and granted to customers.
Unconditionally sevocable loan commitments are oot included in loan commitments. As ot 31 December
023, the unconditionally revocable loan commitments of the Group amountad to RMBA75,271 million (31
December 2022: BMB 380,433 million).

(2}  The obligations on the Group to make payments are dependent on the outcome of a future event.

(3) Risk-weighted assets for cradit risk of credit commitments
The risk-weighted assets for credit risk of the Group are caleulated in accordance with the Capial R ok for
Commercia! Baaks (Provifom and other relevant regulations under the advanced copital measurament
approaches. The amounts are determined by the creditworthiness of the counterparties, the maturity

characteristics of each type of contracts and other factors.

As at 31 December

2023 w2
Cradit commitments 1355511 1325000
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41

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

Contingent Habilitles and commitments (Continued)

41.8 Underwriting obligations

42

As at 31 December 2023, there was no firm commitment in underwriting securities of the
Group (31 December 2022: ail).

Mote to the consolidated statement of cash flows

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents
comprise the following balances with an original maturity of less than three months:

As at 31 December

2023 2022

Cash and due from banks and other financial institations 483,116 640,003

Balances with central banks 1.257 651 758,494
Placements with and loans to banks and

other financial institutions 528,317 504,145

Financial investments 247 641 188,824

Total 2516725 2,001 466

Related party transactions

CIC was established on 29 September 2007 with registered capital of RMB1,550
billion. CIC is a wholly state-owned company engaging in foreign currency investmedqt
management. The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC
Government through CIC and its wholly owned subsidiary, Huijin.

The Group entered into banking transactions with CIC in the normal course of its business
on commercial terms.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS {Continuved)
43 Related party transactions (Continued)

43.2 Transactions with Hu{jin and compamies under Houlfin

1)

2}

General information of Huifin

Central Huijin Investment Ltd.

Legal representative
Registered capital
Location of registration
Capital shares in the Bank
Voting rights in the Bank
Mature

Principal activities

Unified social credit code

Transactions with Huaijin

PENG Chun

EMB228,.209 million

Beijing

64, 13%

64, 13%

Wholly State-owned company

Investment in major State-owned financial
institutions on behalf of the State Council;
other related businessas approved
by the State Council.

911000007 109329615

The Group enters into banking transactions with Huljin in the normal course of its business
ofl commmercial terms. Purchase of the bonds issuad by Huijin was in the normal course of
business and in compliance with the requirements of the related regulations and corporate

covernance.

Transaction balances

Investment in debt securities
Placements with Huijin
Due to Huijin

Transaction amournts

Interast income
Interest expense

As at 31 December

2023 2022
25,257 20,783
12,000 14,000
(14,842) {8.001)

Year ended 31 December
2023 2022

888 881
(166) (430)
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

43 Related party transactions (Continued)

43.2 Transactions with Hullin and companies onder Holfin (Continned)

(2} Transactions with companies uader Huaifin
Companies under Huijin include its equity interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures in certain other bank and non-bank entities in the PRC. The Group enters into
banking transactions with these companies in the normal course of business on comimercial
terms which include mainly purchase and sale of debt securities, money market transactions

and derivative transactions.

In the normal course of business, main transactions that the Group entered into with the
affiliates of Huijin are as follows:

Transaction balances

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Due from banks and other financial institutions 138,515 173,096
Placements with and loans to banks and other
financial institutions 214 458 211,275
Financial investments 566220 522,111
Derivative financial assets 0,354 10,347
Loans and advances to customers 82,160 20,003
Due to customers, banks and other financial institutions (595.608) (356.333)
Placements from banks and other financial institutions (157.657) (201 .668)
Derivative financial liabilities (10,537) (L0 118)
Credit commitments 30725 50,353

Transaction amounts

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
Interest income 24 6B6 17.249
Interast expensa (16,7T82) (9.568)
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

43 Related party transactions (Continued)
43.2 Transactions with Huljin and companies onder Hulfin {Comtinoed)

(3} Transactons with companies uader Huijin (Continged)

Year ended 31 December

Interest rate ranges
2023
Due from banks and other financial institutions 0.00%-10.82%
Placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions -0, 18%-23.00%
Financial investments 0.00%-6.83%
Loans and advances to customers 0.90%-6.82%

Due to customers, banks and other financial institutions 0.00%-6.45%
Placements from banks and other financial institutions -0.25%-8.33%

2022
0.00%-10.07%

-0.49%-23.00%
0.00%-5.98%
0.15%-6.00%

-0.50%-5.47T%
-0.51%-4.80%

43.3 Transactions with government avthoritles, agencles, aifiliates and other State-controlled

entitdes

The State Council of the PRC government directly and indirectly controls a significant
number of entities through its government anthorities, agencies, affiliates and other State-
controlled entities. The Group enters into extensive banking transactions with these entities

in the normal course of business on commercial terms.

Transactions conducted with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other State-
controlled entities include the purchase and redemption of investment securities issued by
government agencies, underwriting and distribution of treasury bonds issued by government
agencies through the Group®s branch network, foreign exchange transactions and derivative
transactions, lending, provision of credit and gouarantess and deposit placing and taking.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

43 Related party transactions (Continued)

43.4 Transactions with associates and folmf vemfures
The Group enters into banking transactions with associates and joint ventures in the normal
course of business on commercial terms. These include loans and advances, deposit taking
and other normal banking businesses. The main transactions that the Group entered into

with associates and joint ventures are as follows:

Transaction balances

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Loans and advances to customers 18,158 21,342
Due to customers, banks and other financial institutions (19,772} (24 557)
Credit commitments 27 497 27450

Transaction amounts

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
Interest income 673 717
Interest expense ESEISJ E4'§|[I]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

43 Related party transactions (Continued)

43.5 Transactions with the Annwity Found
As at 31 December 2023, apart from the obligations for defined contributions to the
Annuity Fund established by the Bank, annuity fond held other equity instruments issned by
the Bank of RMB3.94 million (31 December 2022: RMBS5.77 million), and bonds issued by
the Bank of RMB2.33 million (31 December 2022: RMB2.00 million).

43.6 Transactions with Key management persorrel
Kev management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including Directors, Supervisors and Executive Officers.
The Group enters into banking transactions with key management personnel in the normal
course of business. During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no

material transactions and balances with key management personnel on an individoal basis.

The kev management compensation for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022

comprises:
Year ended 31 December
2023 2022
Compensation for short-term employmant benefits 13 15
Compensation for post-emplovment benefits 1 1
Total 14 16

(1) The total compensation packages for the key management personnel for the year ended 31 December 2023
have not yet been finalized in accordance with the relevant regulntions of the PRC anthorities. The amount
of the compensation oot provided for is not expectad to have any significant impact on the Group's 2023
financial satements. The final compensation for the year ended 31 December 2023 will be disclosed in a
separnte announcement when determined.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS {Continuved)

43 Related party transactions (Continued)

43.7 Transactions with Connected Natural Persons
According to China Securities Regulatory Commission's Adminfstragive Measare for
Information Disclosare of Listed Companies, as at 31 December 2023, the Group's balance
of loans and overdrafis to the connected natural persons totalled RMB41 million (31
December 2022: RMB11 million).

431.8 Transactions with subsidiaries
The main transactions with subsidiaries are as follows:

Transaction balances

As at 31 December

2023 2022

Due from banks and other financial institutions 54648 33874
Placements with and loans to banks and other financial

institutions and loans and advances to customers 280431 318,632

Due to banks and other financial institutions (177.043) (255.912)

Placements from banks and other financial institutions (83,253) (56,167)

Transaction amounts

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
Interest income 7,768 4,000
Interest expense (3.531) (2.452)
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
43 Related party transactions (Continued)
43.8 Transactions with subsidiaries (Contnued )

{1} These directly held principal subsidiaries are unlisted companies. All holdings are
in the ordinary share capital of the undertaking concerned, and the ability of the
subsidiaries to transfer funds to the Group and the Bank is not restricted.

{2y BOCHEK (Holdings) and BOC Aviation Limited are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

{3) BOCHEK and BOC International Holdings Limited (“BOCT”), in which the Group holds
66.06% and 100% of their equity interests, respectively, hold 66% and 34% equity
interests of BOC Group Trustee Company Limited, respectively.

For certain sobsidiaries listed above, the discrepancy between the percentage of voting
rights and the percentage of effective equity holding is mainly due to the impact of indirect
holdings.

44  Sepment reporting

The Group manages the business from both geographic and business perspectives. From the
geographic perspective, the Group operates in three principal regions: Chinese mainland;
Hong Kong (China), Macao (China) and Taiwan (China); and other countries and regions.
From the business perspective, the Group provides services through six main business
segments: corporate banking, personal banking, treasury operations, investment banking,
insurance and other operations.

Measurement of segment assets, liabilities, income, expenses, results and capital
expenditure is based on the Group's accounting policies. The segment information presented
includes items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on
a reasopable basis. Punding is provided to and from individual business segments through
treasury operations as part of the asset and liability management process. The pricing of
these transactions is based on market rates. The transfer price takes into account the specific
features and maturities of the products. Internal transactions are eliminated on consolidation.
The Group regularly examines the transfer price and adjusts the price to reflect the current
situation.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

v

H

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
Sepment reporting ( Continued)
Geggraplical segrments

Chinese mainland — Corporate banking, personal banking, treasury operations and
insurance services, etc. are performed in Chinese mainland.

Hong Kong (China), Macao (China) and Taiwan (China) — Corporate banking, personal
banking, treasury operations, investment banking and insurance services are performed in
Hong Kong (China), Macao (China) and Taiwan (China). The business of this segment is
centralised in BOCHE Group.

Other countries and regions — Corporate and personal banking services are provided in
other countries and regions. Significant locations include Mew York, London, Singapore
and Luxembourg.

Business segments

Corporate banking — Services to corporate costomers, government awthorities and
financial institutions including current accounts, deposits, overdrafts, loans, payments and
settlements, trade-related products and other credit facilities, foreign currency, derivative
products and wealth management products.

Personal banking — Services to retail customers including savings deposits, personal loans,
credit cards and debit cards, payments and settlements, wealth management prodocts and
funds and insurance agency services.

Treasury operations — Consisting of foreign exchange transactions, customer-based interest
rate and foreign exchange derivative transactions, money market transactions, proprietary
trading and asset and liability management. The results of this segment include the imter-
serment funding income and expenses, results from interest-bearing assets and liabilities;
and foreign currency translation gains and losses.

Investment banking — Consisting of debt and eguity underwriting and financial advisory,
sales and trading of securities, stock brokerage, investment research and asset management
services, and private eguity investment services.

Insurance — Underwriting of general and life insurance business and insurance agency
services.

Other — Other operations of the Group comprise investment holding business and other
miscellaneous activities, none of which constitutes a separately reportable segment.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

v

45

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued )
Transfers of financial assets

The Group enters into transactions in the normal course of business by which it transfers
recognised financial assets to third parties or to special purpose entities. In some cases
where these transferred financial assets gualify for derecognition, the transfers may give rise
to full or partial derecognition of the financial assets concerned. In other cases where the
transferred assets do not qualify for derecognition as the Group has retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of these assets, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
assals,

Repurchase agreements

Transferred financial assets that do not gualify for derecognition mainly include debt
securities held by counterparties as collateral under repurchase agreements. Under this type
of repurchase agreements, the counterparties are allowed to sell or re-pledge those securities
in the absence of default by the Group, but have an obligation to return the securities upon
maturity of the contract. If the value of securities increases or decreases, the Group may
in certain circomstances, require counterpariies or be required by counterparties to pay
additional cash collateral. The Group has determined that the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of these securities and therefore has not derecognised them. In
addition, the Group recognises a financial liability for cash received.

The following table analyses the carrying amount of the above-mentioned financial assets
transferred to third parties that did not qualify for derecognition and their associated
financial liabilities:

Asat 31 December 2023 As at 31 December 2022
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrving
amount of amount of amountof amount of
transferred  assoclated ftransferred assoclated
assets liabilities assets liabilities

Repurchase agreements TLELL 70,922 1,354 1,325
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
Transfers of financial assets {Continued)
Credit assels transfers

The Group enters into credit asset transfers in the normal course of business during which it
transfers credit assets to special purpose entities which in turn issue asset-backed securities
or fund shares to investors. The Group may acquire some asset-backed securities and fund
shares at the subordinated tranche level, and accordingly, may retain parts of the risks and
rewards of the transferred credit assets. The Group would determine whether or not to
derecognise the associated credit assets by evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks
and rewards of the assets.

With respect to the credit assets that were securitised and qualified for derecognition,
the Group derecognises the transferred credit assets in their entirety. The corresponding
total carrving amount of asset-backed securities held by the Group in such securitisation
transactions was RMB405 million as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: RMB452
million), which also approximates the Group's maximum exposure to loss.

For those in which the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the transferred credit assets, and retained control of the credit assets, the
transferred credit assets are recognised in the statement of financial position to the extent
of the Group's continning involvement. For the vear ended 31 December 2023, there was
no credit asset transfer transaction which resulted in new continuing involvement through
acquiring tranches by the Group (2022; the carrving amount at the time of transfer of the
original credit assets, which the Group determined that it had continuning involvement
through acquiring certain tranches, was REMBI13.074 million) and the carryving amount
of assets in relation to continuing involvement that the Group continues to recognise in
the statement of financial position was RMB20,780 million as at 31 December 2023 (31
December 2022: RMB21,005 million).
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v

46

6.1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued )
Interests in structured entities

The Group is principally involved with structured entities through financial investments,
assel management and credit assets transfers. These structured entities generally finance the
purchase of assets by issuing securities or by other means. The Group determines whether
or not o consolidate these structured entities depending on whether the Group has control
over them.

Unconsolidated stroctured entities
Structured entitles sponsored and managed by the Group

In conducting the asset management business, the Group established various structured
entities to provide customers specialised investment opportunities within well-defined
objectives and narrow range, including wealth management products, funds and asset
management plans. The Group eamned management fee, commission and custodian fee in
return.

As at 31 December 2023, after considering the impact of relevant joint activities of
structured entities within the Group, the balance of wealth management products sponsored
and managed by the Group amounted to EMBL.631.063 million (31 December 2022:
REMEBI1,760.322 million), and funds and asset management plans amounted to RMBETTE, 109
million (31 December 2022; RMB661,93]1 million), respectively.

For the vear ended 31 December 2023, the above-mentioned commission, custodian fees
and management fees amounted to EMB6.2373 million (2022; RMB7.705 million).

For the purpose of asset-liability management, wealth management products may require
short-term financing from the Group and other banks. The Group is not comtractually
obliged to provide any financing to these products. The Group may enter into reverse
repurchase and placement transactions with these wealth management products in
accordance with market principles. For the yvear ended 31 December 2023, the Group did
not provide any such financing (2022 the maximum balance was EMBO 300 million). Such
financing provided by the Group was included in “Placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institations™. As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Group did
not have any outstanding financing balance and there was no such exposure to these wealth
management products.

In addition, the total carrying amount as at the transfer date of credit assets transferred by
the Group into the unconsolidated structured entities was RMB4,854 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB669 million). For the description of the portion of
asset-backed securities issusd by the above structured entities and held by the Group, refer
to MNote V.45,

360

489/590

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn

BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)
46 Interests in structured entitles { Continued)
46.1 Unconsolidated structured entities (Continued)

Structured entitles sponsored by ofher financial institutons

The stroctured entities sponsored by other financial institutions in which the Group holds
investments are set out below:

Finanelal

Financlal assefs af

nssets at falr value
fair valoe throogh Financlal

thraugh other assets at Maximom

proflt  comprehensive amartisad ETpasUre

Structored entlty type or liss Income st Tatal o ks
As at 31 December 2023

Fund investments 9.5 - - 85N 95

Iwestment trosts and assat management plans by 1,581 18980 o o

Aszpl-backed securifisstions - 4l|03’.f BQE 125,505 ]1525
A5 at 31 December 2002

Fund investments BlaAm - - BLATH a4

Lovesiment trosts nd aeset mampement plans 100 L4TO 13,006 16,365 16,565

Aszpl-backed secnrifisations 612 H?IDE-l ?SIIE-S 117,253 117,253

46.2 Consolidated structured entities

The Group's consolidated structured entities mainly consist of open-end funds, private
equity funds, trusts for asset-backed securities, and special-purpose companies. The Group
controls these entities because the Group has power over, is exposed to, of has rights
to variable returns from its involvement with these entities and has the ability to use its
power over these entities to affect the amount of the Group’s returns. Except for providing
financial guarantees for the companies established solely for financing purposes, the Group
does not provide financial or other support to the other consolidated structured entities.
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS {Continued)

47

Offsetting financial assets and financial Habilities

Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master netfing arrangements and similar

agreements are analvsed as below:

As at 31 Decernber 2023
Dregivatives

Reverss repo agieemaits
Other mss

Total

As at 31 Decernber 2022
Derivatives

Reverse repo ageements
Other msets

Total

Gros  Amounis Amounts met set off
Gross  ameunts  presented Im the statement of
amounts of  offset In the inthe _ Mmandal pasition
recognised  statememt  statement Cash
fnancial of financlal of financial ~ Financlal — collateral Net
asseis posiilon position instruments* recelved ameunt
123,050 {4167} 118292 {(B2425) {20,129% 16,278
Ban - PEN ) {23,178 - -
14217 (10,588) EXY - - 3529
160,448 (14.755) 145,603 (105,657} (20.129) 19.007
132,40 (7.905) 124,045 (B7,055) (18,802) 18188
18,736 - 18,738 (18,738) - -
10,152 (B,238) 1914 {5) - 1509
160,930 16,233 144,507 (105,798} (18800 X087
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YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

47

Offsetting financial assets and financial Habilities (Continuoed)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and

similar agreements are analysed as below:

Asat 31 December 2023
Drerivatives

Repurchase agreements
(ither Habilities

Total

As at 31 Decernber 2022
Derivatives

Repurchase apreements
Other Habilities

Total

Amoumdts net set off in

Gros  Amounts
Gross  amoeunts  presented the statement of
amounts of ~offset in the mthe fnancial position
recognised  slaiemenmi  statement Cash

fnanclal of financlal of fipanelal ~ Financldl — collateral Net
llabilities position positlon Instruments* pledged amaumt
112,585 (4,167} 108 418 (B2.409) (10,280) 15639
40321 - 40,31 {40,321) - -
13,560 [ 10,588) 2072 - - 2012
166 466 (14,755) 151,711 {122,820) (10.280) 18511
112,823 (7,995) 104,828 (87,117 {5,160) 12,551
28,268 - 28,368 {28.368) - -
0438 (B,238) 1,107 5 - 1102
150626 (16,233) 134,393 [115440) (5,160 13,743

* Including non-cash collaterl.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the assat and

settle the liability simultaneously (“the offset criteria™).

Derivatives and reverse repo/repurchase agresments included in the amounts are not set off

in the statemment of financial position where:

. The counterparty has an offsetting exposure with the Group and a master netting or
similar arrangement (including ISDA master agreement and Global Master Netting
Agreement) is in place with a right of setting off only in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy, or the offset criteria are otherwise not satisfied; and

+  Cash and non-cash collateral have been received/pledged in respect of the transactions
described above.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

48 The Bank’s statement of financial position and changes in equity

48.1 The Bank's statement of fimancial position

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks and other financial institations

Balances with central banks

Placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institations

Government certificates of indebtedness for
bank notes issued

Precious metals

Derivative financial assets

Loans and advances to customers, net

Financial investments

— financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

— financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
— financial assets at amortised cost

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in associates and jolnt ventures
Consolidated structured entities

Property and equipment

Construction in progress

Investment properties

Deferred income tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

373

493/590

As at 31 December

2023 2022
547,648 766,789
2,553,233 2,088,795
1,417,564 1,378,212
10,156 10,003
80,304 119,533
07.714 100,785
17,303,207 15,122,657
5,501,540 5,011,055
181,584 282,247
2,208 286 1,668,880
3,111,670 3,050,019
150,047 150,047
9,026 0,180
202,005 202,065
69,827 71,067
4,806 6,362
2754 2,740
72,886 67,841
120,157 93,676
28,332,864 25,201,716
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

YV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued)

48 The Bank’s statement of financial position and changes in equity (Continued)

48.1 The Bank s statement of financial position { Contimed)

LIABILITIES

Due to banks and other financial institutions
Due to central banks

Bank notes in circulation

Placements from banks and other financial institutions

Financial liabilities held for trading
Derivative financial liabilities

Due to costomers

Bonds issued

Current tax liabilities

Retirement benefit obligations
Deferred income tax liabilities
Other liabilities

Total Habilities

EQUITY
Share capital
Other equity instruments
— Preference shares
— Perpetnal bonds
Capital reserve
Other comprehensive income
Statutory reserves
General and regulatory reserves
Undistributed profits

Total equity

Total equity and Habilities

As at 31 December

2023 2022
2,302,630 2,368,070
1,116,808 810,520

10,228 10,400
382,800 432,764
- 430
08,744 95,777

20,127 975 17,606,623

1,600,680 1,432,403

53,880 52,066
1676 1,842

53 208
188,102 206,245
25,082 684 23,027,446
294,388 204,388
399,505 360,505
119,550 119,550
270,055 240,055
132,345 132,331
31,315 0,658
249,808 228,044
365,416 324,911
877,403 814,533
2,350,180 2,174.270
28,332,864 25,201,716

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024,

GE Haijlao
Director
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LIU Jin
Director
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v

49

50

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ITEMS (Continued )
IBOR Reform

The Group monitors the risks related to interbank offered rates (“IBORsS") reform,
continuously monitors the risk exposure and converts existing contracts. As at 31 December
2023, the Group had a small oumber of contracts that had not vet transitioned to an
alternative interest rate benchmark, but the amount was immaterial and had no significant
impact on the Group’s financial pesition and operating results.

Events after the financlal reporting date
Redempion af 2019 Undated Capital Bonds {Series 1)

According to the relevant terms and conditions in the prospectus for the issnance of the
2019 Undated Capital Bonds (Series 1), the bonds are subject to the redemption option
of the issuer. With the approval of the NFRA, the Bank fully redeemed the 2019 Undated
Capital Bonds (Series 1) on 29 January 2024, with the redemption amount of RMB40
billion.

Ac quisition of China Constroction Bank (Brasil) Banco Multiplo S/4

Az at 31 Jamary 2024, the Group has completed the acquisition and obtained control over
the operation of CCB Brasil (Note V.41.4). Upon the completion of such transaction, the
Group and China Construction Bank Corporation hold 68.34% and 31.66% of the share
capital of CCE Brasil, respectively. As at the issuance date of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group is in the process of determining the financial impacts in relation to
the consolidation of CCB Brasil.

Issuance of Tler 2 Capital Bonds
On 30 January 2024, the Bank issned fixed-rate Tier 2 capital bonds with a matority of
10 vears amounting RMB30 billion and fixed-rate Tier 2 capital bonds with a maturity of

15 vears amounting RMB30 billion and completed the issuance on 1 February 2024, The
issnance details have been set ont in the Bank’s announcement dated | February 2024,

37T
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANMAGEMENT
1 Overview

The Group analyses, identifies, monitors and reports risks by formulating risk management
policies, setting appropriate risk limits and control procedures, and wusing relevant
information systems. It also regularly reviews its risk management policies and related
systems to reflect new changes in markets, products and the industry’s best practices.

The financial risks the Group is exposed to mainly inclode credit risk, market risk and
liquidity risk. Among them, market risk includes exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and
other price risks.

The Board of Directors of the Group assumes the ultimate responsibility for comprehensive
risk management. The Board of Directors authorises its subordinate Risk Policy Committee,
Audit Committee and US Risk and Management Committee to perform part of the
responsibilities of comprehensive risk management. The Board of Supervisors undertakes
the supervision responsibility for comprehensive risk management, and is responsible
for sopervising and inspecting the duty performance of the Board of Directors and
senior management in respect of risk management and supervising relevant rectification.
Senior management is responsible for conducting comprehensive risk management and
implementing resolutions of the Board of Directors. The Risk Management Department,
Credit Approval Department, Credit Management Department and other relevant functional
departments are responsible for managing financial risks.

Branches and sub-branches are responsible for the comprehensive risk management of
business departments at the same level and institutions at lower levels, and shall report their
risk position to the Risk Management Department of the Head Office. The subsidiaries shall
establish and improve their respective comprehensive risk management systems and carry
out comprehensive risk management-related work in accordance with relevant regulatory
guidelines and the reguirements of this policy.
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VI

2.1

1)

FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which refers to the risk of loss arising from
the failure or unwillingness of a borrower or counterparty to fulfill its debt obligations,
including the default risk of a borrower's failure to repay its debt when it is due, and the
downgrading risk due to a deterioration in credit quality. Credit risk is one of the most
significant risks for the Group's business.

Credit risk exposures arise principally in lending activities and debt securities investmedqt
activities. There is also credit risk in off-balance sheet financial instryments, such as loan
commitments, bill acceptance, letters of guarantes and letters of credit.

Credif risk management
Loans and advances to customers and off-balance sheetf commitments

The Group identifies and monitors credit risk collectively based on industry, geography and
customer type. Management periodically reviews varions elements of the Group®s credit risk
management, in the context of loan portfolio growth, the changing mix and concentration of
assets, and the evolving risk profile of the credit portfolio. From time to time, in this regard,
refinements are made to the Group’s credit risk management processes to most effectively
manage the effects of these changes on the Group’s credit risk. These refinements inclode,
among other things, adjustments to portfolio level controls, such as revisions to lists of
approved borrowers, industry limits and underwriting criteria. Where circomstances related
to specific loans or a group of loans increase the Bank’s credit risk, actions are taken, to the
extent possible, to strengthen the sacurity of the Group’s position. The actions may include
obtaining additional guarantees or collateral.

The Group measures and manages the credit quality of loans and advances to corporate
and personal customers based on the Measures for Risk Classification of Financial Assats
of Comimercial Banks (the “Measures™), and classifies corporate and personal loans and
advances into five categories: pass, speclal-mention, substandard, doubtful and loss, among
which loans classified in the substandard. doubtful and loss categories are regarded as non-
performing loans. In addition, off-balance sheet commitments with credit exposure are also
assessed and categorised with reference to the Measures. For operations in Hong Kong (China),
Macao (China), Taiwan (China) and other countries and regions, where local regulations
and requirements are different from the Measures, credit assets are classified with prudently
oot lower than the Group’s management requirements in consideration of local regulations
and requirements.

3T
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VI
2
21

1)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk { Continued)

Credit risk management { Continued)

Loans and advances fo castomers and off-balance sheet commitments (Coatinged)
The five categories of loans are defined as follows:

Pass: Debtors are able to honour the contract terms and there is no objective evidence that
the principal, interest, or gains cannot be repaid in full and on time.

Special — mention: Although there are factors that may have a negative impact on the
debtors ability to meet its contractual obligations, the debtors are currently still able to pay
the principal. interest, or gains.

Substandard: Debtors are considered unable to repay the principal, interest, or gains in full;
of a credit impairment loss has been incurred in respect of the financial assets.

Doubtful: Debtors have been unable to repay the principal, interest, or gains in full, and a
significant credit impairment loss has been incurred in respect of the financial assets.

Loss: Financial assets are not expected to be recovered in their entirety or only a small
portion can be recovered, after all possible measures are taken.

The Group strictly follows the regulatory reguirements in five-category loan classifications
management, and makes timely adjustments to these classifications as necessary according
to customers” operational and financial position, together with other factors that may affect
the repayment of the loans.

In accordance with the New Basel Capital Accord, the Group implementsd a domestic
corporate customer credit rating system basad on the probability default ¢“PDY") model. The
domestic corporate customer PD model uses the principle of logistic regression to predict
the PD for customers in the next 12 months. The risk rating of the customer is obtained
through the relevant mapping relationship table according to the calculated PD value.
The corporate customer credit ratings are classified into fifteen grades as AAA AA, A
BBE+, BEEBE, BEB-, BB+, BB, BB-, B+, B-, CCC, CC, C, and D, Credit grade D equates to
defaulted customers while the others are assigned to non-defaulted customers. The Group
performs centralised review on customer credit ratings on an annual basis in addition to
making adjustments as necessary according to the customers’ operational and financial
conditions. The Group conducts back-testing of the rating model for domestic corporate
customers, according to the customers” actual defaulits each year, so that the model
calculation results are closer to the objective facts.
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VI

21

2)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk { Continued)

Credit risk management { Continwed)

Dge from, placements with and loans to baaks and other financial institotions

The Group manages the credit guality of doe from, placements with and loans to banks
and other financial institotions considering the size, financial position and the internal and
external credit rating of banks and financial institutions. During the business lifetime, the
Group conducts comprehensive analvsis, monitors and manages internal and external factors
that may affect counterparties” ability to operate on on-going basis and capacity to bear
risk, and takes comesponding control measures.

Debt securities and derivalives

Credit risk within debt securities arizes from exposure to movements in credit spreads,
default rates and loss given defanlt, as well as changes in the credit of underlying assets.

The Group manages the credit risk within debt securities by monitoring the external credit
rating, such as Standard & Poor's ratings or their equivalents, of the sacurities, the internal
credit rating of the issuers of debt securities, and the credit guality of underlying assets of
securitizsation products (including review of default rates, prepayment rates), industry and
sector performance, loss coverage ratics and counterparty risk, to identify exposure to credit
risk.

The Group has established policies to manage the net open derivative positions by amounts
and by maturity dates. At any time, the current credit exposure equals to the fair value
of those derivatives where the fair value changes are favourable to the Group. Credit
risk exposures for derivatives are included as part of the aggregated credit risk limit
management for financial institutions and customers. Exposures may also be mitigated by
obtaining collateral or other pledges of assets.
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VI

2.2

1}

(i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Credif risk imit control and mitigation policles

The Group manages limits and controls concentrations of credit risk in particular, to
individual customers and to industries.

Credit risk limits and controls
Loans and advances and off-balance sheet commitments

In order to manage the exposure to credit risk, the Group performs standardised
management of credit policies and procedures. The credit approval processes for both
corporate loans and personal loans can be broadly divided into three stages: (1) credit
origination and assessment; (2) credit review and approval; and (3) fund disbursement and
post-disbursement management.

Credit applications for corporate customers in the Chinese mainland must be approved by
the delegated credit application approvers at the Head Office and tier 1 branch level in
the Chinese mainland, except for loans autornatically approved online and certain Credit
Factory customers applications, low risk loans and advances approved by the delepated
credit application approvers at tier 2 branch level. The exposure to any single borrower,
including banks, is restricted by approved total credit limits covering on and off-balance
sheet exposures.

Personal loans in the Chinese mainland must be approved by delegated approvers at branch
level in the Chinese mainland, except for loans automatically approved online.

The Head Office also oversees the risk management of the branches in Hong Kong (China),
Macao (China), Taiwan ({China) and other countries and regions. In particular, any credit
application at these branches exceeding the authorisation limits s required to be submitted
to the Head Office for approval

Exposure to credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers
and potential borrowers to meet interest and principal repayment obligations and by
changing aforementioned credit limit where appropriate.
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VI

2.2z

1)

(i)

2)

FINANCIAL RISK MANMAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk lmit conirol and mitigation palicles (Contimmed)
Credit risk limits and controls (Continged)

Debt securities and derivatives

The Group is also exposed to credit risk through debt securities investments and derivative
trading activities. Credit limits are established based on type of instruments and the credit
quality of counterparties, securities issuers and the securities, and set limits are actively
monitored.

Credit risk mitigation policies
Collateral and guarantees

The Group has a range of policies and practices intended to mitigate credit risk. The most
prevalent of these is obtaining margin deposits, collateral and guoarantees. The Group
implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral and coverage
rate upper limits. The amount of acceptable collateral at the time of loan origination is
determined by the Credit Management Department and is subject to coverage rate upper
limits based on type. Value of collateral is monitored on an ongoing basis.

Mortgages to retail customers are generally collateralised by mortgages over residential
properties. Whether or not other loans require collateral is dependent on the nature of the
loan and the Group's credit management requirements,

For loans guaranteed by a third party guarantor, the Group will assess the guarantor’s credit
rating, financial condition, credit history and ability to meet its obligations.

Caollateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and advances is determined
by the nature of the instrument. Debt securities, treasury and other eligible bills are
generally unsecured, with the exception of certain asset-backed securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments.

Caollateral is also held as part of reverse repurchase agreements. Under some agreements,
the Group is permitted to sell or repledge collateral in the absence of defanlt by the owner

of the collateral. Details of collateral accepted and which the Group is obligated to return
are disclosad in Note V.41.3.
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VI

2.2z

2}
(i)

2.3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk limit conitrol and mitigation policles {Contimmed)

Credit risk mitigation policies {Conatinged)

Master netting agreements

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit losses by entering into master netting
agreements with counterparties. Master netting agreements do not generally result in the
offsetting of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position, as transactions
are usually settled on a pross basis. However, the credit risk associated with favourable
contracts is reduced by a master netting agreement to the extent that if an event of
default with respect to a counterparty or a termination event occurs, all amounts with the
counterparty under the master netting agreement are terminated and settled on a net basis.
Measurement of ECL

The Group conducts assessments of ECL with reference to forward-looking information
and uses a mumber of models and assumptions o its measurement of expectad credit
lossas. These models and assumptions relate to the future macroeconomic conditions
and borrowers’ creditworthiness (e.p.. the likelihood of default by customers and the
corresponding losses). The Group uses judgements, assumptions and estimation technigues
in order to measure ECL according to the requirements of accounting standards which
include:

. Segmentation of financial instrauments based on credit risk characteristics for losses

+  Criteria for determining significant increases in credit risk

. Definition of default and credit-impaired financial assats

. Parameters for measuring ECL

. Forward-looking information

There were no significant changes in the estimation techniques and such assumptions during
the reporting period.

The Bank has not applied management overlay.
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VI

23

1)

2)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk { Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Con tinwed)

Segmeniation of financial instraments based on credit risk characteristics for losses

When measuring ECL on a collective basis, the Group classifies its credit risk exposures
into corporate business, interbank business, personal loans, credit cards, and bond business
exposures according to its business type, and into domestic and overseas business exposures
according to its business regions. When further subdividing the credit risk exposures,
the Group obtains sufficient information and sepments them according to credit risk
characteristics such as product types, customer types, customer risk factors, usage of funds,
etc. and then calculate ECL for exposures with shared risk characteristics on a collective
basis to ensure its statistical reliability.

Criteria for determining significanl increases in credit risk

The Group assesses whether or not the credit risk of the relevant financial instmements has
increased significantly since the initial recognition at each financial reporting date. While
determining whether the credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition
or not, the Group takes into account the reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including qualitative and quantitative analysis based
on the historical data, external credit risk rating, and forward-looking information. Based
on an individoal financial instrument or a group of financial instruments with shared credit
risk characteristics, the Group compares the risk of defanlt of financial instruments at the
financial reporting date with that at the date of initial recognition in order to determine the
changes of default risk in the expected lifetime of financial instruments.

The Group considers a financial instrument to have experienced a significant increase in
credit risk when one or more of the following quantitative, qualitative or backstop criteria
have besn met:

Quantitative criteria

Credit risk is deemed to increase significantly when the forward-looking lifetime PD of
an exposure increases by certain predetermined thresholds since its initial recognition.
Specifically, such thresholds are met when such PD increases by a certain absolute level as

well as by a relative percentage. Such thresholds vary based on the forward-looking lifetime
PDr at the time of initial recognition.
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VI

23

2)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk {Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Criteria for determining significant increases in credit risk (Coatinged)

Qualitative criteria

. Significant adverse changes in debtor’s operations or financial status

. Migrated into the Special Mention category within the five-category loan classification
. Being included in the watch-list of the Group

Backstop criteria

. Borrowers' contractual payments (including principal or interest) are more than 30
days past due.

The Group has provided credit facilities for temporary deferral of principal repayments and
interest payments to certain borrowers in accordance with the regulatory requirements of
respective countriesfregions. For those loans with deferred principal repayments and interest
payments, the Group classified the credit risk based on the actual situation of the borrower
and the judgement of the substantive risk of the business. However, the temporary deferral
of principal or interest payment was not considered as an automatic trigger of a significant
increase of credit risk.
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VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2 Credht risk {Continued)

2.3 Measurement of ECL {Con timed)

(2} Definition of default and credit-impaired financial assels
The Group considers a financial instrument as defaulted when it is credit-impaired. The
standard adopted by the Group in determining whether a financial asset is credit-impaired
Is consistent with the internal credit risk management objectives, taking lnto accoudnt
quantitative and qualitative criteria. When the Group assesses whether a credit impairment
occurred, the following key factors are considerad:
. Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower
. A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal pavments
. The Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relating to the

borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the Group would not otherwise

consider

. It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankmptey or other financial
re-organisation

. The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties

. The purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the
incurred credit losses

. The borrower is more than 90 days overdue for any of the principal, advances, interest
of investments in corporate bonds of the Group

A financial asset becoming credit-impaired may be cansed by the combined effect of several
events, but not a single discrete event.
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VI

23

e

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk { Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Con tinwed)

FParameters for measuring ECL

According to whether the credit risk has significantly increased and whether the asset
is credit-impaired, the Group measures the impairment allowance for different assets
with ECL of the next 12 months or throughout the entire lifetime. The key parameters in
ECL measurement include probability of default (“PD™), loss given default (“LGD™) and
exposure af default (“EAD). Based on the current New Basel Capital Accord used in risk
management and the requirements of [FRS 9, the Group takes into account the quantitative
analvsis of historical statistics (such as ratings of counterparties, manners of guarantees and
types of collateral) and forward-looking information in order to establish the models for
estimating PD, LGD and EAD in accordance with the requirement of IFRS 9.

Relevant definitions are listed as follows:

+  PD refers to the possibility that the debtor will not be able to fulfil its obligations of
repayment over the next 12 months or over the remaining lifatime;

. LGD refers to the Group's expectation of the extent of the loss resulting from the
defaulted exposure. The LGD varies depending on the type of counterparty, the
method and priority of the recourse, and the type of collateral;

. EAD is based on the amount that the Group expects to be owed at the time of default,
over the next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime.

For credit-impaired financial assets with individual amount that are relatively significant,
the Group mainly evaluates future cash flows (including the recoverable value of the
collateral held) in different circumstances on an individoal basis. Expected credit losses are
measured as the differences between the present value of estimated cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate (credit adjusted effective interest rate for purchased
or originated credit-impaired financial assets) and the asset’s gross carrying amount. Any
adjustment is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment loss or reversal. The estimation
of future cash flows is critical for a credit-impaired loan for which expected credit losses
are measured on an individual basis. Factors affecting this estimate include, among other
things, the financial condition of individual borrowers, risk mitigation methods, industry
trends and the future performance of individual borrowers and guarantors, and cash flows
from the sale of collateral.

The Group regularly conducts re-examination, parameter update and model validation of the
ECL models.
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VI
2
23

&)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk { Continued)

Measurement of ECL {Contimed)
Forward-looking iaformation

The Group conducted an assessment of ECL according to forward-looking information and
used a number of models and assumptions in its measurement of ECL. In assessing the ECL
as at 31 December 2023, the Group has taken into account the impact of changes in current
economic environment to the ECL model, including: individual borrower's operating and
financial conditions and degree of impact from the economic environment, environmental
and climate change impact, and industry-specific risks.

The Group identifies key macroeconomic indicators that affect the credit risk and ECL of
various business types, such as country or region local GDP, Completion Index of Fixed
Assats Investmnent, Producer Price Index, Home Price Index, Consumer Price Index ete.
based on the statistical analysis of historical data.

The impact of these economic indicators on the PD and the LGD varies according to
different types of business. The Group applies experis’ judgement in this analysis, and
according to the result, the Group predicts these economic indicators regularly for respective
regions and determines the impact of these economic indicators on the PD and the LGD by
conducting regression analysis.

The Group conducts statistical analysis wsing experts” judgement to determine multiple
economic scenarios and their respective weightings. In addition to the baseline scenario,
optimistic scenario and pessimistic scenario, the Group also considers sitnation under
stress. As at 31 December 2023, the baseline scenario has the highest weighting with the
remaining individual scenarios having a weighting of lower than 30%. The Group measures
its credit loss allowance based on probability weighted ECL under different scenarios.

The Group updated relevant forward-looking parameters used in the models measuring ECL
based on changes in macroeconomic environment during the report period. Amongst these
parameters, the annualized value of core one adopted by Chinese mainland in assessing its
ECL as of 31 December 2023 under the baseline scenario is as follows:

Indicator Range
Average Growth Rate of China’s GDP in 2023-2025 Around 5.0%

The Group conducts sensitivity analysis on the weightings of multiple economic scenarios
used in forward-looking measurement. As at 31 December 2023, when the weighting of
optimistic scenario or pessimistic scenario increases by 10%, and the weighting of baseline
scenario decreases by 10%, the respective decrease or increase in loan loss allowance will
not exceed 5%.
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VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2 Credht risk (Continued)

24 Maximwm exposure fo credit risk before collateral held ar other credif enftance ments

Credit risk exposures relating to on-balance sheet
financial assets are as follows:

Due from banks and other financial institutions

Balances with central banks

Placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institations

Government certificates of indebtedness for
bank notes issued

Derivative financial assets

Loans and advances to customers, net

Financial investments

— financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

— financial assets at fair value throngh other
comprehensive income
— financial assets at amortised cost
Other assats

Subtotal

Credit risk exposures relating to off-balance sheet
items are as follows:

Letters of puarantee issued

Loan commitments and other credit commitments

Subtotal

Total
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As at 31 December

2023 2022
501,284 750,357
2,041,140 2,313,859
1,233 888 1,174,007
203,176 196,407
146,750 152,033
10,476,871 17,116,005
347,708 412,413
3,217,563 2,474,249
3,360,183 3,321,923
03,855 70,082
31,522,418 27,082,115
1,107,872 1,180,060
5,506,333 4,068,870
6,704,205 6,157.030
38316623 34,140,054
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VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
2 Credht risk (Continued)

24 Maximwmm expasure fo credit risk before collateral held or offter credit enhancements
(Continued)

The table above represents a worst case scenario of credit risk exposure of the Group as at
3] December 2023 and 2022, withont taking into account any collateral held, master
netting agreements or other credit enhancements attached. For on-balance sheet assets, the
exposures set out above are based on net carrving amounts as reported in the statement of
financial position.

As at 31 December 2023, 50.83% of the Group’s total maximum credit exposure is derived
from loans and advances to customers (31 December 2022: 50.13%) and 17.99% represents
investments in debt securities (31 December 2022; 18.10%).
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VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2

2.5

1

()

Credit risk (Continued)

Loans amd advances

Analysis of loans and advances to customers (accrued interest excluoded) by geographical
area, customer type, industry, collateral type and analysis of impaired and overdue loans

and advances to customers are presented below:

Concentrations of risk for loans and advances fo customers

Analysis of loans and advances to customers by geographical area

Group

Chinese mainland

Hong Kong (China), Macao (China),

Talwan {China)
Other countries and regions

Total

Chinese mainland

Morthern China
Mortheastern China

Eastern China

Central and Southern China
Western China

Total

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Amount % of total Amount % of total
16,236,884 B4.57% 14,500,783 B2EIR
2,011,421 10.11% 1,936,288 11.07%
1,050,682 5.32% 1,068,722 6.10%
IP.EIO’IEDET 100.00% 17.505=793 100.00%:

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Amount % of total Amount % of total
2,405,566 14.29% 2,038,727 14.07%
642,274 3.81% 583,632 4.02%
6,862,383 40.76% 5,005,203 40.72%
4,740,324 28 15% 4,087,906 28.10%
2,186,337 12.00% 1,885,225 13.00%
16.336=884 100.00% 14,500,783 100.00%:
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VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2

25

1)

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)

Loans and advances (Comtinued)

Concentrations of risk for loans and advances (o costomers (Coatinged)

Analysis of loans and advances to customers by customer type

As at 31 December 2023
Corporate loans and advances
— Trade bills
— Other
Personal loans

Total

As at 31 December 2022
Corporate loans and advances
— Trade bills
— Other
Personal loans

Total

Hong Kong
({China),
Macao
{Chinaj, Other
Chinese Talwan countries
mal nland (China) and regions Total
1,716,122 77,798 107,258 1,901,178
0202108 1,222,007 BR2720 11,304,844
5,828,654 711616 60,605 6,600 965
16,836,884 2,011,421 1.059.682 10907987
1,318,237 21,885 113,743 1,513,865
7.500.347 1,198,699 B35.912 9,584,958
5,682,199 655,704 69,067 6,406,970
14,500,783 1,936,288 1,068,722 17,505,703
393
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

Credit risk (Continued)

2.5 Loans amd advances (Comtinued)

Group

Corporate loans and advances

Commerce and services

Manufacturing

Transportation, storage and
postal services

Real estate

Production and supply of
electricity, heating,
ras and water

Financial services

Water, environment and
public utility management

Construction

Mining

Public utilities

Other

Subtotal

Personal loans
Mortpages
Credit cards
Other

Subtotal

Total

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

{iil} Analysis of loans and advances to customers by industry

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

(1) Coacentrations of risk for loans and advances (o costomers (Coatinged)

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Amount % of total Amount % of total
3,237,900 16.26% 2476528 14.15%
2638582 13.25% 2177432 12.44%
2,130,206 10.75% 1,808,333 10.84%
1,468,347 T.38% 1,350 650 1.77%
1,203 581 650% 052,035 5.44%
004,582 4.54% B51,117 4. B6%
469,720 2.36% 370,531 2.12%
440 451 2.26% 360,618 211%
305,992 1.54% 233411 1.62%
235,130 1.18% 218,706 1.25%
155,531 0.78% 141 462 0.80%
13,298,022 66.80% 11,098,823 63.40%
4,786,255 24.04% 4,016,707 28.00%
563,904 2.83% 520,390 207%
1.250.716 6.33% 060,873 5.54%
6,600,065 33.20% 6,406,970 36.60%
IP.EIO’IEDET 100.00% 17.505=793 100.00%:
394
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2 Credht risk (Continued)

2.5 Loans amd advances (Comtinued)

(1) Concentrations of risk for loans and advances (o costomers (Coatinged)

{iil) Analysis of loans and advances to customers by industry (Continued)

Chinese mainland

Corporate loans and advances
Commerce and services
Manufacturing
Transportation, storage and

postal services
Real estate
Production and supply of
electricity, heating,
eas and water
Financial services
Water, environment and
public utility management
Construction
Mining
Public utilities
Other

Subtotal

Personal loans
Mortgages
Credit cards
Other

Subtotal

Total

Az at 31 December

2023 2022
Amount % of total Amount % of total
2,755,264 16.36% 1,974,498 13.62%
2,329,950 13.84% 1,808,208 12.47%
1,976,166 11.74% 1,744 422 12.03%
274,747 5.20% 773,828 5.34%
1,046,800 6.22% T3R, 758 5.00%
0,001 3.02% 650,443 4.55%
455,276 2.70% 361,108 2.49%
397 588 2.36% 328921 2.2T%
217,551 1.20% 167,351 1.15%
221,595 1.32% 206,004 1.42%
73,193 0.43% 55443 0.38%
11,008,230 65.38% 2,818,584 60.81%
4,168,263 24.76% 4,338,046 20.93%
551.366 32T% 508,755 351%
1,109,025 6.50% 834 408 575%
5,828,654 34.62% 5,682,100 30.19%
16.336@ a4 100.00% 14.Sﬂﬂ=783 100.00%:
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VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2

25

1)

{iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

Loans amd ad vances (Comtinued)

Concentrations of risk for loans and advances (o costomers (Coatinged)

Analysis of loans and advances to customers by collateral type

Group

Unsecured loans
Guaranteed loans

Loans secured by mortgages
Pledged loans

Total

Chinese mainland

Unsecured loans
Guaranteed loans

Loans secured by mortgages
Pledged loans

Total

Az at 31 December
2023 2022
Amount % of total Amount % of total

7243277 36.38% 5,827,221 33.29%
2547618 12.80% 2,161,254 12.34%
T.910,628 39.74% T.609.114 43.47%
2,206,464 11.08% 1,908,204 10.90%

19,907,987 100.00%  17.505,793 100.00%

As at 31 December
2023 2022
Amount % of total Amount % of total

5,938,299 I527T% 4,501,283 31.04%

2,140,243 12.71% 1,773,328 12.23%
6,932,717 41.18% 6,680,248 46.07%
1,825,625 10.84% 1,545,924 10.66%

16,836,884 100.00%  14.500.783 100.00%
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VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2 Credit risk ( Continued)

2.5 Loans amd advances (Comtinued)

(2}  Analvsis of loans and advaaces fo costomers by impairment séalas

(i) Impaired loans and advances by gpzographical area

Group As at 31 December
b Pk) 2022
%  Impalred %  Impaired
Amount of tatal leamrath  Amount of total loan ratio
Chinese mainland 207,297 BLET% 123% 202404 B7.36% 1.40%
Hong Kong (China), Macao (Chima),

Taiwan (China) 3585 12.24% 154% 15572 6.73% 0.80%
Other countries and reglons 14003 5R0% 141% 13,701 5.01% 1.28%
Tital 253205 100.00% 127T% 231677 10000% 1.32%
Chinese malnland As at 31 December

L Pk) 2022

%  Impaired % Impaired

Amount of tatal leamrath  Amount of total loan ratio

Morthern China 35,240 17.00% 1.46% 37895 18.72% 1.86%
Mortheastern China 14,134 6.82% 2.20% 1323 6.54% 2171%
Eagtern China 61,761 20.79% 0005 55.168 27.26% 0.93%
Central and Southern China 63,779 0T1% 1.35% 12,733 35.93% 1.78%
Western China 12383 15.62% 1.48% 23360 11.55% 1.24%
Tatal 207297 100.00% 1.23% zl:]2=4ll4 100,004 1.40%
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2 Credht risk (Continued)

2.5 Loans amd advances (Comtinued)

(2} Analvsis of loans and advances fo customers by impairmeant statas (Conliaged)

{ii) Impaired loans and advances by customer type

Group

Corporate loans and advances
Personal loans

Total

Chinese malnland

Corporate loans and advances
Personal loans

Total

As at 31 December
b Pk) 2022
%  Impalred %  Impaired
Amount of tatal leamrath  Amount of total loan ratio
206,760 BLA6% 155% 190,190 BL.00% L%
46,445 18.34% 0.70% 41487 17.91% 0.65%
253205 100.00% 127T% 231677 100J00% 1.32%
As at 31 December
b Pi) 2022
%  Impalred % Impaired
Ao of tatal leamrathe  Amount of total loan ratio
162,951 T8.61% 148% 162326 B0.20% 1.84%
44,346 21.39% 0.76% 40078 19.80% 0.1%
207297 100.00% 123% 202404 10000% 1.40%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2

25

2}
{iii}

Credit risk (Continued)

Loans amd ad vances (Comtinued)

Analysis of loans and advances fo customers by impairmeat statas (Conliaged)

Impaired loans and advances by geographical area and industry

Chinese malnland
Corporate loans and advances
Commerce and services
Manufacturing
Transportation, storage and posal
services
Real estate
Production and sapply of
electricity, heating, gas and
waler
Financial sarvices
Water, environment and public

utility management
Construction

Mining
Public utilities
Cther

Substotal

Personal loans

Mortgages
Credit cards

Oither
Substotal
Total for Chiness mainland

Hong Kong (China),
Macao (China), Talwan {China)
and ather countries and reglons

Total

As at 31 December

bl Pk] i 4]
%  Impalred %  Impaired
Amount of tefal leamratke  Amount of total loan ratio
41312 1632% 1.50% 33486 14.45% 1.70%
13 5635 13.26% 1.44% 34275 14.70% 1.80%
8,780 347% 0.44% 10,959 4.73% 0.63%
48,172 10.02% 551% 55066 2416% 1.23%
12,794 505% 122% 13,119 5.66% 1.768%
161 0.06% 002% 20 0.01% 0.00%
4573 L96% 1094 1,847 0.84% 0.54%
4,205 LT0% 1.0E% 2538 1.22% 0.26%
3,080 LE2% 1.42% 4802 207% 1E8T%
4260 1.68% 1.02% 353 1.54% 1L72%
1559 0.62% 2.13% 1375 0.59% 2AR%
162,051 64.36% 148% 162326  TO.06% 124%
19,028 TET% 0.48% 20386 B.80% 0.47%
10,114 300% 1.83% 10302 4.45% 202%
14,304 565% 1.20% 9,390 4.05% 1.13%
44346 1751% 0.76% 40078 17.30% 0%
207,297 SLET% 123% 202404 B7.36% 1.40%
45008 18.13% 1404 20273 12.64% 0.97%
253205 100.00% 127T% 231677 100.00% 1.32%
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2 Credht risk (Continued)

2.5 Loans and advances (Comtinued)

(2} Analvsis of loans and advances fo customers by impairmeant statas (Conliaged)

{iv) Impaired loans and advances and related allowance by geographical area

Allowance
for
Impaired impairment
loans losses Met
As at M December 2023
Chinese mainland 207 297 (155.812) 51,485
Hong Kong (China), Macao (China),

Taiwan {China) 30085 {15.700) 15,276
Other countries and regions 14923 (8.341) 6582
Total 253,205 (179.862) 73,343
As at 3 December 2022
Chinese mainland 202,404 (158,209) 44,195
Hong Kong (China), Macao (China),

Taiwan {China) 15,572 (B.544) 7028
Other countries and regions 13,701 (5,746) 7.955
Total 23 1£?T i 17 zixmr] SEIil'?S
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
2 Credht risk {Continued)
2.5 Loans amd advances (Comtinued)

(2} Analvsis of loans and advances fo customers by impairmeant statas (Conliaged)

(¥} Within the impaired corporate loans and advances, the portions covered and not covered by
collateral held are as follows:

Group Chinese mainland

As at As at As at As at

M December 31 December 31 December 31 December

23 2022 2023 2022

Portion coverad 140,614 115,300 126046 102514

Portion not coverad 57,146 74,200 36,005 50,812

Total mﬁgm wuilm 162;}51 1623326
Fair value of

collateral held 5 23489 4Di02.T 4&]212 35i439

Collateral of impaired corporate loans and advances includes land, buildings, equipment and
others. The fair value of collateral was estimated by the Group with reference to the latest
available external valuations adjusted for recent experience in disposal of collateral as well
as the market conditions.
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VI

25

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk { Continued)

Loans and advances (Comtinued)

Rescheduled loans and advances

Rescheduled loans and advances are those loans for which the loan contract terms have
been revised in favor of the borrower; or existing loans that have been refinanced, including
where new loans have been granted in order to repay existing loans or new borrowing
facilities have been pranted in order to facilitate the repayvment of loans as a result of the
financial difficulties experienced by the borrower. The Group provides rescheduled loans
only if it considers that the borrower has a positive business outlook.

All rescheduled loans and advances are subject to an observation period of at least two
consecutive repayment periods and no less than one year. At the end of the observation
period, if the borrower has resolved its financial difficulties and repaid the loan on time in
accordance with the contractual agreement, the relevant loans may no longer be classified
as rescheduled loans.

If the borrower does not resolve its financial difficulties by the end of the observation
period or the borrower fails to make repayments as scheduled during such period then the
observation period will be extended and effectively restarted on the same terms as above,

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the amount of Group’s rescheduled loans and advances
that were not more than 90 days overdue was not material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2 Credht risk (Continued)

2.5 Loans and advances (Comtinued)

(4} Overduge loans and advances (o cusiomers

{i) Analysis of overdue loans and advances to customers by collateral type and overdue days

Group
Past due Past due Past due
up fa 9to 361 Daysto Past due

90 days 36 days 3 years over 3 years Tatal
As at 31 December 2023
Usecumed loars 18,214 16,616 6,617 742 42193
Guatantesd loans 5057 §En 6,557 1477 19,813
Loang secured by morigages 45,519 42856 35487 3139 127,001
Pledged loans 397 11313 £,265 73 2522
Total 73663 Th 600 34,906 3431 210,529
Asat 3 December 2022
Ugecured loare 9,582 13,502 5,679 L2135 M7
Guaranteed loane 3052 4368 30,206 Bia WA25
Loans szcured by mortgages 5,585 BA19 22038 3038 106,080
Pledged loans 4,588 5436 4,064 1518 16618
Tuotal 68,707 51025 62,97 54N 182101
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2

25

e

i)

Credit risk (Continued)

Loans amd ad vances (Comtinued)

Overdoe loans and advances (o custamers (Continoed)

Analysis of overdue loans and advances to customers by collateral type and overdue days

(Continued)

Chinese mainland

As at 31 December 2023
Usecured loars
Guarantesd loams

Loans secured by morigages
Pledged loans

Total

Asat 31 December 2022
Umeecured loars
Guarantesd loars

Loans secumed by mortgages
Pledged loans

Total

Past due Past due Past due

up fa to 361 Daysto Past due
90 days 36 days 3 years over 3 years Tatal
11902 130 4,675 1m 2805
2008 3686 3,047 167 11398
38850 m|an 33482 1858 113312
2651 6,583 4540 62 13545
56,491 il 440 46,653 3B66 168450
150 11,358 317 a7s N LI
131 3135 20,085 689 35240
41,672 1506 M3 35681 45,502
3ns 230 3319 2336 11,469
4820 44,588 57824 T8 L 165313
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2 Credit risk { Continued)

2.5 Loans amd advances (Comtinued)

(4} Overdoe loans and advances (o custamers (Continoed)

{ii) Analysis of overdue loans and advances by geographical area

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Chinese mainland 168 450 165,313
Hong Kong (China), Macao (China), Taiwan {China) 32322 20,781
Other countries and regions 0.857 6,007
Subtotal 210,629 192,101
Percentage L.D6E%: 1.10%

Less: total loans and advances to customers which have
been overdue for less than 3 months (73,663) (63, 707)

Total loans and advances to customers which have

been overdue for more than 3 months 136966 123,304

(3} Loans and advances three-staging classification

Loans and advances to customers by five-category loan classification and three-staging
classification are analysed as follows:

As at 31 December 2023

12-munth ECL Lifetime ECL Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Pass 19,265,000 05,329 - 10,351 428
Special-mention - 280716 - 280,716
Substandard - - 67,246 67246
Doubtful - - 105224 105,224
Liss - - B0, 58 80,698
Total 19,265,000 386045 253,168 10,004 312

405

525/590



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2 Credht risk (Continued)

2.5 Loans amd advances (Comtinued)

(%) Loans and advances three-staging classification (Coatinged)

As at 31 December 2022

12-menth ECL Lifetime ECL Tutal
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Pass 16,086 084 4821 - 17,035 255
Special-mention - 235360 - 235360
Substandard - - 103,710 103,710
Doubiful - - 60,561 60,561
Liss - - 6,833 66,833
Taital 16,086,084 283,631 231,104 17,501,710

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, loans and advances by five-category loan classification
and three-staging classification did not include loans and advances to customers measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

(&6) Credit commitments

Az at 3] December 2023 and 2022, credit risk exposures of credit commitments were mainly
classified under Stage 1 and categorised as “Pass™ in the five-category classifications.

2.6 Due from and placements with and loans to banks and ofther financial insd futions

Banks and other financial institutions comprise those institutions in the Chinese mainland,
Hong Kong (China), Macao (China), Taiwan {China) and other countries and regions.

The Group monitors the credit risk of counterparties by collecting and analysing
counterparty information and establishing credit limits taking into account the nature, size
and credit rating of counterparties.

Agz at 31 December 2023, the majority of the balances of due from and placements with and
loans to banks and other financial institutions were banks and other financial institutions in

the Chinese mainland (Note V.13 and Mote ¥.15), the majority of the internal credit ratings
of these banks and other financial institutions were above A.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2

2.7

Credit risk (Continued)

Debt securities

The Group adopted a credit rating approach to manage the credit risk of the debt securities
by referring to both internal and external credit rating. The carrving amounts (accroed
interest excluded) of the debt investments analysed by external credit ratings at the financial

reporting dates are as follows:

As at 31 Decernber 2023
Issuers in Chinese mainland

— Government

— Public sectors and quasl-govemments

— Folicy bamnks

— Financial institntions

— Corporate

— China Orient

Substotal

Iesuers in Hong Kong (Chins), Macao (China),
Talwan (China) and other countries and reglons
— Governments
— Public sectors and quasl-govemments
— Financial institutions
— Corporate

Substotal
Total

As at 31 Decernber 2022
Iesuers in Chinese mainland

— Govemment

— Public ssctors and quasi-governments

— Folicy banks

— Financial institutions

— Corporate

— China Crient

Substotal

Iesuers in Hong Kong (Chins), Macao (China),
Taiwan (Ching) and other countres and regions
— Govemments
— Public ssctors and quasi-governments
— Fimancial institutions
— Corporate

Substotal
Total

Unrated AtoAAA Lowerthan A Tatal
18.766 3,745 563 - 3764320
140,685 17 486 - 167171
- 714,013 - 714,013
0213 195,760 180 816 306,780
06,663 65921 3456 168,070
152,433 - - 152,433
437,760 4,738,743 07302 5303205
2086 92000 4441 BN 426
00,083 111,500 M4 202019
2740 1497 001 fi] 468 267218
0246 85364 42013 138,133
105 664 1,185 954 135,178 1417796
MI4N 5,025 507 352480 6,821 601
16,625 3365515 - 3382240
156,707 11475 - 168,182
- £ 586 - 605,586
42,208 199,074 170,208 411,511
113,009 AW 45,780 MIATT
152433 - - 152433
481,002 4274629 215908 4971529
\5 503 655 15353 684,520
58632 5,581 425 124538
5,380 145,742 5225 204373
11,285 82636 3401 130,322
150,818 BRRA14 104,430 1,143.862
31,820 5,163,243 3428 f,115.491
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2 Credht risk (Continued)

2.7 Debt securities (Continued)

The carrving amounts (accrued interest excluded) of debt investments analysed by external

credit ratings and credit staging are as follows:

As at 31 December 2023

12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Tatal

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Unzated 521717 334 012 525970
Ao AAA 5686330 41 - 5,686,380
Lower than A 254,106 2296 51 276253
Tioital 6,462,162 25478 063 6,488 603

As at 31 December 2022

12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Tatal

Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 3
Ungated 580 566 117 1,052 500,835
Ato AAA 4,808 600 - - 4,808 600
Lower than A 226,188 52N - 231,45
Tital 5,?14553 5285 1,062 S,TEJZIEEIDH
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2 Credht risk (Continued)

2.8 Derivatives

The risk-weighted assets for counterparty credit risk (“CCR™) of derivatives of the Group
are calculated in accordance with the Capital Roles for Commercial Banks (Provisional}
and the Assefs Measgrements Rules for Counterparly Defanlt Risks of Derivalives and other
relevant regulations under the advanced capital measurement approaches. For derivative
transactions, risk-weighted assets for CCR include the risk-weighted assets for default risk,
the risk-weighted assets for credit valuation adjustment (“CVA™) and the risk-weighted

assets for central counterparties (“CCPs").

The risk-weighted assets for the CCR of derivatives are as follows:

As at 31 December

2023 2022

Rizk-weighted assets for default risk
Currency derivatives 86,299 T2.520
Interest rate derivatives 7669 4371
Equity derivatives 514 979
Commodity derivatives and other 6447 6,376
100929 24,446
Risk-weighted assets for CVA 86,764 63,373
Risk-weighted assets for CCPs 12,704 6418
Total 200,397 156,237

2.9 Repossessed assels

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn

The Group obtained assets by taking possession of collateral held as securities. Detailed

information of such repossessed assets of the Group is disclosed in Note V.23,
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VI

3

kS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Market risk
Overview

The Group is exposed to market risks from on-balance and off-balance businesses, that
may cause losses to the Group as a result of adverse changes in market prices of interest
rate, exchange rate, equities and commodities. Market risk arises from open positions in the
trading and banking books. The trading book consists of positions in financial instroments
and commodities that are held with trading intent or in order to hedge other elements of the
trading book. The banking book consists of financial instruments not included in the trading
book.

The Board of Directors shall assume the ultimate responsibility for market risk
management, including determination of overall risk appetite; approval of market risk
management policies, procedures, strategies and limits of the Group; and overseeing the
implementation of risk management strategies and policies by the senior management. The
senior management is responsible for developing and implementing the market risk limnit
mechanism, risk management policies, procedures and processes; assuming and managing
the Group’s market risk within the risk appetite determined by the Board of Directors; as
well as coordinating the compatibility of apgregate risks to business return targets.

Market risk management departments are responsible for the identification, measurement,
monitoring, control and reporting of market risks on a Group basis. Business units are
responsible for the monitoring and reporting of market risk within their respective business
lines.

J.2 Market risk measurement fechniques amd Hmits

1}

Trading book

For the purpose of market risk management in the trading book, the Group monitors trading
book Value at Risk (VaR) limits, stress testing results and exposure limits and tracks each
trading desk and dealer’s observance of each limit on a daily basis.

WaR is used to estimate the largest potential loss arising from adverse market movements in
a specific holding period and within a certain confidence level.

VaR is performed separately by the Bank and its major subsidiaries that are exposed to
market risk, BOCHE (Holdings) and BOCI. The Bank, BOCHE (Holdings) and BOCT used
a 99% level of confidence (therefore, statistical probability of 1% that actual losses could
be greater than the VaR estimate) and a historical simulation model to calculate the VaR
estimate. The holding period of the VaR calculations is one day. To enhance the Group's
market risk management, the Group has established the market risk data mart, which
enabled a group level trading book VaR caleulation on a daily basis.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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VI

3

1.2

1)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Market risk {Continumed)

Market risk measurement technlgues and Bmits (Continued )
Trading book (Coatinued)

The accuracy and reliability of the VaR model is verified by daily back-testing of the
WaR results in the trading book. The back-testing results are regularly reported to senior
management.

The Group utilises stress testing as an effective supplement to the trading book VaR
analvsis. Stress testing scenarios are performed based oo the characteristics of trading
transactions to simulate and estimate losses in adverse and exceptional market conditions.
To address changes in the financial markets, the Group enhances its market risk
identification capabilities by continuously modifving and improving the trading book stress
testing scenarios and measurement methodologies in order to capture the potential impact to
transaction market prices stemming from changes in market prices and volatility.

The table below shows the VaR of the trading book by type of risk during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022:

Unit: USD million

Year ended 31 December
n il

Average High Low  Average High Low
The Bank’s irading VaR
Interest rate risk 12.29 1848 023 1384 2708 6.80
Foredgn exchange risk 31.66 5103 1183 3540 72.70 11.30
Wolatility risk 0.68 1.60 0.23 1.11 318 0.52
Commodity risk 0.22 0.74 0.01 1.63 117 017
Tatal of the Bank's trading VaR 30.25 51.00 1521 30.00 75.79 13.75

The reporting of risk in relation to bullion is included in foreign exchange risk above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3  Market risk {Continued)

J.2 Market risk measurement fechmlgues and Nmits (Contimred )

(1) Trading book (Continued)

Unit: USD million

Year ended 31 December
1 Fa) 02
Average High Low  Average High Low

BC«CHK (Holdings)'s trading VaR
Interest rate risk 6.56 1043 408 4.2 8.10 1.99
Forelgn exchange risk 369 6,18 211 3,03 512 1.87
Equity risk .69 1.0 0.04 0:25 0.57 (.03
Commodity risk 0.59 316 0,00 0.5 1.57 (.00
Tatal BOCHK (Holdings)'s

trading VaR 732 11.26 455 4.8 7.87 .79
BOCT's trading VaR ™
Equity derivatives unit 0.54 1.56 0.15 0.74 163 0.17
Fixed income unit 0.85 1.33 0.53 1.00 L7 (.55
lobal commedity unit 0.27 048 0.17 0:23 0.47 012
Tatal BOCIs trading VaR 165 319 103 1.96 316 (.99

()  BOCI monitors its trading VaR for equity derivatives unit, fixed income unit and global commodity unit
saparately, which include equity risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and commedity risk.

VaR for each risk factor is the independently derived largest potential loss in a specific
holding period and within a certain confidence level due to fluctuations solely in that risk

factor. The individual VaRs was not added up to the total VaR as there was a diversification
effect due to correlation amongst the risk factors.
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VI

1.2

2)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Market risk {Continumed)

Market risk measurement technlgues and Bmits (Continued )
Banking book

Interest rate risk in the banking book (“TRRBE™) refers to the risk of losses to a bank's
economic value and to its overall earnings of banking book, arising from adverse
movements in interest rates level or term structure. IRRBE mainly comes from repricing
gaps between assets and liabilities in the banking book, and differences in changes in
benchmarking interest rates for assets and liabilities. The Group is exposad to interest rate
risk and fluctuations in market interest rates that will impact the Groop’s financial position.

The Group assesses [REBB primarily through an interest rate repricing gap analysis.
Interest rate repricing gap analvsis measures the difference between the amount of interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities that must be repriced within certain periods.
The Group employs the interest rate repricing gap analysis and takes the impact of the off-
balance sheet business into consideration when calculating the indications of sensitivity of
earnings to changing interest rates. The interest rate gap analysis is set ont in Note VI.3.3
and also covers the trading book.

Sensitivity analysis on net interest income

Sensitivity analysis on net interest income assumes that yield curves change in parallel
while the structure of assets and liabilities remains unchanged, and does not take into
consideration changes in customer behaviour, basis risk, etc. The Group made timely
adjustments to the structure of its assets and liabilities, optimised the internal and external
pricing strategy or implemented risk hedging based on changes in the market situation, and
controlled the fluctnation of net interest income within an acceptable level.
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VI

1.2

2)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Market risk measurement fechmlgwes and Nmits (Comtimred )

Banking book (Continged)

Sensitivity analysis on net interest income (Continued)

The table below illustrates the potential impact of a 25 basis points interest rate move on
the net interest income of the Group for the next twelve months from the reporting date.
The actual simation mav be different from the assumptions used and it is possible that

actual outcomes could differ from the estimated impact on net interest income of the Group.

(Decrease)increase in
net interest income

As at 31 December

2023 2022
+ 25 basis points (797) (3.270)
— 25 basis points 707 3270

Given the nature of demand deposits, their interest rate fluctuations are less volatile than
those of other products. Had the impact of vield curves movement on interest expenses
related to demand deposits been excluded, the net interest income for the next twelve
months from the reporting date would have increased or decreased by EMB22,001 million
(2022: RMEB19.708 million) for 25 basis points upward or downward paralle]l movements,
respectively.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3  Market risk {Continued)
3.4 Forelgn corrency risk

The Group conducts a substantial portion of its business in EMB, with certain transactions
denominated in USD, HED and, to a much lesser extent, other currencies. The major
subsidiary, BOCHEK Group, conducts the majority of its business in HED, RMB and USD.
The Group endeavours to manage its sources and uses of foreign currencies to minimise
potential mismatches in accordance with management directives.

The Group manages its exposure to currency exchange risk through the management of its
net foreign currency position and monitors its foreign currency risk on trading books using
VaR (MNote VI.3.2). Meanwhile, the Group performs currency risk sensitivity analysis to
estimate the effect of potential exchange rate changes of foreign currencies against RME on
profit before income tax and equity.

The tables below indicate a sensitivity analysis of exchange rate changes of the currencies
to which the Group had significant exposure. The analysis calculates the effect of a
reasonably possible movement in the currency rates against RMB, with all other variables
held constant, on profit before income tax and equity. A nepgative amount in the table
reflects a potential net reduction in profit before income tax or equity, while a positive
amount reflects a potential met increase. Such analysis does not take into account the
correlation effect of changes in different foreign currencies, any further actions that may
have been or could be taken by management after the financial reporting date to mitigate
the effect of exchange differences, nor any conseguential changes in the foreign currency

positions.
Effect on profit before
Income tax Effect on equity*
As at Asat As at As at
Change In 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Carrency currency rate 2023 2022 2023 2022
usp +1%: 200 207 614 708
HED +1%: (192} 220 2615 2400

* Effect on other comprebensive income (imespective of incoms tax effect).

While the table above indicates the effect on profit before income tax and equity of the 1%
appreciation of USD and HED, there will be an opposite effect with the same amounts if
the currencies depreciate by the same percentage.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4  Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk refers to the risk that a commercial bank fails to acquire adequate funds in a
timely manner and at a reasonable cost to deal with repayment of debts at maturity, perform
other payment obligations and meet other fund needs for normal business operation.

4.1 Liguidity risk management policy and process

The Bank continues to develop and improve its liquidity risk management system with the
aim of effectively identifving, measuring, monitoring and controlling liguidity risk at the
institution and group level, including that of branches, subsidiaries and business lines, thus
ensuring that liquidity demand is met in a timely manner and at a reasonable cost.

The Group considers liquidity risk management a significant component of asset-liability
management, and determines the size, structure and duration of assets and liabilities
consistent with the principle of overall balance between assets and liabilities. The Group
establishes its liguidity portfolio to mitigate liquidity risk, and to minimise the gaps in
the amount and duration between the funding sources and the uses of funds. The Group
refines its financing strategy, taking into consideration varions factors including customer
risk sensitivity, financing cost and concentration of funding sources. In addition, the Group
prioritises the development of customer deposits, dvnamically adjusts the structure of
funding sources by market-oriented financing modes, including due to banks and other
financial institutions, inter-bank borrowings and bond issuance, and improves the diversity
and stability of financing sources.

Assals available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding loan commitments
include “Cash and due from banks and other financial institations”™, “Balances with central
banks", “Placements with and loans to banks and other financial institutions”, “Loans and
advances to customers, net”, etc. In the normal course of business, a proportion of short-
term loans contractually repayable will be extended and a portion of short-term customer
deposits will not be withdrawn upon maturity. The Group would also be able to meet
unexpected net cash outflows by entering into repurchase transactions, and by selling
securities and accessing additional funding sources.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4  Liguidity risk (Continued)
4.3 Undisconnted cash flows by confractual maturf i es

The tables below present the cash flows of the Group of non-derivative financial assets and
financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments that will be seitled on a net basis
and on a gross basis by the remaining contractual maturities at the financial reporting date.
The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, except for
certain derivatives which are disclosed at fair value (Le. discounted cash flows basis). The
Group also manages its inherent short-term liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted
cash flows.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI

4

4.3

FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liguidity risk (Continued)

Undiscounted cash flows by confractual maturities { Continoed )

Von-terimutive arsh
Cashs aned dow from basks and piher
Balances with centrl banks
Maemenis with and koans fo banks and
oiher finmncial imtintion
Leans and adwances o costomers, mel
Firancial invesments
— financial sseis o fax vahe trangh
profil or loss
— finaacial assets ol fai value thoangh
oiber comprehensive inooms
— financial assets o amorised cost
Otter finmscil Beis

Toinl fimmacinl msets

Dot banks arad eiber financial imtitions

Dioe b cepiral anks

Macerents from baks and other firancial
institutions

Do o ansiomers

Bords ited

Other finascial lishiliier

Total raucial linbililies

Derivative cmh fow

Deerivative finarcial insments setled o
10t b

TDeerivative finarcial insmenis sitled o
1gmes bmix
Total inflow
Total putflew

Asat M Deember 2023
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Between Between Eetween
Orverdue! 0o Lessthon lund3 Jad 12 Lund § Oiver
Undated demand 1 mcalk nini ks nolts ymrs Byers Toml
- B nLx EE nsm 4L - I
LELEE  1ME0 205,311 LA 13585 141 - IBMIEE
412 - a1 148,564 ITEELL 119 736 194 15T SER
TS 312,50 WEME  LIETI 4REEM  7ANR 0 S3MIR HINER
A5 - nai 4,551 B0 L1 336 150031 G0
nE - 215,115 18T 45,15 LAELET 1051331 B i
] - 5,50 136,58 WS AN 13T 41T
4414 MM BAD TIE T.HE 153 n% J0E2E4
S UBSS  AMMET LN AWl o Somen
- L &, 151 177,657 TILM 91,615 - L28110
- n4m 34 109,578 4L TH all - LMegE2
- - X,503 SLEOL 155,958 Lm3 - 4EENT
- RIEMI RNES) LI ADMTIA 56RTW Bl BRI
- - 36,548 BT B 631,054 L1 R R )
- Bi 56 46,556 i IT, 003 45 455 11413 ATTEE
- LLAme LR LML LSS M1 JEMD BSTO00
- 4,04 HE b L 125 1314 s 062
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI

4

4.3

FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liguidity risk (Continued)

Undiscounted cash flows by confractual maturities { Continoed )

Von-terimutive arsh
Cashs aned dow from basks and piher
Balances with centrl banks
Maemenis with and koans fo banks and
oiher finmncial imtintion
Leans and adwances o costomers, mel
Firangial invesments
— financial sseis o fax vahe trangh
profil or loss
— finaacial assets ol fai value thoangh
oiber comprehensive inooms
— financial assets o amorised cost
Otter finmscil Beis

Toinl fimmacinl msets

Dot banks arad eiber financial imtitions

Dioe b cepiral anks

Macerents from baokes and other firancial
institutions

Do o ansiomers

Bords ited

Other finascial lishiliies

Total raucial linbililies

Derivative cmh fow

Deerivative finarcial insments setled o
10t b

TDeerivative finarcial insmenis sitled o
1gmes bmix
Total inflow
Total putflew

Asat M Deember 2022

Between Between Eetween
Orverdue! 0o Lessthon lund3 Jad 12 Lund § Oiver
Undated demand 1 mcalk nini ks nolts ymrs Byers Toml
- il ] MAnS k116 o 1 - 1313
LE5aam 5,042 41552 354 i 151 - LW
Ll - 0514 168,605 14,540 41541 AL 115
#m 95 GEMI  LOTRESD  4MLAGEL 6pHER SIRW] 21O
7m0 - 1,03 el 115,648 120,14 30 HIEST
15641 - 135,131 14,5% L LT A TAA] LEEESHT
;L - 5,01 16255 SUEE LAETL 1NN 45M56E
56l 20,156 15,355 1700 518 1n 1055 131
LS man N0 LN AMANE SN0 DGO s
- %55 56,005 175,20 3T 4,050 - LISIEe
- 25,516 o6 TL13 337 1554 - G400
- - 1550 e ®wnin 1450 151 46E752
- BAATE LN0OST  LEOOSEZ  ARMEH] 3NN I E A 1 0 L]
- - 15,45 260,378 BLL B 4,954 Bl 15239
- g 16,159 16369 x4 15417 13 4463
- LIERAT LA LTI REGLANY 45554 L2145 2651515
- 4,19 IE B 1n 193 1313 1555
- 185,61  LWRET  LEETIS  1SALE4 75,181 000 BSWIT2
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4

4.4

Liguidity risk (Continued)

Off-halance sireet items

The Group's off-balance sheet items are summarised in the table below at the remaining
period to the contractual maturity date. Financial guarantees are also included below at

notional amounts and based on the earliest contractnal maturity date.

As at 31 December 2023

Loan commitments

Guarantees, acceptances and other
financial facilities

Subtotal

Capital commitments

Total

As at M December 2022

Loan commitments

Guarantees, acceptances and other
financial facilities

Subtotal

Capital commitments

Total

(1) Included within “Loan commitments™ are amounts relating to loan commitments and undrawn coedit card

limits. Refar to Note W.41.7.

Between

Less than 1and § Over

1 vear Vears 5 vears Total
2495538 1478730 409,253 4473580
1,674,887 391,279 254459 2,320,625
4,170,425 1870068 753,712 6,794,205

27,329 60,096 11,937 99,362
4=19'Fi'.f54 ligjﬂilﬁ.ri TESEEA'} ﬁi893£6?
2,303,974 1122610 376,135 3892719
1,662,058 337.247 265015 2265220
4056,932 1 450,857 641,150 6,157,939

17,485 46,312 24970 88,767
4074417 1.506,169 666,120 6,246,706
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
5  Falr value
5.1  Assets and Nabilities measured af fair valwe
Assais and liabilities measured at fair value are classified into the following three levels:

. Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
including equity securities listed on exchanges or debt instruments issued by certain
rovernments and certain exchange-traded derivative contracts.

. Level 2: Valuation technique for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value other than quoted prices included within Level 1 are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. This level includes the majority of
the over-the-counter (“OTC™) derivative contracts, debt securities for which quotations
are available from pricing service providers, discounted bills, etc.

. Level 3: Valuation technigue using inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value for the asset or liability are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs). This level includes equity investments and debt instruments
with significant unobsarvable components.

The Group’s policy is to recognisa transfers betwesn levels of the fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

The Group uses valuation techniques or counterparty quotations to determine the fair value
when it is unable to obtain open market quotation in active markets.

The main parameters wsed in valuation techniques include bond prices, interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices, volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and
others, which are all observable and obtainable from the open market.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI

51

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Falr value (Continued)
Assets amd Habilities measured at falr value {Contimned)

For certain illiquid debt securities (mainly asset-backed securities), unlisted equity (private
equity) and unlisted funds held by the Group, management uses valuation techniques to
determine the fair value, including discounted cash flow analysis, met asset value and
market comparison approach, etc. The fair value of these financial instruments may be
based on unobservable inputs which may have a significant impact on the valuation of these
financial instroments, and therefore, these assets and liabilities have been classified by the
Group as Level 3. As at 31 December 2023, the Group's significant unobservable inputs
included discount rates (6.009%-15.00%), expected dividend (RMB0.04 per share-EMBO.84
per share), pricefearnings multiples (0.99x-81.20x), pricefsales multiples (1.01x-38.50x),
liquidity discounts (5.00%-45.64%), and the net asset value of unlisted investments, recent
transaction prices, etc. Management determines whether to make necessary adjustments
to the fair value of the Group's Level 3 financial instruments by assessing the impact of
changes in macro-economic factors, and valuations by external valuation agencies. The
Group has established internal control procedures to control the Group's exposure to such
financial instruments.

The Group has established a robust internal control policy for the measurement of fair
values. The Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility for the fair value valuation of
financial instruments and approves valuation policies; The Risk Policy Committes assist
the board in supervising the senior management to establish and improve the system of
valuation and execution mechanism; Senior management organizes the valuation process
and is accountable to the Board.

The Group has established an independent valuwation process for financial assets and
financial liabilities. The financial management related departments of Head Office
coordinate the management of the Group's financial instroment valuation. The risk
management related departments of Head Office are responsible for validating the valuation
models.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

5

51

Falr value (Continued)

Assets amd Habilities measured at falr value {Comtimed)

Assets measured at fair valoe
Due from and placements with banks
and other financial institations at
fair value
Derivative financial assets
Loans and advances to customers at
fair value
Financial investments
— Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
— Debt securities
— Equity instruments
— Fund investments and other
— Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
— Diebt securities
— Equity instruments and other
Investiment properties

Liabilities measured at fair value

Due to and placements from banks
and other financial institations at
fair value

Due to customers at fair value

Bonds issued at fair value

Financial liabilities held for trading

Derivative financial liabilities

As at 31 December 2023

Level 1 Level 2

- 18,126
4,857 141,893

- 717,004

5,707 328,603
19,507 2,135
25,465 10512

301,290 2014084
6,117 11,020
— 2,005

- {3.,798)
- (47.65T)
- (2.118)
(720)  (53.535)

(5,000} (130,064
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Level 3

782

1274
90,792
65,826

14,993
20,600

Total

18,126
146,750

718,776

336,184
112,434
101,203

3,215,983
32,130
22.704

(3.798)
{47,657)

(2.118)
(54.264)

(135.973
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

5

51

Falr value (Continued)

Assets amd Habilities measured at falr value {Contimned)

Assets measured at fair valoe
Due from and placements with banks
and other financial institations at
fair valoe
Derivative financial assets
Loans and advances to customers at
fair valhue
Financial investments
— Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
— Debt securities
— Equity instruments
— Fund investments and other
— Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
— Diebt securities
— Equity instruments and other
Investiment properties

Liabilities measured at fair value
Due to customers at fair value
Bonds issued at fair value
Financial liabilities held for trading
Derivative financial liabilities

As at 31 December 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
- 12,333 -

8,331 143,702 -

- 586,513 743
34,601 358,382 5,027
24,460 3485 B4.637
27,308 12,945 62,170
319,701 2,152,032 657
6,072 8860 10,995

— 1,200 21,502

- (36,701} -

- (2,080 -

{436)  (53432) -

(8136) _(137.702) —
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Total

12,333
152,033

587.256

308,100
112582
102,423

2,473,380
26,236
23.311

(36,701)
(2.080)
(53,868)

(135.838)
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

5 Falr value (Continued)

5.1  Assets amd Habilities measured at falr value {Contimned)

Reconciliation of Level 3 items

Loans md
sdmnces to Finandial maets ot
austomers ot Finmcinl wsets ot fair value Tuir value throagh other Invesiment
Tair value through profit or loss momprebensire inoome properlies
Fund Equity
Debt Equity  investments Debt  imstruments
serurkes  insirunents md other securities and ather
A5t ] Janoary 2003 S| im7 4507 a1m a5 19,595 L5
Totl pains and Joses
— losapreit - 65 Pt 1IRE - - %)
— other comprebensive ncome - - - - - 3151 -
Sulex - 1.031) 10,170 (5607) - (603} 1377)
Parhses - 26 16564 7140 - 1435 i
Tramfers oul of Lewel 3, 321 - 1,53 [E]] - L] - -
Otber chunges n u - 105 a g i
kst 31 Derprber 2003 TE2 154 Lok G5E26 - 14,593 2058
Total [losses)gaines for the perind
ischuded in the income staiement for
mzels el as ut
31 December 221 - 755 {LED) pllica - - [357)
Lsuns and
advances o Fimneinl ameis ot Bands
ardoners al Fimnncial mseis ol foir mulue lbrough other [avesiment baned at
Tair e finir value throegh prafil or e compre hersive income mopertie  ir ralne
Fnd Equity
Dbt Equity  invectments Debil  inslmments
=mrriles  isiromenks ood other  seowrilies and olher
At | Janoary 110 - .41 WX 46131 L] 1455 1EJ4 [J]
Tootal prins mnd basaes
— proftlesa) - L Eo .50 - - Ay -
— piber conpretemive icome - - - - 1155) 4.7 - -
Salay - {1 511 111,754 - (231 {50 -
Porchimes - 3 1517 13 - u 1504 -
Trnsfers ind{out) of Level 3, nat ] (21,684) [ ] - 1145 - 154 2
Cther chanpes - 5 13 kL] i 150 n -
Azt ¥ December 2112 43 3 A7 ELITD &7 10,995 11,52 -
' I I ' ' | ' '

Total uinslosses) for the period incloded in
{he iveome simlmenl for sseslishikties
teld a5 2t 3] Cerember X002 -
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI

51

5.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Falr value (Continued)
Assets amd Habilities measured at falr value {Contimned)

Total gains or losses for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 included in the
income statement as well as total gains or losses included in the income statement relating
to financial instruments held as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are presented in “MNet
trading gains”, “MNet gains on transfers of financial asset”, “Credit impairment losses” or
“Other comprehensive income™ depending on the nature or category of the related financial
instruments.

Gains or losses on Level 3 assets and liabilities included in the income statement for the
year comprise:

Year ended 31 December
23 2
Realised Unrealised Total  Realised Unrealised Total

Total gains for the year (134) 207 i3 (156) 7421 7265
There were no significant transfers for the assets and liabilities measured at fair value
between Level | and Level 2 during the vear ended 31 December 2023 and the vear ended
31 December 2022,

As at 31 December 2023, if the discount rates, expected dividend, price/earnings multiples,
pricefsales multiples and liguidity discounts of significant unobservable inputs applied in
the valuation technique had increased by 10%, with all other variables held constant, the
fair value of Level 3 financial instruments would have decreased by RMB2.934 million,
increasad by RMBI.115 million, increased by RMB6ET million, increased by RMB6TL
million, and decreased by RMB4 85 million, respectively.

Financial assets and Habilitles not measured af falr value

Financial assets not pressnted at fair value in the statement of financial position mainly
represent “Due from banks and other financial institutions™, “Government certificates of
indebtedness for bank notes issped”, and “Balances with central banks™, “Placements with
and loans to banks and other financial instittions”, “Loans and advances to customers”,
“Financial investments” measured at amortised cost. Liabilities not presented at fair value
in the statement of financial position mainly represent “Due to banks and other financial
institutions”, “Due to central banks”, “Bank notes in circulation™, and “Placements from
banks and other financial institations”, “Due to customers, “Bonds issned” measured at
amortised cost.

432

552/590

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

5.z

Falr value (Continued)

Financial assets and labilitles not measured af fair valoe (Contined)

The tables below summarise the carryving amounts and fair values of “Debt securities at
amortised cost” and “Bonds issued” not presented at fair value at the financial reporting

date.

As at 3 December

2023 2022
Carrying Falr <Carrving Fair
value value value value
Financial assets
Debt securities at amortised cost ™ é41i192 3 425,730 Sél 1i3'.' 3 347,787
Financial Habilities
Bonds issued @ IES[I[I 128 1 206,010 éSE 255 l 527,751

(1} Debt securities af amortised cost

The China Orient Bond and Special Purpose Treasury Bond held by the Bank are non-transferable. As
there are no observable market prices or yields reflecting arm's length transactions of o comparable size
and tenor, the fair values are determined based on the stated interest rate of the instruments.

Fair valuas of ather debt securities are based on market prices or broker/dealer price quotations. Where this
information is not available, the Bank will perform waluation by refeming to prices from valuation service
poviders or on the basis of discounted cash flow models. Valuation parameters include market interest
rates and expected future default rates. The fair values of RMB bonds are mainly determined based on the
waluation results provided by China Central Depository & Clearing Co.. Litd.

(2}  Bonds issued
The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted market prices. Por those bonds where quoted

market prices are not available. a discounted cash flow model is used based on a cusrent yield curve
appropriate for the remaining term to maharity.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI

5.z

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Falr value (Continued)

Financial assets and labilitles not measured af fair valoe (Contined)

The tables below summarise the fair values of three levels of “Debt securities at amortisad
cost” (excluding the China Orient Assst Management Corporation Bond and Special
Purpose Treasury Bond), and “Bonds issued” not presented at fair value on the statement of

financial reporting date.

As at 31 December 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Diebt sacurities at amortised cost 186,119  3.044.203 11 3,230,333
Financial Habilities
Bonds issued — 1,806,910 - 1.806.910

As at 31 December 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Diebt securities at amortised cost 172,193 2070600 483 3152366
Financial Habilities
Bonds issued - 1,527,751 - 1.527.751

Other than the above, the difference between the carrving amounts and fair values of thoss
financial assets and liabilities not presented at their fair value in the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 was insignificant. Fair value is measured using a
discounted cash flow model.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
[ Capital management
The Group follows the principles below with regard to capital management:

. Adequate capital and sustainable development. Follow the lead of the strategic
planning of the Group development; and maintain the high quality and adequacy of
capital so as to meet regulatory requirements, suopport business growth, and advance
the sustainable development of the scale, quality and performance of the business in
the Group.

. Allocation optimisation and bepefit anpmentation. Allocate capital properly by
prioritising the asset businesses with low capital occupancy and high comprehensive
income, and steadily improve the efficiency and return of capital, to achieve the
reciprocal matchup and dynamic equilibrium among risks, capital and retums.

. Refined management and capital level improvement. Optimise the capital management
system by sofficiently identifying, calculating, monitoring, mitigating, and controlling
various types of risks; incorporate capital restraints into the whole process of product
pricing, resource allocation, structural adjustments, performance evaluation, efc.,
ensuring that the capital emploved is commensurate with the related risks and the level
of risk management.

Capital adequacy and regulatory capital are monitored by the Group’s management,
emploving techniques based on the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as
implemented by the NFRA, for supervisory purposes. The required information is filed with
the NFRA on a quarterly basis.

The Group's capital adequacy ratios are calculated in accordance with the Capital Ruoles
for Commercial Banks (Provisional) and other relevant regulations. With the approval of
the NFRA, the Group adopts the advanced capital measurement approaches, which include
Foundation Internal Ratings-based Approach for corporate exposures, Internal Ratings-based
Approach for retail exposures, Internal Models Approach for market risk and Standardised
Approach for operational risk. For risk exposures not covered by the advanced approaches,
the corresponding portion shall be calculated adopting non-advanced approaches.

As a Systemically Important Bank, the Group’s capital adequacy ratios are required to mest
the lowest requirements of the NFRA, that is, the common equity tier 1 capital adequacy

ratio, tier | capital adeguacy ratio and capital adequacy ratio should be no less than 9.00%,
10.00% and 12.00%, respectively.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
[ Capital management { Continued)

The Group’s regulatory capital is managed by its capital management related departments
and consists of the following:

. Common equity tier 1 capital, including common shares, capital reserve, surplus
reserve, general reserve, nndistributed profits, eligible portion of minority interests and
others;

. Additional tier 1 capital, incluoding additional tier 1 capital instmments issued and
related preminm and eligible portion of minority interasts;

. Tier 2 capital, including directly issued qualifving tier 2 capital instruments and related
premium, excess loan loss provisions and eligible portion of minority interests.

Goodwill, other intangible assets (excluding land use rights), investments in common equity
tier 1 capital of financial institutions with controlling interests but outside of the scope of

regulatory consolidation and other deductible items are deducted from common equity tier 1
capital to derive at the regulatory capital.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

o

Capital management { Continued)

The table below summarises the Group's common equity tier 1 capital adequacy ratio, tier
1 capital adequacy ratio and capital adequacy ratio ™ calculated in accordance with the

Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional) and other relevant regulations:

Common equity tier 1 capital adequacy ratio
Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio
Capltal adequacy ratio

Composition of the Group’s capital base

Common equity tier 1 capital
Common shares
Capital reserve
Surplus reserve
General reserve
Undistributed profits
Eligible portion of minority interests
Other @

Regulatory deductions
Of which:

Goodwill

Orther intangible assets (excluding land use rights)

Direct or indirect investments in own shares

Investments in common equity tier 1 capital of
financial institutions with controlling interests
but outside the scope of regulatory consolidation

MNet common equity tier 1 capital
Additional tier 1 capital
Preference shares and related premium
Additional capital instruments and related preminm
Eligible portion of minority interests
Met tier 1 capital
Tier 2 capital
Directly issued qualifying tier 2 capital instruments
and related premium
Excess loan loss provisions
Eligible portion of minority interests
Met capital

Risk-welghted assets
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As at 31 December

2023 2022
11.63% 11.84%
13.83% 14.11%
17.74% 17.52%

2,193,211 2,019,934
204 388 204,388
134,330 134,358
255,137 233,847
379,063 337276

1,060,652 070,627

36,123 37,168
33,500 3,270
(31,386) (28,592)
(182) (182)
(21,004) (18,416)
{0,078) {0.050)

2,161,825 1,991,342
408 447 381,648
119,550 119,550
279,955 249,955

8042 12,143

2570272 2,372,000
727,136 573481
534,124 108,223
184,316 165,000

8,606 10,150

3.207 AD8 2,046,471

18,501,278 16,818,275
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

[ Capital management { Continued)

{1} 'When calculating the capital adequacy ratios, Bank of China Group Investment Limiked (“BOCG
Iovestment™), Bank of China Insurance Company Limited (“BOC Insurance™), Bank of China Group
Insurance Company Limited (“BOCG Insurance'™) and Bank of China Group Life Asumnce Compamy
Limited {“BOCG Life™) atc., were excloded from the scope of regulatory consolidation in acoondance with
the requirements of the MERA.

(Z)  Thiz mainly represented exchange differences foom the transiation of foreign operations and gaineilosses)
on financial assets at fair value through other comprehenzive income.

7 Insurance risk

Insurance contracts are mainly sold in the Chinese mainland and Hong Kong (China).
The risk under an insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and
the uncertainty in the resulting claim amount. By the nature of an insurance contract, the
risk is random and therefore unpredictable. The principal risk that the Group faces under
its insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payvments excesd the carrving
amount of the insurance contract liabilities.

The Group manages its portfolio of insurance risks through its appropriate underariting
strategy and policies, as well as adequate reinsurance arrangements, and enhanced
underwriting control and claim control.

The Group makes related assumptions for insurance risks and recognises insurance contract
liabilities. For life insurance contracts, the key assumptions inclode assomptions in
respect of discount ratesfinvestment return, mortality, morbidity, lapse rates, and expenses
assumptions relating to life insurance contracts. For non-life insurance contracts, the key
assumptions include assumptions in respect of average claim costs, claims handling costs,
claims inflation factors and claim mumbers for each accident year which are determined
hasad on the Group’s past claim experiences.
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
16.77 16.05 18.06 20.74 20.94
14.66 14.73 15.88 17.93 18.95
15.78 15.48 17.03 19.48 19.82
15.67 15.88 18.06 19.01 19.93
2023 12 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024
20.71 20.68 20.92 21.00 20.84 21.36
19.86 20.03 20.37 20.40 21.63 21.76
20.16 20.41 20.73 20.74 21.16 21.57
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Independent Auditors Report

To the Shareholders of Bank of China Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Bank of China Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 214 to 438, comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;

the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information.

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Basis for Opinion (Continued)

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional

Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards

Board for Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance

with the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit

of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of

our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

Measurement of expected credit loss (“ECL”") for loans and advances to customers

Valuation of financial investments measured at fair value

Consolidation of structured entities
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit loss (“ECL”") for loans and advances to customers

Refer to Note Il 4.6, Note Il 1, Note V 9, 17, 24
and Note VI 2.3 of the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
loans and advances to customers in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position was
RMB19,476,871 million. Of these balances, the
loans and advances to customers measured at
amortised cost of RMB19,189,211 million and
loans and advances to customers measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income of
RMB715,101 million, together with accrued
interest were subject to ECL measurement, and
an impairment allowance of RMB485,298 million
was recognised by management as at 31
December 2023. The impairment losses on loans
and advances to customers recognised in the
Group's consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to
RMB106,114 million.

The Group assessed whether the credit risk of
loans and advances to customers had increased
significantly since their initial recognition, and
applied a three- stage impairment model
approach to calculate the ECL. For loans and
advances to customers that are classified as
stage 1 or stage 2, and those classified as stage 3
(impaired) with individual amount that are
relatively insignificant, the Group assessed the
ECL using the risk parameter modelling approach
that incorporated relevant key risk parameters,
including probability of default (“PD"), loss given
default (“LGD") and exposure at default (“EAD”).
For loans and advances to customers classified
as stage 3 with individual amount that are
relatively significant, the Group assessed ECL for
each loan by estimating the future cash flows from
the loans.

We understood and evaluated management’s internal
controls and assessment process for the measurement of
ECL for loans and advances to customers. We assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as the complexity of estimation
models used, the subjectivity of significant management
judgements and assumptions, and susceptibility to
management bias.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal controls over the
measurement of ECL for loans and advances to
customers. These included periodic assessment and
approval controls, which primarily include:

(1) internal controls over the ECL model management,
including continuous monitoring of the selection of
modelling methodologies, model optimisation, approval
and application of changes in key parameters, and
model back- testing;

(2) internal controls over significant management
judgements and assumptions, including portfolio
segmentation, parameter estimation, determination and
application of criteria to identify significant increases in
credit risk, default and credit-impaired assets, as well
as economic indicators, economic scenarios and
weightings used in forward-looking measurement;
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit loss (“ECL”) for loans and advances to customers (Continued)

The measurement of ECL for loans and advances
to customers involves significant management
judgements and estimations, mainly on:

(1) Segmentation of portfolios based on credit risk
characteristics, selection of appropriate models
and assumptions;

(2) Determination and application of criteria to
identify significant increase in credit risks and
default or credit-impaired assets;

(3) Economic indicators, economic scenarios and
weightings used in the forward-looking
measurement;

(4) Estimation of future cash flows for stage
3 loans and advances to customers with
individual amount that are relatively significant.

We have identified the measurement of ECL for
loans and advances to customers as a key audit
matter due to the material balance of the Group’s
loss allowances for loans and advances to
customers and high inherent risk given the
uncertainty of estimates, adoption of complex
models, involvement of significant management
judgements and assumptions and use of
numerous parameters and data inputs in such
measurement.

(3) internal controls over the estimated future cash flows
and calculation of present value with respect to loans
and advances to customers classified as stage 3 with
individual amount that are relatively significant;

(4) internal controls over the accuracy and completeness
of key data used by the models;

(5) internal controls over the information technology
systems for ECL measurement, including information
technology general controls, data interfaces,
application of model parameters and automated IT
controls over impairment calculations.

We involved our credit risk experts in evaluating the model
methodologies, significant judgements and assumptions,
data and key parameters used in the ECL measurement
for loans and advances to customers. The substantive
audit procedures performed by us were mainly as follows:

(1) we assessed the appropriateness of portfolio
segmentation and the models adopted for the
measurement of ECL in respect of different portfolios
with consideration given to the risk characteristics of
loans and advances to customers, the Group’s risk
management practices and industry practices. We
selected samples of ECL calculations and examined
whether the models’ calculation engines are consistent
with the Group’s methodologies.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit loss (“ECL”) for loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(2) we examined the accuracy and completeness of
historical and measurement date data used in the
ECL models on a sample basis, including:

(i) in respect of PD: financial and non- financial
information for determining borrowers’ credit
rating, overdue repayment status, etc.;

(i) in respect of LGD: types of guarantees and
collateral, historical actual loss rates, etc.;

(i) in respect of EAD: borrowers’ outstanding loan
balances, interest rates, maturity dates,
repayment methods, etc. by agreeing them to
loan contracts and other relevant documents.
We also agreed the total credit risk exposure in
the ECL models to data from other information
systems.

(3) in respect of PD and LGD, we assessed the
reasonableness of the parameters by comparing
the historical expected default and loss given
default with the subsequent actual default and loss
given default for significant exposures through
independent back-testin.

(4) we selected samples and assessed the
appropriateness of management’s staging
classifications and judgements used in determining
significant increases in credit risk and identification
of default or credit-impaired assets based on the
borrower’s financial and non-financial information
and other external evidence provided by
management. We took into consideration the credit
risk profile of borrowers and the Group’s risk
management practices in such assessment.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit loss (“ECL”) for loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(5) for forward-looking measurements, we evaluated
management’s selection methodology for
economic indicators, economic scenarios and
weightings assigned based on statistical analysis
and expert judgements. We assessed the
reasonableness of the forecasted economic
indicators by performing back-testing and
comparing with publicly available forecasts from
third-party institutions. We performed sensitivity
analysis on the economic indicators and
weightings under different economic scenarios.

(6) for individual loans and advances to customers
classified as stage 3 which were relatively
significant, we examined on a sample basis, the
forecasted cash flows prepared by management
based on the financial information of borrowers
and guarantors, latest collateral valuations and
other available information as well as various
possible future factors together with discount rates
used to support the computation of loss
allowances.

We checked and evaluated the appropriateness of the
financial statement disclosures in relation to the
measurement of ECL in the context of applicable
accounting framework.

Based on procedures performed, we considered that
the models, significant judgements and assumptions,
as well as relevant data and parameters used by
management in measuring ECL for loans and
advances to customers were supported by the
available evidence.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Valuation of financial investments measured at fair value

Refer to Note Il 4.4, Note Il 2, Note V 18 and
Note VI 5.1 of the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2023, financial investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss and
financial investments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income of the
Group were RMB550,421 million and
RMB3,248,113 million respectively, representing
11.71% of total assets. Of these financial
investments measured at fair value,

(1) financial investments classified as Level 1 fair
value, measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets accounted for
9.44%; (2) financial investments classified as
Level 2 fair value, measured using valuation
techniques for which inputs are observable for
the financial investments, accounted for 85.99%;
(3) financial investments classified as Level 3 fair
value, measured using valuation techniques
using unobservable inputs that have a significant
impact on the valuation accounted for 4.57%.
Level 3 financial investments mainly include
unlisted equity and fund investments held by the
Group.

We have identified this as a key audit matter due
to the material balance of the financial
investments measured at fair value and
significant management judgements and
assumptions are required, including selection
and determination of unobservable inputs, in
valuing the financial investments classified as
Level 3.

We understood and evaluated management’s internal
controls and assessment process over the valuation
of financial investments measured at fair value. We
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the inherent risk factors of the different
fair value levels such as the degree of estimation
uncertainty, the complexity of valuation techniques
and models, the subjectivity of management’s
judgements and assumptions in selecting valuation
techniques, models and inputs and susceptibility to
management bias.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal controls over the
valuation of financial investments measured at fair
value. These included controls over model validation
and approval, review and approval of valuation
results, as well as the information technology general
controls of related systems, systems interfaces of
inputs such as market data and automated
calculations within the valuation systems.

We performed the following substantive procedures
over the valuation of financial investments measured
at fair value, on a sample basis:

(1) for Level 1 financial investments, we tested their

valuations by comparing to quoted prices in active
markets.
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Valuation of financial investments measured at fair value (Continued)

(2) for Level 2 and Level 3 financial investments:

(i) we assessed the appropriateness of the Group’
s valuation models and benchmarked against
common market models, taking into
consideration the product characteristics and
industry practice;

(i) we compared the valuation of Level2
financial investments to quotations available
from independent sources; as well as tested
observable inputs used in valuation models;

(iii) for unobservable inputs used for the valuation
of Level 3 financial investments, we obtained
an understanding of management’s
methodology for the selection of inputs such
as discount rates, expected dividend,
price/earnings multiples, net asset value of
unlisted investments and recent transaction
prices, etc.; and assessed the reasonableness
and appropriateness of such inputs by
examining supporting information and
comparing to alternatives in the market with
the involvement of our internal valuation
experts. We also performed sensitivity
analysis on the unobservable inputs;

(iv) we engaged internal valuation experts to
perform independent valuation testing.

We checked and evaluated the appropriateness of the
financial statement disclosures in relation to the fair
value of financial investments in the context of
applicable accounting framework.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that the valuation models, significant judgements and
assumptions as well as relevant data used by
management in the valuation of financial investments
measured at fair value were supported by available
evidence.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Consolidation of structured entities

Refer to Note Il 2.1, Note Il 6 and Note V 46 of
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group is principally involved with structured
entities through sponsoring and managing, and/
or investing in wealth management products,
asset securitisation products, funds, investment
trust plans and asset management plans. As at
31 December 2023, the Group’s interests in
unconsolidated structured entities mainly
included (1) the net asset value of wealth
management products and funds/ asset
management plans where the Group sponsored
and managed amounted to RMB1,631,063
million and RMB778,109 million, respectively; (2)
the carrying amounts of interest in structured
entities held by the Group through direct
investments in fund investments, investment
trusts and asset management plans, and asset-
backed securitisations sponsored by other
financial institutions outside the Group were
RMB83,527 million, RMB22,917 million, and
RMB125,595 million, respectively.

The Group determines whether to consolidate
structured entities based on management’s
assessment of the Group’s control over the
structured entities, taking into consideration its
power over the structured entities, its exposure
or rights to variable returns from its involvement
with the structured entities, and its ability to use
its power to affect the amount of returns from the
structured entities.

We have identified this as a key audit matter due
to the material amount of structured entities and
significant judgements were involved in

assessing the Group’s control over the structured

entities.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal controls over the Group’s
consolidation of structured entities. These included
controls over management’s assessment of the
transaction structures and contractual terms,
calculations of variable returns, as well as review and
approval of the consolidation assessments.

We performed the following substantive procedures
on a sample basis:

(1) we inspected the contractual terms of structured
entities, understood the purpose of establishment,
examined the transaction structure and identified
the decision-making mechanism of related
activities to assess the rights and obligations of the
Group and other investors, as well as the Group’s
power over the structured entities;

(2) we examined the arrangements for investment
income, fee income, assets management fees and
retained residual income from the structured
entities based on the contractual terms including
whether liquidity support or other arrangements
were provided by the Group to the structured
entities; and performed independent analysis and
testing to assess the Group’s exposure or rights to
variable returns from its involvement in related
activities with the structured entities;
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Consolidation of structured entities (Continued)

(3) we analysed the extent of the Group’s decision-
making power, the level of returns and the risk of
variable returns due to holding other interests in
the structured entities to assess whether the Group
has the ability to use their power to influence the
amount of returns from the structured entities. We
also analysed the substantive rights held by other
investors to assess whether the Group acted as a
principal or an agent in structured entities related
transactions.

We checked and assessed the appropriateness of the
financial statement disclosures in relation to the
consolidation of structured entities in the context of
applicable accounting framework.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that management’s judgements on the consolidation
of structured entities were supported by the available
evidence.

Other Information

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Ho Shuk Ching, Margarita.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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